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To be the performer of first choice at Bur-
shane LPG (Pakistan) Limited, we strive to 
provide quality customer service through 
continous improvements in our effort to 
make uninterrupted supply of LPG to the 
users, development of our people and 
maintaining high standards of technical 
resources and safety standards. Further 
we aim at sustained profitability and 
value growth for our shareholders 
through strong financial foundation and 
loyal customers. We shall strive to pro-
vide better choices to our communities 

for improving quality of their life.

VISION





INCREDIBLE
ENERGY
LPG Autogas is by far the 
most widely available 
environmentally friendly 
alternative fuel. Recent 
independent tests have 
also shown that LPG has the 
best environmental record 
compared with petrol and 
diesel. Driving an LPG 
vehicle is safe, easy and 
best of all, much cheaper 
than driving a petrol or 
diesel model. Engines 
running on LPG produce 
less harmful emissions 
compared to petrol or 
diesel, whlist making 
significent savings at the 
pumps.
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LEGAL ADVISORS

BANKERS

REGISTERED OFFICE

- Mohsin Tayeb Aly & Co.

Suite 101, 1st Floor, Horizon Vista
Plot No. Commercial - 10, Block-4
Scheme No. 5, Clifton, Karachi - 75600
Tel: +92 21 35898356, 35309870 & 73
Fax: +92 21 3587 8353
www.burshane.com

- MCB Bank Limited
- National Bank Of Pakistan
- Habib Bank Limited
- Standard Chartered Bank Pakistan Limited
- Faysal Bank Limited 
- United Bank Limited
- Summit Bank Limited
- Bank Alfalah Limited
- Meezan Bank Limited
- Sindh Bank Limited
- Js Bank Limited







CONVENIENT & 
SAFE DOMESTIC USE
I n 
both urban and rural areas, LPG is being widely 
used as an alternative source of Natural Gas or 
where there is no access to central gas pipeline. 
In domestic segment LPG is used mainly for 
cooking and heating purposes, for economic 
reasons, convenience over traditional fuels as well 
as to ensure Environment (HSSE). Burshane LPG 
(Pakistan) Limited is among the pioneers in LPG 
marketing and distribution in Pakistan. Company 
incorporated in 1966 and consistently developed and 
established its countrywide distribution network which 
is primarily focused to cater the needs of domestic 
users and deliver our best services to them. Burshane 
LPG has a very clear strategy to offer and deliver 
diffrentiated Customer Value Propositions to various 
segments of market, to increase customer satisfaction and 
retain its position as the premium LPG brand available in 
market. Company is committed on attracting more 
sutomers and enhancing the brand by providing products 
and sevices to creat customer loyalty and market share on a 
sustainable basis. Consistent focus on our CVP across the 
entire value chain has distinguished our brand among 
compititors in industry. Our core values of honesty, integrity and 
respect for people are at the heart of the way we manage our 
business.

CONVENIENT & 
SAFE DOMESTIC USE
In both urban and rural areas, LPG is being 
widely used as an alternative source of Natural 
Gas or where there is no access to central gas 
pipeline. In domestic segment LPG is used mainly 
for cooking and heating purposes, for economic 
reasons, convenience over traditional fuels as well 
as to ensure Environment (HSSE). Burshane LPG 
(Pakistan) Limited is among the pioneers in LPG 
marketing and distribution in Pakistan. Company 
incorporated in 1966 and consistently developed and 
established its countrywide distribution network which 
is primarily focused to cater the needs of domestic users 
and deliver our best services to them. Burshane LPG has 
a very clear strategy to offer and deliver diffrentiated 
Customer Value Propositions to various segments of 
market, to increase customer satisfaction and retain its 
position as the premium LPG brand available in market. 
Company is committed on attracting more customers and 
enhancing the brand by providing products and sevices to 
create customer loyalty and market share on a sustainable 
basis. Consistent focus on our CVP across the entire value 
chain has distinguished our brand among compititors in 
industry. Our core values of honesty, integrity and respect for 
people are at the heart of the way we manage our business.
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Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Amir Aziz
Head of Operations Distribution 

& HSSE
Head of Internal Audit
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ENVIRONMENT 
FRIENDLY LPG
ENVIRONMENT 
FRIENDLY LPG
LPG is truly a modern environment friendly product. LPG is 
the normal abbreviation used to describe 'Liquefied 
Petroleum Gas', which is itself used to describe those 
hydrocarbons existing as vapors under ambient conditions 
of temperature and pressure.



EFFICIENT
ECO-FRIENDLY

LPG is a clean - burning fuel which cleans the environment 
by reducing air pollution. It has absolutely no lead content 
(safe vehicle fuel) the perfect environment alternative - 
and is cheaper than gasoline. It contributes to a healthier 
working environment and has virtually no harmful exhaust 
emission. LPG is the fuel of the future. Apart from being 
environmentally friendly, in Pakistan it can significantly 
contribute to the economy by replacing Kerosene. It can 
also assist in reducing de-forestation in cases where wood 
is used as a source of energy, thus making the environment 
pollution free and healthier. De-forestation leads to serious 
environmental damage and disturbs the ecological 
balance causing erosion and landslides in these areas. 
Thus there is a need to increase the availability, as well as 
usage of LPG, as it can to some extent overcome the 
de-forestation problem of the country. Burshane LPG 
(Pakistan) Limited is actively playing its role by promoting 

the superior environment and convenient aspects of LPG.





CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW
On behalf of the Board, I am pleased to present the Chairman’s review report to the shareholders 
of Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited (the Company) for the year ended June 30, 2022.

In view of the current economic and environmental uncertainties, including unprecedented 
inflationary headwinds, the Company continued to deliver strong results and stands 
well-positioned to continue its existing growth momentum. I am confident that the Company will 
continue to meet the challenges, which shall, in turn drive shareholder returns and value. The Board, 
shall continue to oversee performance of the  business closely, ensuring that the Company 
executes its strategy with financial discipline and with integrity.

Despite the numerous economic challenges experienced during the year, the Board is pleased with 
the progress the Company is making. The net turnover was recorded at Rs. 4,494.63 million, 73.45% 
higher recorded for the previous year ended June 30, 2021. Gross margin increased to Rs. 166.15 
million from Rs. 33.49 million during the current year due to a combination of timely pricing actions, 
the Company was able to grow profit to Rs. 26.84 million from a loss of Rs. 119.75 million recorded in 
the year 2021. 

Performance evaluation:

As required, under the Code of Corporate Governance (the Code) and in pursuance of SECP’s 
guidelines, an evaluation process is carried out online internally to assess annual performance of 
the Board, members of the Board as well as performance of the Chief Executive Officer (CEO). A 
self-evaluation form is circulated to each of the members of the Board, requiring them to complete 
the questionnaires with their comments. Results are compiled by the Company Secretary and 
share subsequently in the next meeting of the Board with the intent to address areas which require 
further improvement. I am pleased to report that overall performance of the Board and CEO of the 
Company for the year ended June 30, 2022 remained satisfactory.

Operational excellence:

The Company continues to excel in its performance of Health, Safety, Security and Environment 
(HSSE) standards, with no Lost Time Injury and Fatality. The management is continually looking for 
ways to reduce the environmental impact of its operations, products and services.

We believe that sustainable development is only possible if business principles and best practices 
are complied, adhered to and abided within the overall conduct of the business spectrum. 
Burshane has firmly embedded these attributes in its rules of engagement and standard operating 
procedures (SOPs) in all aspects of its operations and shall continuously strive to inculcate these 
principles amongst all stakeholders.

In the context of business growth, the management is fully aware of challenges faced and its 
obligations towards its stakeholders. It stands committed to develop long-term corporate plans to 
increase the shareholder value in the business. All possible options are being pursued to increase 
the market share of the Company and to enhance return on capital employed. Therefore, the 
management remains confident that, going forward, it will be able show stronger performance and 
sustain  the Company‘s profitability achieved during 2022. 

It is pertinent to note, that the Company embarked upon an aggressive strategy to ensure that all 
governance and issues related to reputational risk are addressed appropriately. In this regard, 
outstanding banking matter, relating to long term loan was settled with NBP, amicably. Similarly, 
matter related to FBR, highlighted in the press last year, were taken head on with FBR authorities and 
is being addressed satisfactorily. The Company expects favorable outcome of the matter in near 
future. 



Role of the Chairman:

In my capacity as Chairman, I ensure that:

-   Board receives adequate, accurate, clear, complete and reliable information in a timely manner
     for a through discussion and a meaningful oversight on all aspects of the business.
-   Board is properly briefed on all significant matters.
-   All key issues are discussed by the Board in a timely manner.
-   Environment in board room remains conducive, allows constructive and open debates.
-   Board plays a constructive role in devising strategies, policies and its implementation.
-   Strategies and policies agreed by the Board are effectively implemented by the Chief Executive
     Officer and the management.
-   Decisions taken by the Board are in the best interest of the Company and fairly reflect consensus
     of the Board members.
-   Good corporate governance and procedures are in place.

Finally, I would like to thank the staff, all stakeholders, distributors and customers for their 
continuous support in ensuring sustainable growth of the company and for making Burshane their 
brand of first choice.

Karachi Shaikh Abdus SamiDated:
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-   All key issues are discussed by the Board in a timely manner.
-   Environment in board room remains conducive, allows constructive and open debates.
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     Officer and the management.
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Finally, I would like to thank the staff, all stakeholders, distributors and customers for their 
continuous support in ensuring sustainable growth of the company and for making Burshane their 
brand of first choice.

Karachi Shaikh Abdus Sami
ChairmanDated: September 26, 2022
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT
The Directors of your Company are hereby presenting the financial information of the 
Company for the year ended June 30, 2022.

Financial Performance

During the year under review, the sales volume of the Company at 30,960 MTs, decreased by 1,376 
MTs (4.25%) compared to the corresponding period of the previous year and net sales of the 
Company at Rs. 4,494.63 million increased by Rs. 1,903.33 million (73%) due to due to rising 
international crude oil prices and excess of LPG in the market compared to demand. The gross 
margins of the Company at Rs. 166.15 million (3.70% of sales value) was also increased by 156.67 
million from last year comparative period due to increase in price and margins.

During the year, the Company has paid rent to Pakistan Refinery Limited (PRL) for the period from 
2017 to 2020 amounting to Rs. 24 million. The amount has been expensed out during the current 
year. Other income for the year at Rs. 67.12 million was 78.19% higher than the last year because the 
Company has accepted a revised proposal of restructuring of loan form National Bank of Pakistan 
which resulted a gain on loan restructuring amounting to Rs. 37.76 million.
 
Administrative expenses decreased by Rs. 8.82 million (7.07%) compared to comparative period of 
previous year, mainly due to decrease in Litigation expenses pertaining to complaint lodged by 
Investigation and Intelligence (Inland Revenue) (I&I IR); however, distribution & marketing expenses 
have increased by Rs. 2.93 million mainly due to increase in freight charges.

Profit before tax of the Company at Rs. 26.65 million, is increased by Rs. 190.77 million from last year 
comparative period, mainly due to increase in gross margins compared to last year. 

The Company's profit per share for the year under review is at Rs. 1.19 compared to loss per share of 
Rs. 5.33 per share in the preceding year.

Material Changes and Commitments

On January 06, 2022, the Company received a revised proposal for the restructuring of loan from 
NBP which has since been accepted and duly executed via offer letter No. 
NBP/ARG/ARW(S)/BLPL/2022/08. As per the aforementioned letter, the long-term loan and accrued 
mark-up on long-term loan are termed as Demand Finance-I and Demand Finance-II. The 
remaining outstanding loan of Rs 154 million has been restructured to running finance facility. In 
respect of Demand Finance - I, the Company has made a principal down payment of Rs. 25.44 
million and the balance of Rs. 75 million to be re-paid in 20 quarterly installments starting from 
September 30, 2022 with a grace period of 1 year from the date of the drawdown. The facility carries 
mark-up at the rate of 3 months KIBOR + 2%, which will also be payable during the grace period. In 
respect of Demand Finance - II, the Company has made a principal down payment of Rs. 10.59 
million and the balance of Rs. 95.29 million to be re-paid in 20 quarterly installments starting from 
September 30, 2022.



A complaint was filed by the Directorate of Investigation and Intelligence (Inland Revenue) (I & I – 
IR) on August 31, 2020, against the Company for alleged Tax evasion of approximately PKR 1.78 
billion, with Special Court for Customs, Taxation and (Anti-Smuggling). Based on this complaint the 
court passed 2 orders against the Company and some of its directors. The orders were pertaining 
to freezing of Company’s 9 bank accounts for 90 days and issuance of Non Bailable Arrest Warrants 
of its certain Directors. The Company immediately obtained Protective Bail from the High Court and 
subsequently from the Special Court which was later confirmed.

The Company also filed a Constitutional Petition with High Court against the order of the Special 
Court for freezing of 9 bank accounts. All banks have removed the freeze on Company’s accounts 
on expiry of 90 days.

Another Constitutional Petition challenging the Complaint filed by I & I - IR with the special Court 
under the Anti Money Laundering Act 2010, has also been filed with High Court. The Company has 
lost the case and directed to defend the case in the court of Special Judge (Custom, Taxation and 
Anti-Smuggling) Karachi.
 
The Company had received notices under section 177(1) of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 regarding 
audit for tax years 2018 and 2019. The Company has replied and submitted relevant details and 
documents timely through various letters to FBR. The Company has received further notices for 
same tax years on August 16, 2022, in which the additions made by the Deputy Commissioner Inland 
Revenue in the assessments made under section 122 through order dated June 14, 2022 has not 
been accepted by the learned Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals-II), Karachi who has been 
pleased to remand the matter back for both the years, as such no demand subsists for tax year 
2018 and 2019.

Business Ethics

We believe that sustainable development is only possible if we abide by our Business Principles. 
Burshane has firmly embedded them in all the operations of the company and we continuously 
strive to inculcate these principles among our stakeholders.

In the context of business growth, we would like to assure you that the management of your 
company is fully aware of its obligations towards its stakeholders and is determined to develop 
long-term corporate plans to increase the value of the business. We are looking into all possible 
options to increase the market share and earn an adequate return on capital employed of 
Burshane in a profitable manner; therefore, we are confident that we will show strong performance 
in the coming periods.

We have once again excelled in our performance of Health, Safety, Security and Environment 
(HSSE), with no lost time injury and fatality. The management is committed towards not only 
improving the HSSE standards for itself but leading in to establish best practices for the industry as 
well.

Adherence to Best Practices of Corporate Governance:

A statement setting out the Company’s compliance status on the best practices of corporate 
governance appears in the “Corporate Governance Section” on Page No. 47. In addition, a 
statement of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 
2019 together with the Auditor’s Review Report to Members thereon appears on Page No. 50, 
respectively.



Director’s Remuneration policy:

Directors Fee is paid in line with Board approval and the Company has approved a formal policy in
this regard in accordance with the Companies Act, 2017 and the COCG. The fee of the Non- 
Executive and Independent Directors for attending the Board and Committee meetings of the 
Company is determined by the Board from time to time.

Composition of Board:

The total number of directors are eight and their composition is as following:
-  Male:            6
-  Female:    2

The following Committees continued to function as per the requirements of the law and as directed 
by the Board.

a)   Audit Committee
        Maj. Gen Rafiullah Khan (R)   Chairman
        Mr. Shaikh Abdus Sami    Member
        Ms. Hamdia Fatin Niazi    Member

b)    Human Resource and Remuneration Committee
         Maj. Gen Rafiullah Khan (R)    Chairman
         Mr. Asad Alam Niazi    Member
         Ms. Hamdia Fatin Niazi   Member
         Mr. Saifee Zakiuddin    Member

During the year, five (05) meetings of the Board of Directors, five (05) meetings of the Audit 
Committee and one (01) meeting of the HR & remuneration committee were held. Attendance of 
each Director is shown separately on Page No. 200.

Pattern of shareholding

Information with respect to pattern of shareholding along with categories of shareholders as at 
June 30, 2022 as required under section 227 of the Companies Act, 2017, is given in this report on 
Page No. 201.

Maj. Gen (R.) Rafiullah Khan (R)
Mr. Shaikh Abdus Sami

Ms. Hamdia Fatin Niazi
Ms. Shahbano Hameed
Mr. Khalid Dar
Mr. Osman Malik

Mr. Asad Alam Niazi
Mr. Saifee Zakiuddin

Independent Director

Category Name

Non-Executive Directors

Executive Directors



Karachi
Dated: September 26, 2022

The present Auditors M/s BDO Ebrahim Co., Chartered Accountants, retire and being eligible, have 
offered themselves for re-appointment. The Board of Directors endorse the recommendation of the 
Audit Committee for their reappointment as auditors of the Company for the financial year ending 
June 30, 2023, subject to shareholders’ approval in the Annual General Meeting.

During the year, the Company has conducted Board performance evaluation by way of self- 
assessment by each Director and have ensured that this requirement is fully complied with. 

On behalf of the Board, we would like to thanks our staff, business partners, customers and all other
stakeholders for their continued support in ensuring sustainable growth of the Company and for 
making Burshane their brand of first choice.

(Rs. in ‘000)

Following are the key numbers of the results for the year
Net Sales
Gross Margins
Profit before Tax
Profit after Tax
Earnings per share 

4,494,627
166,150
26,653
26,839

1.19 

Saifee Zakiuddin
Director

Cash

Bonus

Dividend declared NIL

NIL

Asad Alam Niazi
Director / CEO

Financial Highlights:
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HEALTH, SAFETY, 
SECURITY & 
ENVIRONMENT
HSSE
They ensure that all HSSE policies are properly observed 
by providing support and resources for actions taken to 
operate safely and to protect health, environment and to 
exert a positive influence on the HSSE management of 
contractors as they play a major role in achieving a high 
level of HSSE performance. This is evident by the fact that 
the period under review is without any lost time injury 
(LTI). As a responsible cooperate citizen, we at Burshane 
always belief that the only way to sustainable 
development is through a strong commitment to Health, 
Safety, Security and Environment in all areas of our 
business.

In Burshane, HSSE is managed as the most critical 
business activity. The Management at Burshane 
demonstrates strong, visible leadership and 
commitment by allocating sufficient resources to 
operate and maintain HSSE Management System and 
lead by example in their personal actions and behaviors.



CORPORATE SOCIAL 
RESPONSIBILITY CSR
They ensure that all HSSE policies are properly observed by providing support and 
resources for actions taken to operate safely and to protect health, environment and 
to exert a positive influence on the HSSE management of contractors as they play a 
major role in achieving a high level of HSSE performance. This is evident by the fact 
that the period under review is without any lost time injury (LTI). As a responsible 
cooperate citizen, we at Burshane always belief that the only way to sustainable 
development is through a strong commitment to Health, Safety, Security and 
Environment in all areas of our business.

In Burshane, HSSE is managed as the most critical business activity. The 
Management at Burshane demonstrates strong, visible leadership and commitment 
by allocating sufficient resources to operate and maintain HSSE Management 
System and lead by example in their personal actions and behaviors.





CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Board is committed to maintain high standards of Corporate 
Governance. The Board is pleased to give the following specific statements 
to comply with the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance:

The financial statements, prepared by the 
management of the Company, present its 
state of affairs fairly, the results of its 
operations, changes in equity and cash 
flows.

Proper books of account of the Company 
have been maintained.

Appropriate accounting policies have been
consistently applied in preparation of the 
financial statements. Accounting 
estimates are based on reasonable and 
prudent judgment.

International Financial Reporting 
Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have 
been followed in preparation of financial 
statements and any departure there from 
have been adequately disclosed and 
explained.

The system of internal control is sound in 
design and has been effectively 
implemented and monitored. 

There are no significant doubts upon the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern.

There are no material departures from the 
best practices of corporate governance, as 
detailed in the listing regulations except as 
disclosed in the Statement of Compliance 
with the Code of Corporate Governance.

Key operating and financial data in 
summarized form is annexed.

No trades in the shares of Burshane LPG 
(Pakistan) Limited were carried out by the 
Directors, CEO, CFO, Company Secretary 
and their spouses and minor children 
except for the statutory requirement.

Seven of the directors have completed the 
Director’s Training course from SECP 
approved Director Training Institute. In 
accordance with the criteria specified in 
the Code, the remaining Directors’ training
certification within the time specified in the
Code.

 



Board Meetings:

The number of Board and Committees’ 
meetings held during the year and 
attendance by each Director is disclosed on 
page no. 200.

Board of Directors:

The Directors as on June 30, 2022 are Mr. Asad
Alam Niazi, Ms. Hamdia Fatin Niazi, Mr. Shaikh 
Abdus Sami, Ms. Shahbano Hameed, Mr. Saifee 
Zakiuddin, Mr. Muhammad Khalid Dar,                  
Maj. Gen Rafiullah Khan (R) and Mr. Osman 
Malik. 

Pattern of Shareholding:

The pattern of shareholding as of June 30, 
2022 as required under section 227 of the 
Companies Act, 2017 is given on                         
page no. 201.

Auditors:

The auditors M/s. BDO Ebrahim Co. Chartered 
Accountants, retire and being eligible offer 
themselves for re-appointment. Audit 
committee has recommended the 
appointment of retiring auditors. 

On behalf of the Board

Karachi
Dated: September 26, 2022

Mr. Asad Alam Niazi
Director and Cheif Executive Officer



STATEMENT OF GENERAL
BUSINESS PRINCIPLES
Value
Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited employees share a 
set of core values – honesty, integrity and respect for 
people. We also firmly believe in the fundamental 
importance of trust, openness, teamwork and 
professionalism, and pride in what we do.

Responsibilities
Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited recognize five areas 
of responsibility.

To Shareholders
To protect shareholders’ investment, and provide a 
long-term return competitive with those of other 
leading companies in the industry.

To Customers
To win and maintain customers by developing and 
providing products and services which offer value in 
terms of price, quality, safety and environmental 
impact, which are supported by the requisite 
technological, environmental and commercial 
expertise.

To Those With Whom We Do Business
To seek mutually beneficial relationships with 
contractors, suppliers and in joint ventures and to 
promote the application of these Burshane LPG 
(Pakistan) limited general business principles or 
equivalent principles in such relationships. The ability 
to promote these principles effectively will be an 
important factor in the decision to enter into or 
remain in such relationships.

To Society
To conduct business as responsible corporate 
members of society, to comply with applicable laws 
and regulations, to support fundamental human 
rights in line with the legitimate role of business, and 
to give proper regard to health, safety, security and 
the environment. 

To Employees
To respect the human rights of its employees and to 
provide them with good and safe working conditions, 
and competitive terms and conditions of 
employment To promote the development and best 
use of the talents of its employees; to create an 
inclusive work environment where every employee 
has an equal opportunity to develop his or her skills 
and talents. To encourage the involvement of 
employees in the planning and direction of their 
work; to provide them with channels to report 
concerns. We recognize that commercial success 
depends on the full commitment of all employees.

Sustainable Development
As part of the Business Principles, we commit to 
contribute to sustainable development. This requires 
balancing short-term and long-term interests, 
integrating economic, environmental and social 
considerations into business decision- making.

Economics
Long-term profitability is essential to achieving 
company’s business goals and to its continued 
growth. It is a measure both of efficiency and of the 
value that customers place on Burshane LPG 
(Pakistan) Limited products and services. It supplies 
the necessary corporate resources for the continuing 
investment that is required to develop and produce 
future energy supplies to meet customer needs. 
Without profits and a strong financial foundation, it 
would not be possible to fulfil our responsibilities. 
Criteria for investment and divestment decisions 
include sustainable development considerations 
(economic, social and environmental) and an 
appraisal of the risks of the investment.

Health, Safety, Security Environment
Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited has a systematic 
approach to health, safety, security and 
environmental management in order to achieve 
continuous performance improvement. To this end, 
Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited manage these 
matters as critical business activities, set standards 
and targets for improvement, and measure, 
appraise and report performance. Burshane LPG 
(Pakistan) Limited continually look for ways to reduce 
the environmental impact of its operations, products 
and services.



STATEMENT OF GENERAL
BUSINESS PRINCIPLES
Competition
Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited support free 
enterprise. It seeks to compete fairly and ethically and 
within the framework of applicable competition laws; 
the Company will not prevent others from competing 
freely with it. 

Local Communities 
Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited aim to be good 
neighbors by continuously improving the ways in 
which we contribute directly or indirectly to the 
general well-being of the communities within which it 
works. Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited manage the 
social impacts of its business activities carefully and 
work with others to enhance the benefits to local 
communities, and to mitigate any negative impacts 
from its activities. In addition, Burshane LPG (Pakistan) 
Limited take a constructive interest in societal 
matters, directly or indirectly related to its business.

Business Integrity
Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited insist on honesty, 
integrity and fairness in all aspects of its business and 
expect the same in its relationships with all those with 
whom it does business. The direct or indirect offer, 
payment, soliciting or acceptance of bribes in any 
form is unacceptable. Employees must avoid 
conflicts of interest between their private activities 
and their part in the conduct of company business. 
Employees must also declare to the company 
potential conflicts of interest. All business 
transactions on behalf of Burshane LPG (Pakistan) 
Limited must be reflected accurately and fairly in the 
accounts of the company in accordance with 
established.

Communication and Engagement
Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited recognize that 
regular dialogue and engagement with its 
stakeholders is essential. Burshane LPG (Pakistan) 
Limited is committed to reporting of its performance 
by providing full relevant information to legitimately 
interested parties, subject to any overriding 
considerations of business confidentiality. In its 
interactions with employees, business partners and 
local communities, the company seek to listen and 
respond to them honestly and responsibly.

Political Activities
Company: Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited act in a 
socially responsible manner within the laws of the 
countries in which it operates in pursuit of its 
egitimate commercial objectives. Burshane LPG 
(Pakistan) Limited do not make payments to political 
parties, organizations or their representatives.  

Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited do not take part in 
party politics. However, when dealing with 
government, Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited have 
the right and the responsibility to make its position 
known on any matters which affect itself, its 
employees, its customers its shareholders or local 
communities in a manner which is in accordance with 
its values and the Business Principles.

Employees: Where individuals wish to engage in 
activities in the community, including standing for 
election to public office, they will be given the 
opportunity to do so where this is appropriate in the 
light of local circumstances.

Compliance
Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited comply with all 
applicable laws and regulations of the country in 
which it operates. Living by the Principles. The shared 
core values of honesty, integrity and respect for 
people, underpin all the work the company does and 
are the foundation of its Business Principles.

The Business Principles apply to all transactions, large 
or small, and drive the behavior expected of every 
employee in Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited in the 
conduct of its business at all times. The Company 
encourage its business partners to live by them or by 
equivalent principles. Burshane LPG (Pakistan) 
Limited encourage its employees to demonstrate 
leadership, accountability and teamwork, and 
through these behaviors, to contribute to the overall 
success of the Company.

It is the responsibility of management to lead by 
example, to ensure that all employees are aware of 
these principles, and behave in accordance with the 
spirit of this statement. The application of these 
principles is underpinned by a comprehensive set of 
assurance procedures, which are designed to make 
sure that company employees understand the 
principles and confirm that they act in accordance 
with them.

As part of the assurance system, it is also the 
responsibility of management to provide employees 
with safe and confidential channels to raise concerns 
and report instances of non-compliance. In turn it is 
the responsibility of Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited 
employees to report suspected breaches of the 
Business Principles to the Company. The Business 
Principles have for many years been fundamental to 
how the company conduct its business and living by 
them is crucial to Its continued success.





1. 

2.

3.

4.
5.
6.

4.
1.

2.

3.

4.

Notes:
1.   Book Closure:
       

2.  Election of Directors:
 

 

3.  Statement of Material Facts under Section 166(3) of the Companies Act, 2017 regarding
     Independent Directors:
.

Consent to act as director in Form – 28, duly completed and signed by the candidate, as 
required under section 167(1) of the Companies Act, 2017;
Detailed profile along with office address for placement on to the Company’s website seven
days prior to the date of election in terms of SRO 25(1) 2012 of 16th January 2012;
Signed declaration to the effect that he / she is aware of the duties and power of directors 
and compliant with the requirements and eligibility criteria under the Companies Act., 2017,
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, Rule Book of Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited and Code of Corporate Governance Regulations, 2017 and other relevant
laws and regulations;
Attest Copy of Valid CNIC / Passport and NTN;
His / her Folio No. / CDC Account No. / CDC sub-account No;
Any other document / information he / she think necessary

Appointment of Proxies and Attending AGM:
A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint another member as 
his/her proxy who shall have such rights as respects attending, speaking and voting at the 
meeting as are available to a member.
A duly completed instrument of proxy to be valid must be deposited at the registered office 
not less than 48 hours before the time of the meeting. Attested copies of valid CNIC or the 
passport of the member and the Proxy shall be furnished with the Proxy Form.
The instrument of proxy should be duly signed, stamped and witnessed by two persons with
their names, address, CNIC numbers and signatures.
CDC account holders are also required to follow the guidelines as laid down in Circular No.1
dated January 26, 2000 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 
(SECP).

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from October 15 to October 21,   
2022 (both days inclusive). Transfers received in order by our Share Registrar, M/s. THK 
Associates  (Pvt.) Limited, Plot No. C-32, Jami Commercial Street-2, D.H.A., Phase-VII, Karachi by 
the close of business on October 14, 2022 will be considered in time for the determination of any 
entitlement as recommended by the Board of Directors, attending the meeting and vote at the 
meeting.

Any member who seeks to contest an election of Directors of the Company shall file with the 
Company at its Registered Office not later than fourteen (14) days before the date of the EOGM 
his/her intention to offer himself / herself for election of Directors in terms of section 159(3) of the
Companies Act, 2017 together with:

Independent Directors will be elected through the process of election of directors in terms of 
Section 159 of the Companies Act, 2017 and they shall meet the criteria laid down under section
166(2) of the Companies Act, 2017



5. Change in Members Addresses:

6. Submission of Copies of Valid CNICs (mandatory):

7. Payment of Dividend through electronic mode (mandatory):

A. For Attending the Meeting:

B. For Appointing Proxies:

In case of individual, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person, whose 
securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the 
regulations, shall authenticate his/her identity by showing his/her original Computerized 
National Identity Card (CNIC) or original passport at the time of attending the meeting.
Members registered on Central Depository Company (CDC) are also requested to bring 
their particulars, I.D. numbers and account numbers in CDS.
In case of a corporate entity, the Board of Directors resolution/Power of Attorney with 
specimen signature of the nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) 
at the time of meeting.

1.

2.

3.

In case of individual, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose 
securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the 
regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per requirement notified by the Company.
The Proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC 
numbers shall be mentioned on the form.
Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be 
furnished with the proxy form.
The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting. 
Corporate entities shall submit the Board of Directors resolution/Power of Attorney with 
specimen signature along with proxy form.

Members are requested to notify any changes in their addresses immediately to the Share 
Registrar M/s. THK Associates (Pvt.) Limited.

Members, who have not yet submitted attested photocopy of their valid CNIC along with folio 
number are requested to send the same, at the earliest, directly to the Company’s Share 
Registar.

Under the provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, it is mandatory for a listed 
Company to pay cash dividend to its shareholders only through electronic mode directly into 
bank account designated by the entitled shareholders.

In order to receive dividend directly into their bank account, shareholders are requested to fill in
Electronic Credit Mandate Form available on Company’s website and send it duly signed along 
with a copy of CNIC to the Registrar of the Company, in case of physical shares.

In case shares are held in CDC then Electronic Credit Mandate Form must be submitted directly 
to shareholder’s broker / participant / CDC account services.

1.

2.

3.

4.



8.

9.

Circulation of Audited Financial Statements Through E-Mail and by CD/DVD/USB:

Unclaimed dividends & bonus shares:

The Company be and is hereby allowed to transmit its annual audited financial statements, 
auditor’s report and directors report etc. (annual audited accounts) to the Company’s 
shareholders at their registered addresses in the form of soft copies in CD / DVD / USB instead of 
transmitting the annual audited accounts in printed copy as allowed by the Securities and 
Exchange Commission of Pakistan via SRO No.470(I)/2016 dated May 31, 2016”.

Shareholders, who by any reason, could not claim their dividend or bonus shares or did not 
collect their physical shares, are advised to contact our Share Registrar M/s THK Associates (Pvt) 
Ltd. to collect/enquire about their unclaimed dividend or pending shares, if any.

Please note that in compliance with Section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017, after having 
completed the stipulated procedure, all dividends unclaimed for a period of three years from 
the date due and payable shall be deposited to the credit of the Federal Government and in 
case of shares, shall be delivered to the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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SIX YEARS SUMMARY

Trading Results
Net turnover 
Gross profit 
Operating profit / (loss)
Earnings before interest, taxes,depreciation and amortisation 
Earnings / (loss) after tax 
Interim dividend 
Final dividend
Earnings / (loss) before tax 

Financial Position
Share capital 
Reserves and Retained Earnings 
Property, plant and equipment  and intangibles
Long‐term/deferred liabilities 
Inventory 
Debtor 
Creditor 
Total Assets 
Total current assets 
Total current liabilities 
Number of issued shares 
Cash & Cash equuivalents 

Investors Information
Profitability Ratios
Gross profit ratio 
Profit / (loss) before tax to sales 
Profit / (loss) after tax in percent of sales 
EBITDA Margin to sales 
Return on equity/ capital employed

Activity / Turnover Ratios
Inventory turnover ratio (in times) 
Inventory turnover ratio (no. of days)
Debtor turnover ratio (in times) 
Debtor turnover ratio(no.ofdays) 
Creditor turnover ratio (in times) 
Creditor turnover ratio (no. of days)
Operating cycle (no. of days) 
Total assets turnover ratio (in times)
Total assets turnover ratio (in days)

Liquidity Ratios
Current ratio 
Quick/ acid test ratio 
Cash to Current Liabilities 

Investment/Market Ratios
Earnings / (loss) per share 
Break‐up value per share 

Cash Flows
Net cash flows (used in) / from operating activities

Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash flows from / (used in) financing activities

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents

Six Years Summary 

  4,494,627 
  166,150 

  40,311 
  95,293
  26,839

  -   
  -   

  26,653

  224,888 
  384,562 
  1,103,518 
  608,758 

  44,925 
  87,747 
  112,827 

  1,696,427
  539,735 
  478,217
  22,489 
  96,296 

3.70%
0.59%
0.60%
2.12%

4.40%

  135.14 
  3 

  51.25 
  7 

  39.20 
  9 
  1 

  2.67 
  136.47 

  1.13 
  1.03 

  0.20 

  1.19 
  27.10 

  (107,251)

  (45,839)

  5,503 

  (147,587)

    2,591,297 
  33,489 

  (137,139)
  (43,951)

  (119,754)
  -   
  -   

  (164,128)

  224,888 
  351,679 

  1,086,882 
  466,572 

  19,134 
  87,665 

  108,026 
  1,664,543 

  524,134 
  621,404 
  22,489 
  92,822 

1.29%
-6.33%
-4.62%
-1.70%

-20.77%

  81.16 
  4 

  46.09 
  8 

  20.73 
  18 

  (5)
  1.52 

  240.44 

  0.84 
  0.81 
  0.15 

  (5.33)
  25.64 

  (144,436)

  (20,224)

  (7,715)

  (172,375)

  2,582,454 
  133,816 

  (26,008)
  75,146 

  (109,469)
  -   

  22,640 
  (70,559)

  224,888 
  464,268 
  1,155,978 

  431,771 
  43,901 
  24,776 

  138,743 
  1,749,450 

  420,223 
  628,523 

  22,489 
  265,197 

5.18%
-2.73%
-4.24%

2.91%
-15.88%

  41.04 
  9 

  107.16 
  3 

  21.28 
  17 

  (5)
  1.48 

  246.02 

  0.67 
  0.60 
  0.42 

  (4.87)
  30.64 

  153,889 

  (48,003)

  (14,421)

  91,465  

  3,249,870 
  215,355 
  69,866 
  177,939 
  25,857 

  -   
  16,980 
  64,974 

  224,888 
  594,556 
  1,120,320 
  388,579 

  75,422 
  23,422 
  91,342 

  1,731,847 
  437,872 
  523,824 

  22,489 
  173,732 

6.63%
2.00%
0.80%
5.48%
3.16%

  35.54 
  10 

  158.24 
  2 

  22.42 
  16 

  (4)
  1.87 

  195.54 

  0.84 
  0.69 
  0.33 

  1.15 
  36.44 

  99,849 

  (29,067)

  (7,972)

  62,810  

     2,926,076 
  232,513 
  83,557 
  173,717 
  19,596 

  -   
  22,489 
  53,581 

  224,888 
  547,533 

  1,195,638 
  377,031 
  95,341 
  17,654 

  179,374 
  1,750,238 
  402,295 
  600,786 

  22,489 
  110,922 

7.95%
1.83%

0.67%
5.94%
2.54%

  36.87 
  10 

  258.32 
  1 

  19.01 
  19 

  (8)
  1.72 

  211.68 

  0.67 
  0.51 
  0.18 

  0.87 
  34.35 

  68,580 

  (61,494)

  (8,088)

  (1,002)

    1,826,825 
  209,820 

  85,793 
  160,532 
  29,033 

  -   
  22,489 
  50,631 

  224,888 
  553,431 
  1,221,019 
  382,437 
  50,755 

  5,001 
  104,014 

  1,643,693 
  301,658 
  482,937 

  22,489 
  111,924 

11.49%
2.77%
1.59%
8.79%
3.73%

  36.63 
  10 

  222.77 
  2 

  13.82 
  26 

  (15)
  1.12 

  325.08 

  0.62 
  0.52 
  0.23 

  1.29 
  34.61 

  187,794 

  (151,638)

  (17,101)

  19,055 

 2022 2021 2020 2019      2018  2017
 Restated



HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS  
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Non‐current assets 
Current assets 
Total assets 

Equity 
Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets
Non‐current liabilities 
Current Liabilities 
Total equity and liabilities 

Net sales 
Cost of product sold 
Gross profit 

Administrative expenses 
Distribution and marketing expenses 
Other income 
Other expenses 

Operating profit 

Finance costs 

Profit / (loss) before taxation 

Balance Sheet

Non‐current assets 
Current assets 
Total assets 

Equity 
Non‐current liabilities
Current Liabilities 
Total equity and liabilities 

Net sales 
Cost of product sold 
Gross profit 

Administrative expenses 
Distribution and marketing expenses 
Other operating income 
Other operating expenses 

Operating profit 

Finance costs 

Profit before taxation 

 1,156,692 
 539,735 

 1,696,427 

 272,737
 336,715 

 608,758 
 478,217 

 1,696,427 

 4,494,627 
 (4,328,477)

 166,150

 (115,922)
 (68,977)

 67,122 
 (8,062)

 (125,839)
 40,311 

 (13,658)

 26,653 

2022

1.43%
2.98%
1.92%

13.57%
30.47%

-23.04%
1.92%

73.45%
69.23%

396.13%

-7.07%
3.81%

127.89%
-9.37%

-129.39%

-49.39%

116.24%
 

 1,140,409 
 524,134 

 1,664,543 

 240,152 
 336,415 
 466,572 
 621,404 

 1,664,543 

 2,591,297 
 (2,557,808)

 33,489 

 (124,738)
 (66,446)

 29,454 
 (8,898)

 (170,628)
 (137,139)

 (26,989)

 (164,128)

2021

-14.21%
24.73%
-4.85%

-31.92%
8.06%
-1.13%

-4.85%

0.34%
4.46%

-74.97%

11.82%
-5.88%

-15.84%
-29.74%

427.30%

-38.93%

-133.80%

 

 1,329,227 
 420,223 

 1,749,450 

 352,741 
 336,415 
 431,771 

 628,523 
 1,749,450 

 2,582,454 
 (2,448,638)

 133,816 

 (111,555)
 (70,600)

 34,996 
 (12,665)

 (159,824)
 (26,008)

 (44,191)

 (70,199)

2020

2.72%
-4.03%

1.02%

-35.24%
11.12%

19.99%
1.02%

-20.54%
-19.31%

-37.86%

4.67%
2.65%

-17.94%
-0.89%

-137.23%

803.33%

-208.04%

 

 1,293,975 
 437,872 
 1,731,847 

 544,679 
 274,765 
 388,579 
 523,824 
 1,731,847 

 3,249,870 
 (3,034,515)

 215,355 

 (106,575)
 (68,780)

 42,645 
 (12,779)

 (145,489)
 69,866 

 (4,892)

 64,974 

2019

-4.00%
8.84%
-1.05%

9.45%
3.06%

-12.81%
-1.05%

11.07%
12.66%
-7.38%

-1.95%
7.09%

20.04%
10.48%

-16.39%

-83.68%

21.26%

 1,347,943 
 402,295 

 1,750,238 

 497,656 
 274,765 
 377,031 

 600,786 
 1,750,238 

 2,926,076 
 (2,693,563)

 232,513 

 (108,690)
 (64,224)

 35,525 
 (11,567)

 (148,956)
 83,557 

 (29,976)

 53,581 

2018

0.44%
33.36%
6.48%

-1.17%
-1.41%

24.40%
6.48%

60.17%
66.58%
10.82%

18.01%
2.35%

-28.68%
-39.07%

-2.61%

-14.75%

5.83%

 1,342,035 
 301,658 

 1,643,693 

 503,554 
 274,765 
 382,437 
 482,937 

 1,643,693 

 1,826,825 
 (1,617,005)

 209,820 

 (92,102)
 (62,752)

 49,812 
 (18,985)

 (124,027)
 85,793 

 (35,162)

 50,631 

2017

4.98%
-9.12%
2.07%

-0.75%
-17.53%
32.51%
2.07%

-9.24%
-13.60%
48.46%

13.97%
-3.88%
10.37%

-16.55%

387.13%

11.34%

-462.48%

% increase / (decrease) over preceeding year

 2022 2021 2020 2019      2018  2017
 Restated
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The total number of directors are eight (08) as per the following:

The composition of board is as follows:

The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than Seven listed 
companies, including this company;

The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been 
taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures;

The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies 
of the Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant policies 
along with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the company;

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken 
by Board/ Shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations;

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected 
by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations 
with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of Board;

The Board of directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of Directors
in accordance with the Act and these Regulations;

Male - 6
Female - 2

1.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

2.

a.
b.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED 
COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019
Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited
Year Ending June 30, 2022

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

Maj. Gen (R.) Rafiullah Khan (R)
Mr. Shaikh Abdus Sami

Ms. Hamdia Fatin Niazi
Ms. Shahbano Hameed
Mr. Khalid Dar
Mr. Osman Malik

Mr. Asad Alam Niazi
Mr. Saifee Zakiuddin

Independent Director

Category Name

Non-Executive Directors

Executive Directors



Seven (7) directors are qualified under the directors training program and one (1) director will complete 
the training in next financial year. During the year, the board did not arrange training program for its 
directors, however in next financial year, the Board planned to arrange training program for its directors;

The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal 
Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant 
requirements of the Regulations;

Chief financial officer and Chief executive officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval 
of the Board;

The Board has formed following Committees comprising of members given below:

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the
Committee for compliance.

The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/yearly) of the Committees were as per following:

       Audit Committee                  05 meetings were held during the year

       HR and Remuneration Committee   01 meeting was held during the year

The Board has set up an effective internal audit function, who are considered suitably qualified and 
experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company;

The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating 
under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and 
registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with 
International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not 
a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the chief executive officer, 
chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director of the Company;

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other 
services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and 
the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard;

Maj. Gen Rafiullah Khan (R)   Chairman
Mr. Shaikh Abdus Sami   Member
Ms. Hamdia Fatin Niazi   Member

Maj. Gen Rafiullah Khan (R)   Chairman
Mr. Asad Alam Niazi    Member
Ms. Hamdia Fatin Niazi   Member
Mr. Saifee Zakiuddin    Member

Audit Committee

Human Resource and Remuneration Committee

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

a.

b.

a.

b.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED 
COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019



STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED 
COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

We confirm that all requirements of the regulations 3,6,7,8,27,32,33 and 36 of the Regulations have been 
complied with except for the following non-compliance:

       As per regulation 6(1), each listed company shall have at least two or one third members of the Board,
      whichever is higher, as independent directors.

Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 
(non-mandatory requirements) are below:

18.

19.

RequirementS.no Explanation Reg. No.

Majority of Non-executive 
directors in HR &amp;
Remuneration Committee.

1.

2. All the directors on their Boards 
have acquired the prescribed 
certification under any director 
training program offered by 
institutions, local or foreign, that 
meet the criteria specified by 
the Commission and approved 
by it, by June 30, 2022.

Due to the appointment of one 
independent director on Board 
this requirement will meet by 
induction of that independent 
Director.

28(1)

19(1)(iii)Director training is in process 
and will complete the training in 
next financial year.

Shaikh Abdus Sami
Chairman

Asad Alam Niazi
Director / CEO

Dated: September 13, 2022

a.
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ASSETS    
 NON-CURRENT ASSETS   
  Property, plant and equipment  
  Intangible assets  
  Long-term investment  
  Long-term loans  
  Long-term deposits  
    
 CURRENT ASSETS   
  Stores and spares  
  Stock-in-trade  
  Trade debts  
  Loans and advances   
  Deposits, prepayments and other receivables  
  Taxation - net  
  Cash and bank balances  
    
TOTAL ASSETS    
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    
 SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES   
  Authorized share capital  
  Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital  
  Capital reserves  
     Revaluation surplus of property  
     Other reserves  
  Revenue reserve  
    
 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES   
  Long-term loan  
  Lease liabilities  
  Deferred taxation - net  
  Cylinder and regulator deposits  
    
 CURRENT LIABILITIES   
  Loan from a subsidiary company  
  Trade and other payables  
  Short-term loan  
  Short-term borrowings  
  Unclaimed dividends  
  Accrued mark-up  
  Current portion of long-term loan  
  Current portion of lease liabilities  
    
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS    
    
The annexed notes from 1 to 55 form an integral part of these financial statements.   
 

8
9
10
11

12
13
14
15
16
17
18

19
20

21
21
22

23
24
25
26

27
28
29
30
31
32
23
24

33

 834,143 
 269,375 
 50,000 

 -   
 3,174 

 1,156,692 

 4,673 
 44,925 
 87,747 
 56,529 

 124,908 
 124,657 
 96,296 

 539,735 
 1,696,427 

 900,000 
 224,888 

 336,715 
 122,981 

 (75,132)
 609,452 

 114,345 
 18,871 
 9,345 

 466,197 
 608,758 

 50,000 
 112,827 
 45,000 
 151,061 
 83,050 

 3,205 
 23,770 
 9,304 

 478,217 
 1,696,427 

  807,389 
 279,493 
 50,000 

 353 
 3,174 

 1,140,409 

 3,873 
 19,134 

 87,665 
 72,027 
 141,652 
 106,961 
 92,822 

 524,134 
 1,664,543 

 900,000 
 224,888 

 336,415 
 117,235 

 (101,971)
 576,567 

 -   
 9,942 

 18,368 
 438,262 
 466,572 

 50,000 
 108,026 

 -   
 -   

 83,198 
 119,392 

 254,439 
 6,349 

 621,404 
 1,664,543 

---(Rupees in '000) ---

2022 2021

Note

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICERDIRECTOR

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30,2022



CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICERDIRECTOR

Sales - net    
Cost of sales    
Gross profit    
Administrative expenses    
Distribution and marketing expenses    
Other income    
Other expenses    
    
Operating profit / (loss)    
Financial costs    
Profit / (loss) before taxation    
Taxation    
Profit / (loss) for the year    
    
    

    
Earnings / (loss) per share - basic and diluted    
    
    
The annexed notes from 1 to 55 form an integral part of these financial statements.   
 
   

34
35

36
37
38
39

40

41

42
  
 
  
 

 4,494,627 
 (4,328,477)

 166,150 
 (115,922)
 (68,977)

 67,122 
 (8,062)

 (125,839)
 40,311 

 (13,658)
 26,653

 186 
 26,839 

 1.19 

   
   

 2,591,297 
 (2,557,808)

 33,489 
 (124,738)
 (66,446)

 29,454 
 (8,898)

 (170,628)
 (137,139)
 (26,989)
 (164,128)

 44,374 
 (119,754)

 (5.33)

   
   

---(Rupees in '000) ---

---(In Rupees) ---

2022 2021

Note

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2022



CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICERDIRECTOR

Profit / (loss) for the year    
    
Other comprehensive income    
 Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to 
   statement of profit or loss:   
    
 Surplus on revaluation of property   
 Actuarial gain on remeasurement of retirement and 
    other service benefits    
   
 Less: deferred taxation thereon   
    
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year    
    
The annexed notes from 1 to 55 form an integral part of these financial statements.   
 

   

21.1.1

44.1.7

  26,839

 

300 

 8,215 
 

(2,469)
 6,046 

 32,885

  (119,754)

 -   

 10,092 
 

(2,927)
 7,165 

 (112,589)

---(Rupees in '000) ---

2022 2021

Note

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2022
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICERDIRECTOR

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES    
 Cash used in operations   
 Retirement and other service benefits paid   
 Taxes paid   
 Finance costs paid   
 Long-term loans - net   
 Long-term deposits - net   
 Cylinder and regulator deposits - net    
Net cash flows used in operating activities    
    
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES    
 Purchases of property, plant and equipment   
 Proceeds from property, plant and equipment   
Net cash used in investing activities    
    
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES    
 Long-term loan repaid   
 Short-term loan received   
 Short-term loan paid   
 Dividends paid   
 Payment of lease liabilities   
Net cash flows generated from / (used in) financing activities    
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents    
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year    
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year    
    
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year comprise of:    
     Cash and bank balances    
     Short-term borrowings    
    
    
The annexed notes from 1 to 55 form an integral part of these financial statements.   
 
   

   

46 

18
30

  
 

 (86,300)
 (12,730)

 (29,002)
 (26,752)

 353 
 -   

 47,180 
 (107,251)

 (74,717)
 28,878 

 (45,839)

 (25,443)
 397,000 

 (352,000)
 (148)

 (13,906)
 5,503 

 (147,587)
 92,822 

 (54,765)

 96,296 
 (151,061)
 (54,765)

   

 (256,065)
 (8,660)
 (37,851)

 (1,613)
 135 

 119,587 
 40,031 

 (144,436)

 (25,724)
 5,500 

 (20,224)

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 (7,715)
 (7,715)

 (172,375)
 265,197 
 92,822 

 92,822 
 -   

 92,822 

---(Rupees in '000) ---

2022 2021

Note

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2022



LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS      
      
Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited (the Company) is a limited liability company incorporated in Pakistan 
and is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange. The registered office of the Company is situated at Suite 101, 
1st Floor, Horizon Vista, Commercial Plot No. 10, Block - 4, Scheme No. 5, Clifton, Karachi.
      
The principal activity of the Company is storing, marketing and trading of Liquefied Petroleum Gas (LPG) 
throughout Pakistan and trading of Low Pressure Regulators (LPR).      
      
The Company was a subsidiary of H.A.K.S. Trading (Private) Limited (HTPL). The major shareholder of HTPL 
was Mr. Asad Alam Niazi, Chief Executive of the holding company with 74.19% of the ordinary shares while 
various other shareholders held 25.81% shares. However, consequent to the approval of the scheme of 
arrangement for amalgamation of HTPL and the Company by the High Court of Sindh (the Court), HTPL 
was amalgamated with the Company on February 20, 2015, as further explained in note 7.      
            
These unconsolidated financial statements are separate financial statements of the Company in which 
investment in subsidiary is accounted for at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. In addition, 
the Company prepares consolidated financial statements which comprise of the Company's financial 
statements and its subsidiary's financial statements i.e. Burshane Auto Gas (Private) Limited being 100% 
owned subsidiary. The Company's another subsidiary which is Burshane Trading (Private) Limited's share 
capital has not been issued as at the reporting date.     
      
GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION AND ADDRESSES OF BUSINESS UNITS      
      
Geographical location and addresses of major business units of the Company are as under:      
      
 Karachi:                                                                Purpose:
       
 Plot No. 70, Sector 7-D, Korangi Filling Plant-1,
 Adjacent to Pakistan Refinery Limited, Korangi Creek                LPG Storage & filling plant
            
 Faisalabad:      
      
 Square No. 94, Killa no. 1,2,3,4,5,6 & 7, Tehsil Faisalabad,
 Near Abbaspur Railway Station."                                        LPG Storage & filling plant
            
BASIS OF PREPARATION      
      
Statement of compliance      
      
These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the approved 
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The approved accounting and reporting 
standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:      
           
  -   International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting  
            Standards Board ( IASB ) as notified under the Companies Act , 2017; and     
        
   -   Provisions of and directives issued under the Act.     
      
Where provisions of and directives issued under the Act differ from the IFRS Standards, the provisions of 
and directives issued under the Act have been followed.      
      

1 

1.1 

1.2

1.3

2 

3 

3.1 

  
  
  

  

  
 

  
 

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2022



Basis of measurement      
      
These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, 
unless stated otherwise in accounting policy.      
      
Separate financial statements      
      
These unconsolidated financial statements represent the separate financial statements of the 
Company. The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary are presented 
separately.
       
Functional and presentation currency      
      
These unconsolidated financial statements have been presented in Pakistani ('Rupees') or 'Rs.', which is 
the Company's functional and presentation currency.      
      
APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS TO PUBLISHED 
ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING STANDARDS      
      
New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for the 
year ended June 30, 2022      
      
      
The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended June 30, 2022. 
These standards, amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the Company's operations 
or are not expected to have material impact on the financial statements other than certain additional 
disclosures.            
                                           Effective date 
                                                 (annual periods 
                                              beginning on or after)
      
Interest Rate Benchmarch Reform - Phase 2
(Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16)                                            January 01, 2021
      
Amendments to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Extended practical relief  
regarding Covid - 19 related rent consessions                               

New accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet effective    
 
The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting periods, 
beginning on or after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards, amendments and inter-
pretations are either not relevant to the Company's operations or are not expected to have material 
impact on the Company's financial statements other than certain additional  disclosures.

Amendments to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations' - Reference 
to the conceptual framework     
     
Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' 
Classification of liabilities as current or non-current     
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Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' 
- Disclosure of Accounting Policies     
     
     
Amendments to IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors' - Definition of Accounting Estimates     
     
     
Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes' - Deferred Tax related to 
Assets and Liabilities arising from a single transaction     
     
     
Amendments to IAS 16 'Property, Plant and Equipment' - 
Proceeds before intended use     
     
     
Amendments to IAS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets' - Onerous Contracts - Cost of fulfilling a contract     
     
     
Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRSs.

The following new standards and interpretations have been issued by the International Accounting 
Standards Board (IASB), which have not been adopted locally by the Securities and Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan (SECP):      

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES      
      
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial 
statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, 
unless stated otherwise.

Property, plant and equipment       
      
Owned      
      
These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses if any, 
except for freehold land and leasehold land, which are stated at revalued amount.      
      
      
Depreciation is charged to profit or loss using straight-line method whereby the cost of an asset is 
allocated over its estimated useful life at the rates given in note 8.1. Depreciation on additions is charged 
from the month in which the asset is available for use, while no depreciation is charged in the month in 
which the asset is disposed off. The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed 
and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date.       
  

First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards; and

Insurance Contracts.
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Subsequent costs are included in the assets’ carrying amount or recognised as a separate 
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with 
the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The 
carrying amount of the replace part is derecognised. Maintenance and normal repairs are 
charged to profit or loss as and when incurred. 
     
The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference between 
the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised as an income or 
expense in the profit or loss in the period of disposal.      
      
A revaluation surplus is recorded in other comprehensive income (OCI) and credited to the 
asset revaluation surplus in equity. However, the increase is recorded in the profit or loss to the 
extent it reverses a revaluation deficit of the same asset previously. A decrease as a result of 
revaluation is recognised in the profit or loss however, a decrease is recorded in other 
comprehensive income to the extent of any credit balance entry in revaluation surplus in 
respect of same asset.

Right of use assets      
      
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at the amount of lease liability adjusted for any 
lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct cost 
incurred and an estimate of cost to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore 
the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.    
  
      
The right of use asset is subsequently depreciated using straight line method from the date 
of commencement date to the earlier of the end of useful life of the right of use asset or the 
end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of the right of use assets are determined on 
the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. In addition, the right of use asset 
is periodically reduced by the impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain 
remeasurement of the lease liability.

Capital work-in-progress      
      
Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. It 
consists of expenditure incurred in respect of tangible assets in the course of their 
construction and installation, including financial charges on borrowings, if any, for financing 
the project until such projects are completed or become operational. Transfers are made to 
relevant asset category as and when assets are available for use.      
      
Intangible assets      
      
An intangible asset is recognised if it is probable that the future economic benefits 
attributable to the asset will flow to the Company and that the cost of such asset can also be 
measured reliably. 

Intangible assets, where applicable, are amortised from the month when such assets are 
available for use on straight line method whereby the cost of an intangible asset is allocated 
over its estimated useful life, at the rates given in note 9.      
      
The useful lives of intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine   
whether events  and circumstances continue to support an indefinite useful life assessment 
for the asset.      
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Software      
      
Costs that are directly associated with identifiable computer software and have probable 
economic benefits exceeding one year, are recognised as an intangible asset. Costs include 
the purchase cost of software, implementation cost and related overhead cost. Intangible 
assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial 
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any 
accumulated impairment losses thereon.      
      
Expenditure which enhances or extends the performance of computer software beyond its 
original specification and useful life is recognised as a capital improvement and added to the 
original cost of the software.      
      
Goodwill      
      
This represents excess of cost of acquisition over fair value of the identifiable assets and 
liabilities of the Company at the time of amalgamation by HTPL.      
        
Goodwill on acquisition is not amortised but tested annually for impairment and carried at cost 
less accumulated impairment losses, if  any.      
      
Trademarks
      
This represents separately acquired trade marks with indefinite useful life. These are stated at 
cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Carrying amounts of trademarks are subject 
to impairment review at each reporting date.      
      
Investment in a subsidiary company      
      
Investment in subsidiary is initially recognised and subsequently stated at cost. At subsequent 
reporting dates, the recoverable amounts are estimated to determine the extent of 
impairment losses, if any, and carrying amounts of the investment is adjusted accordingly.   
       
The gain or loss on disposal of an interest in subsidiary, represented by the difference between 
the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of investment, is recognised as an income or 
expense in  profit or loss in the period of disposal.      
      
Stores and spares      
      
Stores and spares to be consumed in the ordinary course of business are valued at First in First 
Out (FIFO) basis and net realizable value (NRV) except for those in transit, if any, which are 
stated at cost. Cost comprises of invoice value plus other direct costs incurred thereon. 
Provision is made for slow moving and obsolete items wherever necessary and is recognised in 
profit or loss.      
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Stock-in-trade            
Stock-in-trade is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value (NRV). Cost is 
determined using the weighted average method for both Liquefied Petroleum Gas (LPG) and 
Low Pressure Regulators (LPR). Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus 
other charges incurred thereon.             
Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business 
less estimated cost necessary to be incurred to make the sale.      
      
Trade debts and other receivables      
      
Trade debts and other receivables are stated initially at fair value and subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less provision for 
impairment, if any. A provision for impairment is established  under expected credit loss 
approach. Trade debts and other receivables are written-off when considered irrecoverable. 

Cash and cash equivalents      
      
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, cash with banks on current, collection, 
deposit and saving accounts and short-term running finance. Running finances under 
mark-up arrangements are shown with short term borrowings in current liabilities on the 
statement of financial position.      
      
Retirement and other service benefits      
      
Defined benefit plan      
      
The Company operates:      
      
an approved defined benefit gratuity scheme for all permanent employees and non 
management employees. The scheme provides for a graduated scale of benefits dependent 
on the length of service of the employee on terminal date, subject to the completion of 
minimum qualifying period of service. Gratuity is based on employee’s last drawn salary; and

an approved defined benefit pension scheme for management staff. The scheme provides 
pension based on the employees’ last drawn salary subject to the completion of minimum 
qualifying period of service. Pensions are payable for life and thereafter to surviving spouses 
and / or dependent children.

Both the above schemes are funded and contributions to them are made monthly on the 
basis of actuarial valuation and in line with the provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. 
The gratuity and pension funds are governed under the Trust Act, 1882, Trust Deed and Rules of 
Fund, repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and the Income 
Tax Rules, 2002. Responsibility for governance of plan, including investment decisions and 
contribution schedule lies with the Board of Trustees of the Funds. Further, monthly 
contributions are made by employees in the defined benefit pension fund at the rate of 1.4% 
and 1.72% according to their job grades. Actuarial valuations of these schemes are carried out 
at an appropriate regular intervals.       
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Defined contribution plan      
      
The Company operates a recognised contributory provident fund for all permanent 
employees. Equal monthly contributions are made, both by the Company and the employees 
at the rate of 4.25% and 10% per annum of the basic salary for management and 
non-management employees, respectively.       
      
Lease liabilities      
      
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments over 
the lease term, discounted using the specific incremental borrowing rate. Subsequently lease 
liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.       
      
It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in 
the rate, if there is a change in the Company's estimate of the amount expected to be 
payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of 
whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.      
      
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the 
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying 
amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero. 

Loans and borrowings      
      
Loans and borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. 
Loan and borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost using the effective interest 
rate method.      
      
Loans and borrowings are classified as current liabilities, unless the Company has an 
unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the 
reporting date.      
      
Trade and other payables      
      
These are stated initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using 
the effective interest rate method. Exchange gains and losses arising in respect of liabilities in 
foreign currency are added to the carrying amount of the respective liability. 

Provisions      
      
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation 
as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to 
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate. 
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Taxation      
      
Current      
      
Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after 
taking into account tax credits and rebates available, if any, or Minimum Tax on Turnover or 
Alternate Corporate Tax, whichever is higher in accordance with the provisions of Income Tax 
Ordinance, 2001.      
        
Deferred      
      
Deferred tax is recognized using the liability method, on all temporary differences arising at 
the reporting date between the tax base of asset and liabilities and their carrying amounts for 
financial reporting purposes.      
      
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax asset 
are recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that 
the future taxable profits will be available against which the asset may be utilised. Deferred 
tax asset are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will 
be realised.      
      
The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to 
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow 
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recognised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are 
reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become 
probable that future taxable profit will allow deferred tax asset to be recovered.      
      
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to 
the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates (and tax 
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.      
      
Foreign currencies       
      
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into functional currency (Pakistani Rupees) 
using exchange rates approximating those ruling at the dates of the transactions. Monetary 
assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani Rupees at the rates of 
exchange prevailing at the reporting date. Exchange gains and losses resulting from the 
settlement of foreign currency transactions and translation of monetary assets and liabilities 
at the rates prevailing at the reporting date are included in profit or loss. Non-monetary items 
that are measured in terms of a historical cost in  foreign currency are not re-translated. 
     
Borrowing costs       
      
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which these are incurred 
except where such costs are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or 
production of a qualifying asset, in which case such costs are capitalised as part of the cost 
of that asset.      
      
Dividend and appropriation to reserves      
      
Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognised in the financial statements in 
the period in which these are approved. 
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Earnings per share      
      
The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary 
shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary 
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss 
attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, if any.      
      
Financial instruments       
      
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a 
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.      

Financial assets       
      
Initial recognition and measurement 

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost; fair value 
through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) or fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). 

The classification of financial assets is based on the business model in which a financial asset 
is managed and its contractual cash flow characteristics.      
      
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions 
and is not designated as at FVTPL:      
      
-      it  is  held  within  a  business  model   whose  objective  is  to  hold  assets  to  collect
     contractual cash flows; and       
      
-      its  contractual  terms  give  rise  on  specified  dates  to  cash  flows  that  are  solely
      payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.     
      
A debt instrument is measured at FVTOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 
designated as at FVTPL:      
      
-     it  is  held  within  a  business  model  whose  objective is achieved by both collecting
      contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and     
      
-     its  contractual  terms  give  rise  on  specified  dates  to  cash  flows  that  are  solely
     payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.     
        
On initial recognition of a equity instrument that is not held for trading, the Company may 
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI. This 
election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.      
      

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI as described 
above are measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial 
recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets 
the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI as at FVTPL if doing so 
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.
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A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component 
that is initially measured at the transaction price, determined under IFRS 15) is initially 
measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to its acquisition.      

Subsequent measurement
 
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:  

-     Financial assets at  FVTPL - The  Company has not designated  any  financial  asset as
    fair value through profit or loss;      
      
-     Financial assets at amortised  cost - The Company  subsequently measures  financial
     assets  at amortised cost using effective interest  rate (EIR) method and are subject to 
    impairment.  Gains and losses  are recognised in  the profit  or  loss  when the asset  is
    derecognised, modified or impaired;     

-     Debt instruments at FVTOCI - The  Company  has  not  designated  any financial asset
    at fair  value through  OCI  with  or without recycling  of  cumulative  gains and  losses;
    and upon recognition.     

Derecognition 
     
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of 
similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Company’s 
unconsolidated statement of financial position) when: 

-    The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or      
      
-    The Company  has  transferred  its  rights  to  receive  cash flows from the asset or has
    assumed  an  obligation  to  pay  the received cash flows in full without material delay
    to  a  third  party  under  a  ‘pass-through’  arrangement;  and either (a) the Company 
    has   transferred   substantially   all   the  risks  and  rewards  of  the  asset,   or  (b)  the
    Company has  neither  transferred  nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
    of the asset,  but has transferred control of the asset.     

When the  Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has 
entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained 
the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially 
all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the  Company 
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. In 
that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the 
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the 
Company has retained.      

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is 
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum 
amount of consideration that the  Company could be required to repay.      
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Impairment / expected credit losses on financial assets      
      
The  Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses ("ECL") for all debt 
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference 
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash 
flows that the  Company expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an 
approximation to the asset’s original effective interest rate.      
  
The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 180 days 
past due. However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be 
in default when internal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to 
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit 
enhancements held by the Company. A financial asset is written off when there is no 
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.      
   
The  Company uses the IFRS 9's simplified approach and calculates ECL based on life-time 
ECL on its trade debt and contract assets, where as for other financial assets loss allowance 
is measured at 12 months ECL under general approach of measuring ECL. For trade debts, the 
Company has established a provision matrix that is based on the Company’s historical credit 
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to such financial assets and the 
economic environment.       
    
The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast 
economic conditions and ECL is a significant estimate. The amount of ECL is sensitive to 
changes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Company's historical 
credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of 
customer’s actual default in future. The expected credit losses are recognised in the profit or 
loss.      
  
Financial liabilities      
      
Financial liabilities are generally classified at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at 
amortized cost.       
  
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and 
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
      
The Company financial liabilities include long-term loan, accrued mark-up on long-term 
loan, Lease Liability, cylinder and regulator deposits,  trade and other payables and loan from 
subsidiary company.      
  
Loans and borrowings 

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing 
loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. 
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well 
as through the EIR amortisation process.      
  
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition 
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as 
finance costs in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to interest-bearing loans 
and borrowings and trade and other payables.      
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Derecognition 
   
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same 
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially 
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying 
amounts is recognised in the profit or loss.       

Offsetting of financial instruments       
      
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the finan-
cial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts 
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities 
simultaneously.      
  
Revenue from contracts with customers
  
The Company is in the business of storing, marketing and trading of Liquefied Petroleum Gas 
(LPG) throughout Pakistan and trading of Low Pressure Regulators (LPR). Revenue from 
contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods is transferred to the 
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be 
entitled in exchange for those goods. The Company has generally concluded that it is the 
principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the goods or services 
before transferring them to the customer.

The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate 
performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated. In 
determining the transaction price for the sale of goods, the Company considers the effects of 
variable consideration, the existence of significant financing components, non-cash consid-
eration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any).            
 
Sale of LPG and LPR      
      
The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of LPG and LPR at LPG pump stations. 
Payment is generally due at the time of delivery. The revenue from sale of these products is 
recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer i.e. on 
delivery of products.      

The Company recognises an account receivable when the performance obligations have 
been met, recognising the corresponding revenue. Moreover, the consideration received 
before satisfying the performance obligations are recognised as advances from customer.  
    
Others      

 

iii)
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Return on saving account is recorded using effective interest rate method.

Other revenues including recovery of storage and handling charges and rental income 
from storage tank are accounted for on accrual basis.

Income from dividend, if any, is recognised when right to receive dividend is estalished. 



        
      
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting and 
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan requires the use of certain critical accounting 
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying 
the Company’s accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and 
are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events 
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future 
periods affected. In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, 
management has made the following estimates and judgments which are significant to 
these unconsolidated financial statements:      
  
Property, plant and equipment      
      
The Company reviews appropriateness of the rates of depreciation, useful lives and residual 
values used in the calculation of depreciation. Further, where applicable, an estimate of 
recoverable amount of assets is made for possible impairment on an annual basis.      
 
Intangible assets      
      
The Company reviews appropriateness of the rate of amortisation and useful life used in the 
calculation for amortisation. Further, where applicable, an estimate of recoverable amount of 
assets is made for possible impairment on an annual basis.
    
Taxation      
      
In making the estimates for current income taxes payable by the Company, the 
management considers the applicable laws and the decisions / judgements of appellate 
authorities on certain issues in the past. Accordingly, the recognition of deferred tax is also 
made, taking into account these judgements and the best estimates of future results of 
operations of the Company.      
  
Provision for retirement and other service benefits      
      
The present value of these obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined 
on actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. Any changes in these assumptions will 
impact the carrying amount  of these obligation. The present values of these obligations and 
the underlying assumptions are disclosed in note 44.      
   
AMALGAMATION WITH HOLDING COMPANY      
      
Effective February 20, 2015, the Company went through a scheme of amalgamation (the 
scheme) with its holding company consequent to the approval of the Scheme by the High 
Court of Sindh.      
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According to the Scheme, 0.31 ordinary shares of the Company, with a face value of Rs. 10 
each, were offered to the shareholders of HTPL for every one share held of HTPL, with a face 
value of Rs. 10 each. As per the Scheme, the Company is required to allot new shares to the 
shareholders of HTPL. Upon allotment of new shares, old shares of the Company, held by 
HTPL, shall stand cancelled and simultaneously HTPL shall stand dissolved without being 
wound up. Further, the cancellation of old shares and issuance of new shares, as per the 
swap ratio, will result in reduction of 151,154 shares of the Company. The Company is in the 
process of completing the legal formalities for issuance of new share certificates (refer 
note 20).      
      
As a result of the Scheme, the assets and liabilities of HTPL were amalgamated with the 
assets and liabilities of the Company based on the fair values as of February 19, 2015. The 
summary of assets and liabilities of HTPL amalgamated as above, is as under:

 Goodwill
 Property, plant and equipment
 Cash and bank balance 

Liabilities
 Long-term loan - secured
 Deferred taxation
 Trade and other payables
 Short-term loans
 Accrued mark-up on long-term loan

Net assets

Represented by:
 Unappropriated loss
 Revaluation surplus on property, plant 
 equipment
 Reserve on amalgamation

 253,091 
 559,529 

 51 
 812,671 

 400,000 
 14,863 
 2,247 

 30,646 
 17,508 

 465,264 
 347,407 

 (73,677)

 269,138 
 151,946 

 347,407 

Assets

Fair value as 
of February 

19, 2015

  
 
 

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

    Operating fixed assets
    Capital work-in-progress

Note

8.1
8.2

834,143
 -   

834,143

 807,389 
 -   

 807,389 

--- (Rupees in '000) ---
8
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 10,718 
9,092 

 24,210 
 44,020 

2022
(Rupees in '000)

 16,800 
 569,288 

   Covered Area 
   (Square feet) 

 

 
   

The depreciation charge for the year has 
been allocated as follows:     
     
    Cost of sales     
    Administrative expenses     
    Distribution and marketing expenses     

Note

35
36
37

 8,666 
 8,123 

 28,075 
 44,864 

    --- (Rupees in '000) --- 

These are in custody of distributors / customers owing to the nature of business of the 
Company. The particulars of these assets have not been disclosed due to a large number 
of customers.         
        
The Company possess leasehold lands of measuring  5.875 acres in Karachi. However, the 
he name of H.A.K.S Trading (Private) Limited (HTPL), the former Holding Company (refer note 
7).
    
The Company’s freehold land and leasehold land was revalued on February 15, 2022 by                                  
Limited, an independent valuer, on the basis of their professional assessment of present 
market value for similar sized plots in the near vicinity of land. The revaluation has resulted 
in surplus for freehold and leasehold land amounting to Rs. 0.30 million and Rs. Nil 
respectively.         
    
Had the revaluation not been carried out, the related figures of freehold land and leasehold 
land would have been Rs. 5.62 million (2021: Rs. 5.62 million) and Rs. 243.75 million (2021: Rs. 
243.75 million), respectively.         
     
The forced sales value as per the revaluation report as of February 15, 2022 and June 14, 2022 
is as follows:         
         

 Particulars of immovable assets of the Company are as follows:

Particulars    
   
Freehold land   
   
Leasehold land   

Usage of property 
 
For future business expansion 
 
For future business expansion 

Chak No. 245, Near Railway Station, 
Abbaspur, Faisalabad 
Commercial - cum- Residential Land 
Deh Okewari, Shahrah - e - Faisal Survey 
# 47 
 
 

8.1.3

8.1.4

8.1.5

8.1.6

8.1.7

8.1.8

2022 2021

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS      
AS AT JUNE 30,2022

Class of asset   
   
Freehold land   
Leasehold land   

104,544 

107,811 



 40,293 

 9,710

6,380

  -   
 25,724 

 (25,724)
 -   

  

2021
 

8.2

9

Usage of property particulars 
Covered Area 
 (Square feet) 

Leasehold land  
  
  

Building on leasehold 
land  
  
  
  
Leasehold land  

Plant site  
 
 

 
Plant site  
  

For future business 
expansion 

Commercial - cum- Residential Land 
Deh Okewari, Shahrah - e - Faisal Survey 
# 74 
 
Plot No. 70, Sector 7-D,Korangi Filling 
Plant-1, Adjacent to Pakistan Refinery 
Limited, Korangi Creek, Karachi 
 
LPG Storage & Filling Plant, Near Railway 
Station, Abbaspur, Faisalabad 
 

CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS      
     
    Balance as at July 01     
    Additions (at cost)     
    Transfer to property, plant and equipment  
    Balance as at June 30     

INTANGIBLE ASSETS    

 
 -   

 100,722     
     (100,722)

 -   
     

2022

     ---(Rupees in '000)--- 

                          
                

Goodwill (note 9.2) 253,091   -             -             253,091    -           -                    - -             253,091    Nil
Computer software 4,272        -             -             4,272        4,024        88 - 4,112          160           20%
Rights under 

Supply contracts (notes 9.3) 50,150      -             -             50,150      32,596      10,030              - 42,626        7,524        20%
Trademarks (note 9.2 & 9.4) 8,600        -             -             8,600        -           - - -             8,600        Nil

2022 316,113    -             -             316,113    36,620      10,118 - 46,738        269,375    

Goodwill (note 9.2) 253,091    -             253,091    - -                    - 253,091 Nil
Computer software 5,007        -             4,272        4,671        88                     735 248 20%
Rights under 

Supply contracts (notes 9.3) 394,856    -                 50,150      328,222    49,080              344,706        17,554 20% - 33%
Trademarks (note 9.2 & 9.4) 8,600        - 8,600 -           - -                    8,600 Nil

2021 661,554    - 

-             
(735)           

(344,706)
-             

(345,441)    316,113 332,893    49,168 345,441                   

-             
4,024          

32,596 
-             

36,620 279,493    

Rate of 
amortisation

As at July 
01, 2020

Charge for the 
year (note 9.5)

As at June 
30, 2021

As at June 
30, 2021

--------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ---------------------------------------------------------

Cost Accumulated Amortisation
Net Book 

Value

As at July 
01, 2020 Additions As at June 

30, 2021Disposals Reversal

Rate of 
amortisation

--------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ---------------------------------------------------------

Cost Accumulated Amortisation
Net Book 

Value

As at July 
01, 2021 Additions Disposals As at June 

30, 2022
As at July 
01, 2021

Charge for the 
year (note 9.5) Reversal As at June 

30, 2022
As at June 
30, 2022
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At June 30, 2022, intangible assets having cost of Rs. 3.84 million (2021: Rs. 3.84 million) are 
fully amortised.         
       
This represents excess of cost of acquisition over fair value of the identifiable assets and 
liabilities of the Company at the time of acquisition by HTPL (refer note 7).         
      
Impairment review of goodwill and trademarks:         
         
The carrying amount of goodwill has been allocated to Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited, 
which is the cash generating unit (CGU) and also the only operating and reportable segment 
for impairment review.         
         

The Company performed its annual impairment review in June 2022 and June 2021. The 
Company considers the relationship between its recoverable amount and its book value, 
among other factors, when reviewing for indicators of impairment. At June 30, 2022, the 
recoverable amount of the CGU was above the book value of its net assets, indicating no 
potential impairment of goodwill and impairment of the assets of the operating segment. 
The result of this impairment test depends to a large extent on Management’s assessment of 
future cash inflows and the discount rate used, and is therefore subject to considerable 
uncertainty. The recoverable amount is the higher of the 'fair value less cost to sell' and the 
'value‐in‐use'. The assumptions are assessed at each reporting date and adjusted when 
appropriate.         
        
The Company uses a Discounted Cash Flow model (DCF) to determine the value in use. Cash 
flow projections for the first five years are based on budgeting and forecasting models 
endorsed by the Company’s Management. After five years a terminal value calculation is 
applied. Within the DCF techniques the terminal value is determined by applying a perpetual 
growth rate to the perpetual free cash flows. With respect to the appropriateness of the future 
cash inflows used in the calculation management used budgets of five-year plan adopted 
by Management and approved by the Board of Directors, as well as by comparison with 
general and sector-specific market expectations.
    
The Company applied a discount rate of 16.78% to the forecasted free cash flow based on a 
WACC of the Company. The WACC is an average cost of capital consisting of two parts - cost 
of debt and cost of equity.          
      
As the Company’s capital consists of 32.18% debt and 67.82% equity. Calculating the cost of 
equity was done by applying the capital asset pricing model (“CAPM”). The assumptions 
applied in the CAPM included the following: a risk-free rate of 10% a beta of 0.84 for the 
Company and an equity risk premium of 10.67%. The risk-free rate was based on the yield of 
ten-year Pakistan Investment Bonds on the Date of Valuation as per the State Bank of 
Pakistan. Combining these assumptions yielded a cost of equity of 18.96%. The cost of debt 
net of tax is an average of 12.18%.         
         
         

--- (Rupees in '000) --- 

 253,091 
 8,600 

2022 2021

 253,091 
 8,600 

Carrying amount of goodwill
Carrying amount of trademarks
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The recoverable amount of CGU amounting to Rs. 1,586.01 million as at June 30, 2022 has been 
determined based on a value-in-use. The Value in Use of the Company indicated by the 
Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) method approximates to Rs. 1,586.01 million. The carrying value 
of net assets (including goodwill) as of the valuation date is Rs. 609.45 million. As the 
Value-in-use exceeds the carrying value of net assets (including goodwill), no impairment in 
goodwill has been identified as a result of this review.         
      
         
The Company tested its trademark "Burshane" as at June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021 for 
impairment. Value-in-use of Rs. 779.80 million as at June 30, 2022 of the trademarks has been 
calculated using Relief from Royalty Method. This method considers the royalties saved by 
owning the intellectual property rather than licensing it. It is commonly used in the valuation 
of similar assets and, from a valuation perspective, appears reasonable in this case.      
   
     
Key assumptions used in value in use calculations:         
         
The calculation of value-in-use for both CGU and trademarks, is most sensitive to the 
following assumptions:         
        
   Sales volume growth         
   Discount rates         
   Market share during the forecast period         
   Royalty rate used for the forecast period         
   Growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the forecast period         
         
Sales volume growth         
         
Value in use is sensitive to sales volume growth. Sales volume growth has been assumed to 
increase in line with management's expectations of market share.  

Discount rates  
         
Discount rates represent the current market assessment of the risks specific to each CGU, 
taking into consideration the time value of money and individual risks of the underlying 
assets that have not been incorporated in the cash flow estimates.          
        
The discount rate calculation is based on the specific circumstances of the Company and its 
operating segments and is derived from its weighted average cost of capital (WACC). The 
WACC takes into account both debt and equity. The cost of equity is derived from the 
expected return on investment by the Company's investors. The cost of debt is based on the 
interest-bearing borrowings the Company is obliged to service.         
    
Market share during the forecast period         
         
When using industry data for growth rates (as described below), these assumptions are 
important because management assesses how the unit’s position, relative to its competitors, 
might change over the forecast period. Management expects the Company's market share 
in the LPG industry to be stable over the forecast period.         
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9.3

9.4

Royalty rate used for the forecast period         
         
The cash flows have been estimated using a royalty rate of 1.5% and have been discounted 
at the WACC. The royalty rate is based on that used by similar businesses.  Cash flows beyond 
the five-year period are extrapolated using a 6% growth rate. It was concluded that the 
carrying amount did not exceed the value-in-use. As a result of this analysis, no impairment 
has been identified by the Company against the trademark with a carrying amount of Rs. 
8.60 million as at June 30, 2022.         
   
The implications of the key assumptions for the recoverable amount are discussed below:   
       
Sales volume growth         
         
Value in use is sensitive to price and cost per ton of local and imported LPG and cost 
pass-through. The value in use was tested at various sales volume growth levels. A decline of 
27.50% or more in sales volume growth would result in impairment of the CGU.          
  
Discount rate assumptions         
         
A rise in pre-tax discount rate by 16.20% would result in the impairment of the CGU.       
      
Market share during the forecast period assumptions         
         
Management expects the company to maintain its market share based on the expected 
demand of the product and the ready supply base it has to service the demand.        
  
Royalty rate assumptions         
         
The cash flows have been estimated using a royalty rate of 1.5%, and have been discounted 
at the WACC. The royalty rate is based on that used by similar businesses.  Cash flows beyond 
the five-year period are extrapolated using a 6% growth rate in line with that used by the 
management. It was concluded that the carrying value did not exceed the value in use. As a 
result of this analysis, no impairment has been identified by the Company against trademark 
with a carrying amount of Rs. 8.60 million as at June 30, 2022.         
        
Growth rate assumptions         
         
Cashflow beyond the forecast period have been extrapolated using 4% growth based on that 
used by the management and long term real GDP growth forecast.         
                            
During 2018, the Company participated in a tender offer by Oil & Gas Development Company  
Limited (OGDCL) in respect of purchase of LPG from Kunnar Pasaki Deep - Tando Allahyar Gas 
Field District Hyderabad. On successful submission of the highest signature bonus bid of Rs. 
50.15 million, the Company has been allotted one lot of LPG of five metric tons per day for five 
years from the Kunnar Pasaki Deep - Tando Allahyar.         
         
This represents consideration paid to OPI Gas (Private) Limited in 2011 for acquisition of rights 
and title to "Burshane" trademarks. These trademarks are considered to have an indefinite 
useful life, and therefore have not been amortised. Further, no impairment has been identified 
in this regard (note 9.2).          
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     --- (Rupees in '000) ---  Note 

35
36

 

10.1  50,000  50,000 

 10,030 
 88

 10,118 

 49,080 
 88 

 49,168 

 

The amortisation for the year has been allocated as follows:      

Cost of sales    
Administrative expenses    
    
      

LONG-TERM INVESTMENT     
     
   Investment in a subsidiary company - at cost  
 Burshane Auto Gas (Private) Limited     
    

This represents investment in Burshane Auto Gas (Private) Limited (BAL), a company 
incorporated in Pakistan. The Company owns 4,999,997 (2021: 4,999,997) ordinary shares of 
Rs. 10 each representing 99.99% of the share capital as at the reporting date.          

        
At the reporting date, the subsidiary company has not yet started its business operations, 
however, the net assets of the subsidiary company at year end amounted to Rs. 50.25 million 
(2021: Rs. 50.47 million). Investment in the subsidiary has been made in accordance with the 
provisions of the Section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules promulgated for this 
purpose.         
        
Burshane Trading (Private) Limited (BTPL) is also the subsidiary of Burshane (Pakistan) 
Limited which was incorporated on October 13, 2014 under the Companies Act, 2017. No share 
capital has been issued and no transactions were undertaken by BTPL during the year. At the 
reporting date BTPL is having 'inactive' status in the SECP records.          

LONG-TERM LOANS     
     
   Secured - considered good     
       Executives     
       Other employees     
     
       Current portion shown under current assets  
     Executives     
       Other employees     

11.2 & 11.3

11.4

15

     

 368 
 -   

 368 

 (368)
 -   

 (368)
 -

 787 
 53 

 840 

 (434)
 (53)

 (487)
 353 

     

2022 2021
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9.5

10

10.1

10.2

11



Total
2021

965
1,422 

(1,547) 
840                  

 
 

 
 

 

 

4,414
779

5,193
(1,320)

3,873

18,429
705

19,134

 

11.1 Reconciliation of carrying amount of loans: 
    

Total
2022

Total
2021

Balance as at July 01 787 53  840 965
Disbursements 2,875 109  2,984 1,422
Repayment (3,294) (162)  (3,456) (1,547) 
Balance as at June 30 368 -  368  840                  

----- (Rupees in '000) ----
Description

Other 
employeesExecutives

These loans are granted to employees under the Company’s policies. Car and motor cycle 
loans are repayable over a maximum period of five years and two and a half years, 
respectively. Housing loans are repayable in maximum 50 equal monthly installments and 
salary loans are repayable over a maximum period of three years. Car loans and housing 
loans are interest free. Housing loans granted to employees are secured against the letter of 
guarantee and promissory notes and other loans are secured against their provident fund 
balances.            

The maximum aggregate amount of loan due from executives at the end of any month during 
the year was Rs. 3.36 million (2021: Rs. 1.35 million).             

The carrying amount of these financial assets is neither past due nor impaired. Further, 
interest free loans are not discounted to present value, since the impact is considered to be 
immaterial in the overall context of these unconsolidated financial statements.         

         
         2022              2021

--- (Rupees in '000) ---  

STORES AND SPARES    
    
   Stores    
   Spares parts    
        
   Provision for obsolete items   
 
    
STOCK-IN-TRADE    
    
   Liquefied Petroleum Gas (LPG)  
   Low Pressure Regulators (LPR)   
 

Note

13.1

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

5,094
899

5,993
(1,320)

4,673

44,370
555

44,925
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11.2

11.3

11.4

12

13



 

13.1

13.2

14

14.1

14.2

This includes stock amounting to Rs. 11.53 million (2021: Rs. 2.65 million) held with the following 
parties under hospitality arrangements:         

At June 30, 2022, stock of LPG held on behalf of third parties amounted to Rs. Nil (2021: Rs. 
2.57 million).         

OPI Jamber Plant    
Ravi Sahiwal    
Sadiq Gas Company    
Sindh Gas (Private) Limited    
Blessing Gas (Private) Limited    
Lite Gas Plant    
Tez Gas (Private) Limited    
Terra Energy (Private) Limited    
Baba Fareed Gas    
Bashir Gas    
Faiq Gas    
MNA    
ZA Energy Plant    
Hi Tech Plant    

 36 
 15 

 2,634 
 856 

 1,729 
 850 
 525 

 78 
 327 

 11 
 2,802 

 -   
 1,598 

 71  
11,532 

 22 
 1 ,357 

 403 
 -   

 163 
 -   

 570 
 13 
 -   
 8 

 15 
 101 

 -   
 -   

 2 ,652 
 

TRADE DEBTS     
     
   Unsecured - considered good     
     Trade debtors     
     Allowance for expected credit losses     
  

Allowance for expected credit losses     
     
    Balance as at July 01     
    (Reversal) / allowance for the year     
    Balance as at June 30     
    

Upto 1 month    
1 to 6 months    
More than 6 months   

 5,230 
 (613)
 4,617 

 3,688 
 1,542 

 5,230 

 55,199 
 26,326 
 10,839 
 92,364 

  13,024 
 77,661 

 2,210 
 92,895 

14.1
 
 

92,364
(4,617)
87,747 

 
 

92,895
(5,230)
87,665 

38 & 39

Ageing analysis of these trade debts as at the reporting date is as follows:       
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2022 2021 

--- (Rupees in '000) ---Note



 368 

 -   
 56,161 
 56,161 

 56,529 

 76,630 
 20,090 
 28,188 

 124,908 

 3,133 

 -   
 9,000 
 3,740 

 13,267 
 33,293 

 (5,105)
 28,188 

  3,642 

 511 

 487 

 4 
 71,536 
 71,540 
 72,027 

 

  82,180 
 17,740 
 41,732 

 141,652 

 -   

 1,098 
 9,000 
 17,706 
 15,391 

 46,837 
 (5,105)
 41,732 

 3,642 

 -   

2022

         
  
    Loans - Secured - considered good 
      Current portion of long-term loans  
    Advances to (Unsecured - considered good)
       Chief executives officer   
       Contractors and suppliers    

    OPI Gas (Private) Limited 
    Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited - Provident
    Fund   
       Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited - Pension

  Fund     
  Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited - Gratuity 
  Fund     
  Burshane Petroleum (Private) Limited 
  Sales tax receivable   
  Others     

Allowance for expected credit losses  
   

This represents receivable against reimbursement of expenses incurred for debranding 
activities, which has not been acknowledged by the counter party, thus fully provided. 

44 

44 
16.4

16.5 & 16.6

 
  

The maximum aggregate amount due from Chief executive officer against advance from 
travelling at the end of any month was Rs. Nil (2021: Rs. 3.86 million).

This represents short term deposits in the normal course of business and does not carry any 
interest or mark-up.         

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 

LOANS AND ADVANCES      

Other receivables    

Deposits    
Prepayments    
Other receivables    

Note --- (Rupees in '000) ---  

16.1

16.2

 

16.3

2021

11

15.1

 

15

15.1

16

16.1

16.2

16.3
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--- (Rupees in '000) ---  
16.4 

16.5 

16.6 

16.6.1 

16.6.2 

Note --- (Rupees in '000) ---  

2022 2021

      
This represents amount receivable from Burshane Petroleum (Private) Limited (formerly 
Darian International (Private) Limited) amounting to Rs. 9 million (2021: Rs. 9 million), a 
related party, as consideration against use of the Company's name under an arrangement 
entered in the year 2021.         

      
The maximum aggregate amount outstanding from subsidiary company, associated 
companies and other related parties at any time of the year by reference to month end 
balances is as follows:         
         

      
More than 6 months  
More than 12 months   

This includes receivable from Burshane Auto Gas (Private) Limited, amounting to Rs. 0.23 
million (2021: Rs. 0.01 million).         
         

The ageing analysis of receivable balances due from related parties / associated 
companies is as follows:         
         

      
This includes receivable against cylinder deposits of Rs. 7.63 million (2021: Rs. 9.17 million). 

    Other related parties      
       Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited Provident Fund  
       Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited Gratuity Fund  
    Subsidiary Company      
       Burshane Autogas (Private) Limited   
    Associated companies     
       Burshane Petroleum (Private) Limited   
       AAK Commodities (Private) Limited   
       A&S Corporation (Private) Limited     
 

 962 
 7,166 

 227 

 9,000 
 -   

 34 
 17,389 

   

 
 -   

 9,000 
 9,000 

   

 -   
 9,011 
 9,011 

   

 2,480 
 4,565 

 11 

 9,500 
 250 

 75 
 16,881 
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Advance tax 
Provision for taxation 

Income tax refundable 

Cash in hand 
Cash at banks  
   saving accounts 
   current accounts  

    

 Number of ordinary  
 shares of Rs. 10/- each   

 29,002 
 (11,306)

 17,696 
 106,961 
 124,657 

 24 

 21,842 
 74,430 
 96,272 
 96,296 

 900,000  900,000 

 
 200 

 59,662 
 32,960 
 92,622 
 92,822 

 37,851 
 (6,546)

 31,305 
 75,656 
 106,961 

CASH AND BANK BALANCES 

AUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL 

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL  

The profit rates on these saving accounts range from 2.80% to 12.25% per annum (2021: 2.76% 
to 5.50% per annum). These balances are held in accounts maintained under conventional 
banking.         

TAXATION - NET  

 ---(Number of shares)---  
2022

2022

2021
 ---(Number of shares)---  

2022 2021

2021

17

18

18.1

19

20

18.1

 90,000,000   

 19,881,766   

 2,530,304     2,530,304 
 76,820    76,820  

  22,488,890  
 

  22,488,890  

 90,000,000   

 19,881,766 

 224,888 

  198,817 

 25,303 
   768 

 224,888 

  198,817 

 25,303 
   768 

Ordinary shares of  
                 Rs. 10/- each 

Fully paid in cash (note 20.1) 

Fully paid bonus shares 

Fully paid for consideration 
other than cash  

      

Note --- (Rupees in '000) ---  

2022 2021
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--- (Rupees in '000) ---  
As a result of the Scheme referred to in note 7, the authorised share capital of the Company 
enhanced to Rs. 900 million divided into 90 million ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each. Further, 
pursuant to the effects of amalgamation, the paid-up share capital of the Company 
reduced by 151,154 shares.         

As further explained in note 7, the Company is in the process of completing legal formalities 
for cancellation of 151,154 shares and for issuance of new share certificates, which are 
appearing in the name of HTPL for the year ended June 30, 2022 (2021: same status) to the 
shareholders of HTPL (former Holding Company) in accordance with the Scheme. Post 
completion of legal formalities,  Chief Executive, will hold 12,326,629 [2022: 54.81% (2021: 
54.81%)] ordinary shares of the Company of Rs. 10 each and other directors will held 4,358,000 
[2022: 19.38% (2021: 19.38%)] ordinary shares of the Company of Rs. 10 each.    

At June 30, 2022 the former Holding Company held 74.19% (2021: 74.19%), institutions held 
14.06% (2021: 14.06%) and individuals and others held the balance of 11.75% (2021: 11.75%) 
voting rights, board selection, right of first refusal and block voting are in proportion to their 

20.1 

20.2 

20.3      
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2022 2021

Note21 CAPITAL RESERVES

Revaluation surplus of property 21.1         
Other reserves

Reserve on amalgamation  
Actuarial loss on remeasurement of

    retirement and other service benefits          

336,715

153,458

(30,477)
122,981

459,696 

              336,415

              153,458

              (36,223)
              117,235

              453,650

21.1 Revaluation surplus of property

Balance as at July 01
Surplus recognised during the year 21.1.1  
Balance as at June 30

336,415
300

         336,715

              336,415
-

              336,415

21.1.1 Surplus recognised during the year

Leasehold land  
Freehold land  

-
300
300

-
-
- 

21.1.2

22 REVENUE RESERVE

General reserve
Accumulated loss

90,000
(165,135)
(75,135)

90,000
(191,971)
(101,971)

23 LONG-TERM LOAN

Secured
National Bank of Pakistan (NBP) 23.1
Current portion of long-term loan

254,439
(254,439)            

138,115
(23,770)

114,345

--- (Rupees in '000) ---

The revaluation surplus on property is a capital reserve, and is not available for distribution to 
the shareholders in accordance with section 241 of the Companies Act, 2017.   
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23.1 During 2015, long-term finance obtained, under conventional banking terms, by HTPL had been 
transferred to the Company at the time of amalgamation (the scheme). This loan was obtained 
as a demand finance facility under the agreement dated April 08, 2013 from NBP and was 
repayable in 9 semi-annual installments of Rs. 44.44 million latest by April 01, 2018 with a grace 
period of six months. The loan carried mark-up at rate of 6 months KIBOR plus 2.5% to 6% per 
annum. This loan was secured by way of mortgage on leasehold land and charge on the  
Company’s present and future current and fixed assets as well as personal guarantee of Chief 
Executive of the Company. In previous years, the Company negotiated several offer letters from 
NBP.

On September 20, 2021, the Company received a proposal via offer letter No. 
NBP/ARG/ARW(S)/BLPL/2021/770 supplemented by offer letter for the restructuring / 
rehabilitation scheme No. NBP/ARG/ARW(S)/BLPL/2022/08 dated January 06, 2022 and 
addendum to offer letter for the restructuring / rehabilitation scheme dated June 03, 2022 for 
the restructuring of loan from NBP which has since been accepted on June 08, 2022 by the 
Company's management.

However, the competent authority of NBP approved the acceptance of this offer by the 
Company and executed restructuring of long-term loan amounting to Rs. 254.44 million and its 
related accrued mark-up amounting to Rs. 119.39 million into three different facilities with effect 
from June 09, 2022, as mentioned below:

In respect Demand Finance-I (DF-I) facility:

 The part of long-term loan amounted to Rs. 100.44 million restructured as DF-I.   
     
 Upfront payment of Rs. 25.44 million to be made immediately.     
   
 Remaining balance of Rs. 75 million to be re-paid in 20 quarterly installments starting   
 from September 30, 2022 with a grace period of 1 year.

 The facility carries mark-up at the rate of 3 month KIBOR + 2%, which will also be    
 payable during the grace period.        

Frozen accrued mark-up amounted to Rs. 119.39 million on long-term loan restructured 
as DF-II.

The Company to pay an amount of Rs. 113.82 million towards frozen mark-up. 

Upfront payment of Rs. 18.52  million (including accrued mark-up amounting to Rs. 7.90 
million for the period from January 01, 2022 to June 09, 2022) to be made immediately.

Remaining amount of Rs. 95.29 million to be re-paid in 20 quarterly installments starting 
from September 30, 2022.
    
The facility carries no mark-up.        

In respect Demand Finance-II (DF-II) facility:         
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Another part of long term loan amounted to Rs. 154 million restructured as running 
finance.        
        
The facility carries mark-up of 3 month KIBOR + 1.75%.

In respect Running Finance facility:         

The restructuring / rehabilitation scheme of Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited has resulted in a 
loan restructuring gain, on original long tem loan and accrued mark-up thereon, of Rs. 37.76 
million on effective date of loan restructuring i.e. June 09, 2022 as described below:  

In addition, this restructuring arrangements are secured by way of the following;

Note Rupees in '000'

             
 
 

 

23
32

23
30              

             
               

Less: Upfront payment on account of long-term loan and frozen mark-up                
38

254,439
119,392
373,831

138,115
154,000
292,115

81,716
43,960
37,756 Gain on loan restructuring

Carrying amount of long term loan
before restructuring 

Accrued mark-up

Loan restructured:
Long-term loan

Long-term loan

Short-term borrowings (running finance)

1st charge on present and future current and fixed assets of the company of Rs. 750 million 
already registered at SECP;

1% registered mortgage of land and building of both project locations i.e. Karachi and 
Faisalabad mentioned in latest balance sheet, to be created as per the original offer letter 
by NBP for the restructuring / rehabilitation scheme No. NBP/ARG/ARW-S/BLPL/2021/770 
dated September 20, 2021. However, as per the revised offer letter by NBP for the 
restructuring / rehabilitation scheme No. NBP/ARG/ARW-S/BLPL/2022/08 dated January 
06, 2022, the existing collateral is replaced by 1% Registered mortgage and 99% equitable 
mortgage of Freehold Land (i.e Chak no. 245 Near Railway Station, Abbaspur, Faisalabad, 
forced sales value of the said location is Rs. 50 million dated December 02, 2021);

1% registered mortgage and balance by way of equitable mortgage on Company's owned 
following properties situated in Karachi by Rs. 660 million registered at SECP; 

residential / commercial land bearing No. 74 measuring 37 Ghuntas situated at Deh 
Okewari, Shahra-e-Faisal,Karachi valuation conducted by Luckyhiya Associates (Pvt). Ltd 
having market value of Rs. 89.63 million and forced sales value amounting to Rs. 71.71 
million dated June 30, 2020;        
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residential / commercial land bearing No. 47 measuring 2 Acre and 19 Ghuntas 
situated at Deh Okewari, Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi valuation conducted by Luckyhiya 
Associates (Pvt). Ltd having market value of Rs. 239.83 million and forced sales value 
amounting to Rs. 191.86 million dated June 30, 2020;      

personal guarantee of CEO of the Company;   

undertaking for routing all sales through Company's account with NBP cash 
management system;        

assignment of long term deposits lying with various refineries (on best efforts);  
      
replacement of 16,834,434 shares of HAKS Trading (Pvt). Ltd (held by NBP) with shares 
of Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited to be completed in three months under the 
supervision / guidance of NBP legal division as a result of name change of the 
organization. Further, after the conversion of said shares, shares of Burshane LPG 
(Pakistan) Limited to be held with NBP.        

There are certain other terms and conditions attached in the aforementioned letter dated 
September 20, 2021 in respect of restructuring / rehabilitation of loan which the Company 
have to comply with, some of which are mentioned below:

2022 2021

Note ---(Rupees in '000) ---

Balance as at July 01
Impact of lease modification
Addition
Disposal
Interest expense

Payments made during the year

Current portion of lease liabilities
Balance as at June 30

24.1                
  

                             
          
                           
                       
                       
                       
                         

16,291
-

27,000
(3,018)

2,218
42,491

(14,316)
28,175

(9,304)
18,871         

22,625
(1,632)

-
-

3,013
24,006
(7,715)
16,291

(6,349)
9,942 

          
        
       
        
         
        

LEASE LIABILITIES24
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Debt to EBITDA not to exceed 3 times.        
Debt Service Coverage Ratio not to fall below 1.5 
No new dividend to be paid / announced during rescheduling period or prior approval 
from NBP to be obtained          
NBP’s prior approval to be obtained for the payment of unclaimed dividend amount to the 
sponsoring directors.        
        



For determining, lease liabilities, the Company discounted lease payments using its 
incremental borrowing rate 17.01% per annum (2021: 17.01% per annum).    

24.1

24.2

24.3

25

26

27

27.1

Represents finance lease entered into with a leasing company for vehicles. Total lease 
rentals due under lease agreement aggregated to Rs. 31.90 million (2021: Rs. 1.67 million) and 
are payable in equal monthly installments latest by May 2027. Taxes, charges, demands and 
levies, repair and maintenance are to be borne by the Company.      

Maturity analysis-contractual cash flow

   Less than one year                        9,304  6,349 
   One to five year                        18,871  9,942 
   More than five year                                -            -   
   Total lease liability                       28,175 16,291 

DEFERRED TAXATION - NET  

Taxable temporary differences
Accelerated tax depreciation and amortisation 
Post employment benefits
Surplus on revaluation of property 

Deductible temporary differences
Lease liabilities
Minimum turnover tax
Provisions

                       
           

 

 

 

                       

                         
                       
                         

  

29,549
2,382

87
32,018

(8,171)
(11,300)
(3,202)

(22,673)
9,345 

30,091
2,927

-
33,018

(4,724)
(6,546)
(3,380)

(14,650)
18,368 

CYLINDER AND REGULATOR DEPOSITS

LOAN FROM A SUBSIDIARY COMPANY     

This represents non-interest bearing deposits which are refundable on termination of 
distributorship agreements and / or return of cylinders and ancillary equipment as per the                                               
Company policy.  

This represents interest free loan granted to Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited (the Parent 
Company) by Burshane Autogas (Private) Limited under an agreement dated March 04, 
2016 and November 07, 2016 should be read in conjunction with the afore-mentioned 
agreement.

2022 2021Note

--- (Rupees in '000) ---

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS      
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2022



For determining, lease liabilities, the Company discounted lease payments using its 
incremental borrowing rate 17.01% per annum (2021: 17.01% per annum).    

Represents finance lease entered into with a leasing company for vehicles. Total lease 
rentals due under lease agreement aggregated to Rs. 31.90 million (2021: Rs. 1.67 million) and 
are payable in equal monthly installments latest by May 2027. Taxes, charges, demands and 
levies, repair and maintenance are to be borne by the Company.      

This represents non-interest bearing deposits which are refundable on termination of 
distributorship agreements and / or return of cylinders and ancillary equipment as per the                                               
Company policy.  

28

29

30

29.1

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES     
     

SHORT-TERM LOAN    
     

SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS     
     

Clause no. 4 is being amended and affective as follows:  

It is mutually agreed that the entire amount of loan will be repaid within the next 12 months or 
any extended period, if so mutually agreed.  

2022 2021Note

--- (Rupees in '000) ---

Creditors
Accrued liabilities
Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited - Pension Fund
Advances from distributors / customers - unsecured
Workers' Profits Participation Fund
Workers' Welfare Fund
Withholding tax payable
Others

                       
                           

               
                       
           
                           
                              

               

70,767
5,324

-
12,888

1,403
3,017
1,262

18,166
112,827       

52,451
6,115

14,483
13,773

-
3,017

218
17,969

108,026            

Related party - unsecured
Burshane Petroleum (Private) Limited 29.1 45,000 - 

The loan was obtained from Burshane Petroleum (Private) Limited amounting to Rs. 397 
million for purchase of LPG. During the reporting period loan amounting to Rs. 352 million was 
repaid. It carries rate of return of KIBOR + 2% (2021: Nil).

The Company has arrangement for running finance facility under mark-up arrangement 
from NBP amounting to Rs. 154 million along with an import LC sight. 

The rate of mark-up on running finance facility is 3 months KIBOR + 1.75% per annum. The 
arrangements are secured by way of mortgage on leasehold land and charge on the 
Company’s present and future current and fixed assets as well as personal guarantee of 
Chief Executive of the Company.  

During the year, the Company has paid an amount of Rs. 2.94 million on restructured running 
finance (refer note 23.1).  
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CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS     
     

2022 2021

Note --- (Rupees in '000) ---

31 UNCLAIMED DIVIDENDS

32 ACCRUED MARK-UP

33

33.1

33.1.1

33.1.2

32.1

31.1

Opening balance
Dividend paid during the year
Closing balance

  
              

83,198
(148)

83,050         

83,198
-

83,198 

These includes an amount of Rs. 79.97 million (2021: Rs. 79.97 million) payable to the 
beneficial owners of HTPL. As explained in note 7, HTPL was merged with the Company on 
February 20, 2015, however, shares held by HTPL in the Company are in the process of being 
cancelled and new shares shall be issued by the Company in the name of beneficial owners 
of HTPL. The beneficial owners of HTPL have requested the Company to hold their dividend till 
such time that shares held by HTPL are cancelled and new shares are issued by the 
Company in their name.  

Mark-up accrued on:
Short-term loan
Long-term loan
Short-term borrowings

32.1            
               

 

1,038
726

1,441
3,205 

-
119,392

-
119,392 

This represents accrued mark-up payable to Burshane Petroleum (Private) Limited. 

Contingencie

Claims not acknowledged as debt by the Company as at June 30, 2022 amounted to Rs. 
31.90 million (2021: Rs. 1.68 million).  

An inspection order dated August 04, 2020 under Section 221 of Companies Act, 2017 was 
issued by SECP against complaint received by the Commission wherein it was alleged that 
the CEO and Director Finance of the Company are involved in financial irregularities of the 
Companies Act, 2017, which include advance made to Roots International Brands Private 
Limited (RIBS), an associate company, and  that the  bank account was being used for illegal 
activities by CEO and Company’s Director Finance who appears to have concealed the 
existence of such financial transactions.  
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These includes an amount of Rs. 79.97 million (2021: Rs. 79.97 million) payable to the 
beneficial owners of HTPL. As explained in note 7, HTPL was merged with the Company on 
February 20, 2015, however, shares held by HTPL in the Company are in the process of being 
cancelled and new shares shall be issued by the Company in the name of beneficial owners 
of HTPL. The beneficial owners of HTPL have requested the Company to hold their dividend till 
such time that shares held by HTPL are cancelled and new shares are issued by the 
Company in their name.  

This represents accrued mark-up payable to Burshane Petroleum (Private) Limited. 

Claims not acknowledged as debt by the Company as at June 30, 2022 amounted to Rs. 
31.90 million (2021: Rs. 1.68 million).  

An inspection order dated August 04, 2020 under Section 221 of Companies Act, 2017 was 
issued by SECP against complaint received by the Commission wherein it was alleged that 
the CEO and Director Finance of the Company are involved in financial irregularities of the 
Companies Act, 2017, which include advance made to Roots International Brands Private 
Limited (RIBS), an associate company, and  that the  bank account was being used for illegal 
activities by CEO and Company’s Director Finance who appears to have concealed the 
existence of such financial transactions.  
  
  

33.1.3

On the conclusion of inspection, a report was issued on October 23, 2020 mentioning 
cognizance of offences under sections 204, 199(1), 199(2), 183(2), CEO and Director Finance of 
the Company, during the period July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2020 and suggested that they are 
liable with regard to all the above non-compliances as the Board of Directors did not discuss 
or approve transactions with RIBS until June 26, 2020 and the predecessor auditors  are liable 
for proceedings to be initiated under section 249 read with section 253 of the Act as they 
failed to highlight lack of disclosure of transactions with RIBS in notes to the financial 
statements for year ended June 30, 2019 especially in related parties note as required under 
IAS 24. The Auditor also failed to highlight the unsecured interest free loans extended without 
any agreement to a related party i.e., RIBS before June 03, 2019.  

The Company has provided the comments on findings to SECP, that the non-compliance 
was not intentional but was omission by mistake.  The Company had advanced certain 
amount to RIBS, However, the Company has received all the monies back with mark up and 
therefore there is no financial loss to the Company. The Board has subsequently ratified all 
these transactions with RIBS, and therefore to an extent the non-compliance has been 
addressed. It was merely an oversight of SECP compliance regulations. It has further been 
resolved in the Board that extra care shall be taken in future to ensure that non-compliance 
should not takes place.   
  

No action has been taken up by SECP to date and management asserts, based on advise of 
Legal counsel that there would not be any material impact on the financial statements of any 
action taken up by SECP.  

The Special Sales Tax Reference Application (STRA) has been filed by the Commissioner 
Inland Revenue, Zone-IV, Large Taxpayers Unit Karachi in the High Court of Sindh at Karachi on 
December 18, 2019. During the year ended June 30, 2018, tax authorities issued Order dated 
May 25, 2018 and charged sales tax under section 8B of Sales Tax Act, 1990, raising sales tax 
demand and imposing penalties aggregating to Rs. 133.11 million and also default surcharge 
for tax periods from July 2014 to March 2018.  Against the said Order, the Company filed appeal 
before Commissioner (Appeals–I), Karachi who vide Order dated July 03, 2018 vacated the 
whole principal amount of sales tax of Rs. 65.57 million and reduced the imposition of 
penalties from Rs. 67.54 million to Rs. 0.50 million only. However, the liability on account of 
default surcharge was maintained.  
  
  
The Order of the Commissioner (Appeal) was challenged before the Hon’ble Appellate 
Tribunal Inland Revenue, Karachi who vide Order dated  August 28, 2019 reduced the 
substantial amount of default surcharge to Rs. 1.34 million and maintained the amount of 
penalty Rs. 0.50 million. The Company has paid the reduced amount of default surcharge 
and penalty without pursuing the matter before the High Court.  
  

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS      NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2022



33.1.4

33.1.5

33.1.6

The captioned Special Sales Tax Reference Application (STRA) is filed by the Commissioner 
Inland Revenue, Zone-IV, Large Taxpayers Unit Karachi in the High Court of Sindh at Karachi. 
On September 28, 2018, tax authorities levied sales tax under section 8B of Sales Tax Act, 1990, 
raising sales tax demand along with the levy of penalty aggregating to Rs. 7.90 million for tax 
periods from April 2018 to May 2018.   

Against the Order, the Company filed appeal before Commissioner (Appeals–I), Karachi, 
who vide Order dated October 31, 2018 vacated the whole principal amount of sales tax of Rs. 
7.67 million. However, the liability on account of default surcharge and penalty was 
maintained.  

The Order of the Commissioner (Appeal) was challenged before the Hon’ble Appellate 
Tribunal Inland Revenue, Karachi who vide Order dated August 28, 2019 reduced the 
substantial amount of default surcharge to Rs. 0.16 million and maintained the amount of 
penalty Rs. 0.23 million. The Company has paid the reduced amount of default surcharge 
and penalty without pursuing the matter further.  

The Company has filed Special Federal Excise Duty (FED) Ref. Application before the Hon’ble 
High Court of Sindh against the Appellate order dated April 02, 2012 of the Appellate Tribunal 
IR. The tax authorities at Large Taxpayers Office established a demand towards FED on the 
payment of license fee paid/payable by the Company in relation with the software / IT 
services acquired from the non-resident parent company under the tariff heading 
“franchise service” as per First Schedule to Federal Excise Act, 2005. At that time, Burshane 
LPG (Pakistan) Limited was a subsidiary of Shell Group, operating under the name of Shell 
LPG Pakistan Limited.  The scope of services under the head ‘franchise services’ was not clear 
when the Federal Excise Act was promulgated in the year 2005 and then the jurisdictional 
issues also made the matter more complicated when the franchise services were subjected 
to Provincial sales tax by promulgation of Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011 effective July 
01, 2011.  

Software licensing does not fall under the service classification “franchise services” and this 
aspect has been settled at the Appellate Tribunal level in reported judgments, also. Hence, 
the Company has a strong arguable case to defend its position that the impugned demand 
of FED may not be warranted.   

A complaint was filed by the Directorate of Investigation and Intelligence (Inland Revenue) 
(I & I - IR) on August 31, 2020, against the Company for alleged Tax evasion of approximately 
Rs. 1.78 billion, with Special Court for Customs, Taxation and (Anti-Smuggling). Based on this 
complaint the court passed 2 orders against the Company and some of its directors. The 
orders were pertaining to freezing of the Company’s 9 bank accounts for 90 days and 
issuance of non bailable arrest warrants of its certain Directors. The Company immediately 
obtained Protective Bail from the High Court and subsequently from the Special Court which 
was later confirmed.  

The Company also filed a Constitutional Petition with High Court against the order of the 
Special Court for freezing of 9 bank accounts. All banks have removed the freeze on the 
Company’s accounts on expiry of 90 days.  
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The Company filed appeal to the Commissioner (Appeals) against the aforesaid order dated  
August 29, 2019. The said appeal was heard and order passed wherein the Commissioner 
(Appeals) has confirmed the certain additions made by the DCIR, whereas, he has annulled 
/ deleted certain additions i.e. (rent, advertising expenses and financial charges - profit on 
debt) as such. Further, the Commissioner (Appeals) has also directed the Officer to allow 
credit of actual taxes paid of Rs. 23.45 million subject to due verification. Appeal effect under 
section 124 to be filed.  

The captioned Special Sales Tax Reference Application (STRA) is filed by the Commissioner 
Inland Revenue, Zone-IV, Large Taxpayers Unit Karachi in the High Court of Sindh at Karachi. 
On September 28, 2018, tax authorities levied sales tax under section 8B of Sales Tax Act, 1990, 
raising sales tax demand along with the levy of penalty aggregating to Rs. 7.90 million for tax 
periods from April 2018 to May 2018.   

Against the Order, the Company filed appeal before Commissioner (Appeals–I), Karachi, 
who vide Order dated October 31, 2018 vacated the whole principal amount of sales tax of Rs. 
7.67 million. However, the liability on account of default surcharge and penalty was 
maintained.  

The Order of the Commissioner (Appeal) was challenged before the Hon’ble Appellate 
Tribunal Inland Revenue, Karachi who vide Order dated August 28, 2019 reduced the 
substantial amount of default surcharge to Rs. 0.16 million and maintained the amount of 
penalty Rs. 0.23 million. The Company has paid the reduced amount of default surcharge 
and penalty without pursuing the matter further.  

The Company has filed Special Federal Excise Duty (FED) Ref. Application before the Hon’ble 
High Court of Sindh against the Appellate order dated April 02, 2012 of the Appellate Tribunal 
IR. The tax authorities at Large Taxpayers Office established a demand towards FED on the 
payment of license fee paid/payable by the Company in relation with the software / IT 
services acquired from the non-resident parent company under the tariff heading 
“franchise service” as per First Schedule to Federal Excise Act, 2005. At that time, Burshane 
LPG (Pakistan) Limited was a subsidiary of Shell Group, operating under the name of Shell 
LPG Pakistan Limited.  The scope of services under the head ‘franchise services’ was not clear 
when the Federal Excise Act was promulgated in the year 2005 and then the jurisdictional 
issues also made the matter more complicated when the franchise services were subjected 
to Provincial sales tax by promulgation of Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011 effective July 
01, 2011.  

Software licensing does not fall under the service classification “franchise services” and this 
aspect has been settled at the Appellate Tribunal level in reported judgments, also. Hence, 
the Company has a strong arguable case to defend its position that the impugned demand 
of FED may not be warranted.   

A complaint was filed by the Directorate of Investigation and Intelligence (Inland Revenue) 
(I & I - IR) on August 31, 2020, against the Company for alleged Tax evasion of approximately 
Rs. 1.78 billion, with Special Court for Customs, Taxation and (Anti-Smuggling). Based on this 
complaint the court passed 2 orders against the Company and some of its directors. The 
orders were pertaining to freezing of the Company’s 9 bank accounts for 90 days and 
issuance of non bailable arrest warrants of its certain Directors. The Company immediately 
obtained Protective Bail from the High Court and subsequently from the Special Court which 
was later confirmed.  

The Company also filed a Constitutional Petition with High Court against the order of the 
Special Court for freezing of 9 bank accounts. All banks have removed the freeze on the 
Company’s accounts on expiry of 90 days.  

Another Constitutional Petition challenging the Complaint filed by I & I - IR with the special 
Court under the Anti Money Laundering Act 2010, has also been filed with High Court. The 
Company has lost the case upon the dismissal of Constitutional Petition No. D-5162 of 2020 
by Hon'ble Court on June 20, 2022 and directed to defend the case in the court of Special 
Judge (Custom, Taxation and Anti-Smuggling) Karachi.  

The Company had received notices under section 177(1) of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 
regarding audit for tax years 2018 and 2019. The Company has replied and submitted relevant 
details and documents timely through various letters to FBR. The Company has received 
further notices for same tax years on August 16, 2022, in which the additions made by the 
Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue in the assessments made under section 122 through 
order dated June 14, 2022 has not been accepted by the learned Commissioner Inland 
Revenue (Appeals-II), Karachi who has been pleased to remand the matter back for both the 
years, as such no demand subsists for tax year 2018 and 2019.  

The Director of Intelligence and Investigation, Inland Revenue had appeared on TV in Kamran 
Khan’s News show on September 23, 2020, and there he discussed the case in a manner 
whereby Company's reputation was damaged. He tried to conduct a media trial of the 
Company and its Directors. Additionally, the Director of Intelligence and Investigation, Inland 
Revenue also disclosed our tax and assets details, hence breached privacy and 
confidentiality laws. The Company has filed a law suit for damages against the Director 
General, the Director of South Region and the Deputy Director, (the Complainant) of the 
Directorate of I&I, Inland Revenue for a sum of Rs. 1 billion.

33.1.7

33.1.8

On July 31, 2015, the Company received a show cause notice under Punjab Rented Premises 
Act, 2009, by the landlords of the property measuring 51-Kanals-03-Marlas, or thereabouts 
bearing Square No. 94, Killa no. 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 & 7, tehsil Faisalabad, near Abbaspur railway 
station. The Company uses this land for LPG storage and filing plant of Faisalabad. The 
landlords filed an ejectment petition against the Company and the Company has filed 
defending argument in the rent tribunal Faisalabad and case is under hearing stage. 

For the tax year 2016, a notice dated June 25, 2018 was issued to the Company to provide 
certain information / details for audit proceedings. The notice was duly complied. 

Show cause notice dated June 13, 2019 was issued to amend assessment u/s 122(9) read with 
section 214C of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 which was duly responded on all the points. 
Subsequently, order dated August 29, 2019 passed by the DCIR raising null tax demand due to 
applicability of minimum tax.  
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SALES - NET  
     

Monitoring of WHT was conducted by the DCIR by issuing a notice under section 176 dated 
March 28, 2018 which was duly responded. Thereafter, a show-cause notice dated February 
13, 2019 was issued under section 161(1A) confronting on non-withholding of taxes on certain 
payments. Response was duly filed and accordingly order dated March 15, 2019 was passed 
under section 161 / 205 by the ACIR wherein the total tax demand of Rs. 2.05 million was 
raised which comprised the defaulted amount of Rs. 1.552 million; default surcharge of 
Rs. 0.49 million.  

Against the Order, the Company filed an appeal before the Commissioner (Appeals-I) which 
was heard and appellate order passed dated May 15, 2019 wherein Commissioner 
(Appeals-I) remanded back the Order of DCIR with the directions to verify supporting 
documentary evidences in respect of expenses claimed to be furnished by appellant 
company within seven days time. Following the underlying directions of Commissioner 
(Appeals-I) the Company has filed the details of expenses / payments in question vide our 
letter no. KT-AA-3707 dated May 22, 2019 to the DCIR for onward proceedings. 

The Company filed application dated March 25, 2021 for approval for revision of return under 
clause (ba) of subsection 6 of section 114 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, for charging 
minimum tax u/s 113 at the rate 0.2% instead of 1%. The commissioner audit vide his letter 
dated May 07, 2021 rejected the request of the Company for granting permission for revision 
of return. The Company has filed a petition in the Hon'ble High Court of Sindh with prayer to 
direct the Commissioner Inland Revenue to allow revision of return of income for the tax year 
2016 and no adverse order has been passed.  

2022 2021

--- (Rupees in '000) ---

33.2

34

Commitments   
     Post-dated cheques           31,900                  1,677 

Gross sales
Liquefied petroleum gas (LPG)
Low pressure regulators (LPR)

Sales return
Sales tax

 
  

 
                            

           

5,189,987
968

5,190,955
(4,202)

(692,126)
4,494,627

3,049,414
1,102

3,050,516
(407)

(458,812)
2,591,297
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Revenue recognised from amounts included in advance from customers at the beginning of 
the year amounted to Rs. 13.14 million (2021: Rs. 10.54 million).  

             

Monitoring of WHT was conducted by the DCIR by issuing a notice under section 176 dated 
March 28, 2018 which was duly responded. Thereafter, a show-cause notice dated February 
13, 2019 was issued under section 161(1A) confronting on non-withholding of taxes on certain 
payments. Response was duly filed and accordingly order dated March 15, 2019 was passed 
under section 161 / 205 by the ACIR wherein the total tax demand of Rs. 2.05 million was 
raised which comprised the defaulted amount of Rs. 1.552 million; default surcharge of 
Rs. 0.49 million.  

Against the Order, the Company filed an appeal before the Commissioner (Appeals-I) which 
was heard and appellate order passed dated May 15, 2019 wherein Commissioner 
(Appeals-I) remanded back the Order of DCIR with the directions to verify supporting 
documentary evidences in respect of expenses claimed to be furnished by appellant 
company within seven days time. Following the underlying directions of Commissioner 
(Appeals-I) the Company has filed the details of expenses / payments in question vide our 
letter no. KT-AA-3707 dated May 22, 2019 to the DCIR for onward proceedings. 

The Company filed application dated March 25, 2021 for approval for revision of return under 
clause (ba) of subsection 6 of section 114 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, for charging 
minimum tax u/s 113 at the rate 0.2% instead of 1%. The commissioner audit vide his letter 
dated May 07, 2021 rejected the request of the Company for granting permission for revision 
of return. The Company has filed a petition in the Hon'ble High Court of Sindh with prayer to 
direct the Commissioner Inland Revenue to allow revision of return of income for the tax year 
2016 and no adverse order has been passed.  

2022 2021
Note --- (Rupees in '000) --- 

34.1

COST OF SALES     35

35.1

35.2

35.1

35.3

8.1.3
9.5

35.2
13

Salaries, wages and other employees benefits
Cost of low pressure regulators sold
Stores and spares consumed
Repairs and maintenance
Travelling, conveyance and vehicle maintenance
Depreciation
Amortisation
Rent, rates and utilities
Communication charges
Printing and stationery
Legal and professional charges
Insurance
Signature bonus
Security
Sundry expenses
Manufacturing cost
Opening stock
Purchases 
Closing stock

               
               681    

              713    

              936  
              188  

              408  

  
  

29,191
2,192

789
7,777

8,666
10,030
39,026

980
502
488

2,784
51,672
3,786
2,782

161,576
18,429

4,192,842
(44,370)
4,166,901

4,328,477

911 
               
               
               
 
 
 
                 

              
  
                 

        
                       
             
                     
             
    

29,643

1,863
7,074

10,718
49,080

12,613

2,440
37,360

2,791
4,337

160,845
42,516

2,372,876
(18,429)

2,396,963
2,557,808         

Salaries and other benefits include Rs. 0.60 million (2021: Rs. 0.69 million) in respect of 
retirement and other service benefits.  

This include amount of Rs. 176.42 million (2021: 206.34 million) related to purchases of LPG from 
Byco Petroleum Pakistan Limited (BPPL) and amount of Rs. 5.72 million (2021: 13.75 million) paid 
to ADEPT (Private) Limited (APL) for purchasing rights of LPG quota. On May 13, 2019, the 
Company entered in to agreement with Byco Petroleum Pakistan Limited (BPPL) for purchase 
of LPG through an arrangement. On June 6, 2019, the Company entered into a joint venture 
agreement (the Agreement) with APL being engaged in oil and gas related business with a 
quota of 35 MT per day by BPPL. As per the agreement, APL consented and assigned LPG 
quota to the Company for marketing and distribution of LPG including management of 

As per the revised agreement effective from August 16, 2020, APL is entitled to a fixed profit 
amounting to Rs. 4,500 (2021: Rs. 4,500) for each MT net of all taxes of LPG procured through 
BPPL while any other profit or loss from marketing and distribution of that LPG is accrued to the 
Company.  

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS      NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2022



2022 2021

Note --- (Rupees in '000) --- 
35.3

36

36.1

Stores and spares consumed    
     

Opening stock
Purchases 

Closing stock

       
       

                           
                 

                           
12                          

3,873
1,589

5,462
(4,673)

789              

2,215
3,520
5,735

(3,873)
1,863                

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES     
     

37 DISTRIBUTION AND MARKETING EXPENSES

36.1
Depreciation 8.1.3
Amortisation 9.5
Repairs and maintenance
Travelling, conveyance and vehicle maintenance
Rent, rates and utilities
Communication charges
Printing and stationery
Legal and professional charges
Insurance 
Advertisement and publicity 
Security
Sundry

Salaries, wages and other employees benefits               
                

 
                
                
                
                
                
              
                
                   

 
                   

69,939         
8,123           

88 
1,013 

7,794 
1,646 
2,692 
1,058 

19,998
775

26
1,949           

821
115,922                  

69,968
9,092

88
1,013

7,766
1,852
2,615
1,103

25,863
2,376

565
1,631
806

124,738

Salaries and other benefits include Rs. 6.57 million (2021: Rs. 6.70 million) in respect of 
retirement and other service benefits.  

37.1
Depreciation 8.1.3
Repairs and maintenance
Travelling, conveyance and vehicle maintenance
Rent, rates and taxes
Communication charges
Printing and stationery
Insurance
Hospitality charges
Freight and octroi
Advertisement and publicity 
Security
Sundry expenses

Salaries, wages and other employees benefits           
                       

                                 
                                 

                    
                                 
                                 

             

                    
                       

                           
                                 
                                 

  

13,405
28,075

251
524
947
655
136
227

15,690
7,731

157
744
435

68,977        

15,241
24,210

200
635
577
807
164
155

19,181
4,107

148
655
366

66,446 
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2022 2021

Note --- (Rupees in '000) --- 

37.1

38

39

39.1

38.1

38.2

OTHER INCOME     

OTHER EXPENSES    
Salaries and other benefits include Rs. 6.57 million (2021: Rs. 6.70 million) in respect of 
retirement and other service benefits.  

Salaries and other benefits include Rs. 0.35 million (2021: Rs. 0.35 million) in respect of 
retirement and other service benefits.

Income from financial assets
Profit on saving accounts

Income from non-financial assets
Rental income from storage tanks-cylinders
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Old liabilities written back
Reversal of expected credit losses
Recoveries against cylinder replacement
Hospitality income
Gain on restructuring of loan

Liability for cylinder deposits and regulator 
deposits written back

            

                 
                           

                       
                 

               
                           
               
         

1,162

1,076
1,907

19,245
3,231

613
1,944

188
37,756
67,122         

2,268

1,116
5,500

16,029
2,167

-
1,919
455

-
29,454 

Represents profit on bank accounts under conventional banking relationship. 

During the year, the Company carried out a exercise to identify cylinder and regulator 
deposits pertaining to cylinders issued for 10 years and above, which relates to inactive 
distributors / customers who are not in business with the Company. 

Workers' Profits Participation Fund
Directors' fees
Auditors' remuneration
Allowance for expected credit losses

38.1

38.2

14.1

23.1

39.1
14.1

           -                   
                                                            

                           
                              -

1,403
4,400
2,259

 
8,062 

 
 

4,800
2,556
1,542

8,898                

Auditors' remuneration    
Statutory audit
Half yearly review
Other certification
Out of pocket expenses and others

                           
                                 
                                 

                                 

1,200
500
290
269

2,259 

1,200
500
290
566

2,556 
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41

42

41.1

TAXATION  

EARNINGS / (LOSS) PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED     
     

FINANCIAL COSTS    
Mark-up / interest on:

Short-term loan
Short-term borrowings
Long-term loan
Lease liabilities

Bank charges and commission

 
           

               
                           
                       

                 

7,433
1,441

726
2,218

11,818
1,840

13,658 

-
-

22,363
3,013

25,376
1,613

26,989              

Current
Prior year
Deferred

17   
  

  

11,300
6

(11,492)
(186) 

6,546
(66,361)

15,441
(44,374) 

The numerical reconciliation between average tax rate and the applicable tax rate has not 
been presented during the year in these financial statements as the total tax liability of the 
Company during the year is covered under section 113 Minimum Tax of Income Tax 
Ordinance, 2001 as it is a higher of Corporate rate tax and Alternate Corporate Tax. 

2022 2021

Note --- (Rupees in '000) --- 

Profit / (loss) for the year 26,836         (119,754) 

22,489         22,489 

Earnings / (loss) per share - basic and diluted 1.19             (5.33)

--- (Number in '000) ---

--- (Rupees) ---

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding

2022 2021

Note --- (Rupees in '000) --- 

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS      
AS AT JUNE 30,2022



43

43.1

43.2

44

44.1

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES    

RETIREMENT AND OTHER SERVICE BENEFITS      
      
Pension fund and gratuity fund - valuation results:
      

 

The numerical reconciliation between average tax rate and the applicable tax rate has not 
been presented during the year in these financial statements as the total tax liability of the 
Company during the year is covered under section 113 Minimum Tax of Income Tax 
Ordinance, 2001 as it is a higher of Corporate rate tax and Alternate Corporate Tax. 

The aggregate amounts charged in the financial statements for remunerations, including all 
benefits to Chief Executive, Directors and Executives of the Company were as follows

The latest actuarial valuations of the defined benefit plans were carried out as at June 30, 
2022, using the “Projected Unit Credit Method”. The Company has terminated the gratuity 
and the purpose of the valuation is to fulfil the regulatory requirements. The assumptions 
and methodology used in the valuation are based on the provisions of International 
Accounting Standard 19 (IAS 19). The details of defined benefit plans are as follows:

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS      NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT JUNE 30,2022

Managerial remuneration 27,324      12,027      22,224      61,575      27,324      15,222      20,682      63,228      
Meeting fees 300           650           850           1,800        350           950           950           2,250        
Bonus 2,277        880           1,740        4,897        2,277        1,268        1,758        5,303        
Retirement benefits 1,161        -            760           1,921        1,161        -            694           1,855        
Travelling and conveyance 1,001        122           103           1,226        -            67             70             137           
Medical allowance -            413           1,014        1,427        -            792           828           1,620        
Mobile allowance -            30             -            30             -            30             -            30             

Total 32,063      14,122      26,691      72,876      31,112      18,329      24,982      74,423      
Number of persons 1               2               10             13             1               2               10             13             

(Rupees in '000)

Chief 
Executive

(Rupees in '000)
Directors Executives Total

2022 2021
Chief 

Executive Directors Executives Total

Fee amounting to Rs. 1.30 million (2021: Rs. 2.40 million) was paid to five (2021: four) 
non-executive directors for attending Board meetings during the year.

In addition, the Chief Executive, the Directors and certain Executives were also  provided 
with free use of the Company's maintained cars.



Note 2022 2021 2022 2021

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS      
AS AT JUNE 30,2022

44.1.1

44.1.2

44.1.3 Movement in defined benefit obligations:

Statement of financial
position reconciliation:

Fair value of plan assets
Present value of defined  benefit 
obligations                                
Net (asset) / liability at end
of the year                              

Balance as at July 01
Charge for the year
Contribution 
Remeasurements of 
obligations
Balance as at June 30 
 

Balance as at July 01 
Current service cost 
Interest cost 
Employee contributions 
Benefits paid 
Curtailment / settlement gain 
Remeasurements of 
obligations                             
Balance as at June 30 
 

 117,083 
 1,537 
 11,201 

 253 
 (10,139)

 -   

 (13,720)
 106,215 

 

  119,339 
 1,188 

 9,679 
 442 

 (10,496)
 -   

 (3,069)
 117,083 

  19,586 
 1,515 

 1,959 
 -   

 (25,382)
 520 

1,802 
 -   

 

   18,270 
 1,261 

 1,396 
 -   

 (3,694)
 -   

 2,353 
 19,586 

  

Movement in net liability / 
(asset) recognised:   

44.1.4

44.1.3

44.1.2                             

44.1.7                             
 

44.1.7                             
 

 (108,807)

 106,215 

 (2,592)

  14,676 
 2,562 

 (8,584)

 (11,246)
 (2,592)

                            

   31,915 
 3,496 

 (8,660)

 (12,075)
 14,676 

   1,779 
 2,213 

 (7,023)

 3,031 
 -   

   (1,350)
 1,146 

 -   

 1,983 
 1,779 

  (102,407)

 117,083 

 14,676 

   -   

 -   

 -   

   (17,807)

 19,586 

 1,779 

---- (Rupees in '000) ----

Pension Fund Gratuity Fund

44.1.4 Movement in fair value of plan 
 assets: 

Balance as at July 01 
Expected return on plan assets 
Contribution 
Employees contributions 
Benefits paid 
Remeasurements of plan assets 
Balance as at June 30 

 102,407 
 10,176 
 8,584 

 253 
 (10,139)
(2,474)

 108,807 

  87,424 
 7,372 

 8,660 
 442 

 (10,496)
 9,005 

 102,407 

  17,807 
 1,781 

 7,023 
 -   

 (25,382)
(1,229)

 -   

   19,620 
 1,511 

 -   
 -   

 (3,694)
 370 

 17,807 
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 117,083 
 1,537 
 11,201 

 253 
 (10,139)

 -   

 (13,720)
 106,215 

 

Movement in net liability / 
(asset) recognised:   

44.1.4

44.1.3

44.1.2                             

44.1.7                             
 

44.1.7                             
 

  14,676 
 2,562 

 (8,584)

 (11,246)
 (2,592)

                            

Note 2022 2021 2022 2021

Pension Fund Gratuity Fund

44.1.5

44.1.6

44.1.7

44.1.8

Charge for the year:  
 

Actual return on plan assets 
 
Remeasurement recognised in Other  
Comprehensive Income: 

Principal actuarial assumptions used  
 in  the actuarial valuation: 

Remeasurement of obligation 
   Experience (gain) / loss 

Financial assumptions 
   Discount rate 
   Expected per annum rate of return on 
   plan assets
   Expected per annum rate of increase 
   in salaries - long term  

Demographic assumptions 
   Expected mortality rate  

   Expected withdrawal rate  
 
 

SLIC
2001-2005

High

Adjusted 
SLIC

2001-2005
High

 

SLIC
2001-2005

High

Adjusted 
SLIC

2001-2005
High

13.25%

13.25%

13.25%

10.00%

10.00%

8.00%

13.25%

13.25%

13.25%

10.00%

10.00%

8.00%

Remeasurement of Plan Assests 
   Experience loss /(gain) 

 (13,720)

 2,474 

  (11,246)

  (3,069)

   (9,005)

    (12,074)      3,031       1,983 

   1,802 

    1,229      (370)

   2,353 

Current service cost 
Net Interest cost 
Curtailment / settlement gain 
 

  1,537 
 1,025 

 -   
 2,562 

 7,702   
 

   1,188 
 2,307 

 -   
 3,495 

 16,377 
   

    1,515 
 178 

 520 
 2,213 

 552 
   

   1,261 
 (115)

 -   
 1,146 

 1,881 



AS AT JUNE 30, 2022
Pension Fund Gratuity Fund

------- (Rupees in '000) ------

Gratuity Fund
AS AT JUNE 30, 2022

Pension Fund
------- (Rupees in '000) ------

44.1.9

44.1.0

44.1.11

44.1.12

Analysis of present value of defined benefit obligation:  

Plan assets comprise of the following: 

Historical information of staff retirement benefits:  

Gratuity Fund

Pension Fund

Vested benefits
Non-vested benefits

-
-

3,895                               
102,320                          
106,215                          -

      54            0      84

                 43            0         31

          97            0      115

 1 0  0

          (0)            0       (16)

     

68

0

68

1

(1)

32         2            0 1

74,064

-
74,064

760

(793)

34,524

108,555   

55,458

44,255

99,713

738

(193)

2,149

102,407   

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

14,964

5,466

20,430

49

(2,877)

204

17,806 

Pension Fund Gratuity Fund
2022 2021 2022 2021

Rupees in 
'000

%
Rupees in 

'000
%

Rupees in 

'000
% %

Rupees in 

'000
Investments

Mutual funds

Musharka Certificate

Advances and other receivable

Liabilities

Cash and cash equivalents

Present value of defined
Benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets
Deficit / (surplus)

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

-                15,800          
-             (25,236)        
- 

19,586

(17,807)

1,779

18,270

(19,620)

(1,350)      

13,311

(17,431)

(4,120)      (9,436)      

15,754

(12,554)

3,200        

      

                    

106,215

(108,807)

(2,592)      

117,083

(102,407)

14,676     

119,337

(87,424)

31,913     

77,031

(93,399)

(16,368)    

108,913

(75,828)

33,085     

102,914

(96,825)

6,089        

----(Rupees in '000)---

Present value of defined
benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets
(Surplus) / deficit 

           
                      

The amount of the defined benefit obligation after changes in the weighted principal 
assumptions is as follows:  

Discount rate + 1%
Discount rate - 1%
Long term salaries increase +1%
Long term salaries increase -1%
Withdrawal rates +10%
Withdrawal rates -10%
1 Year Mortality age set back
1 Year Mortality age set forward

 99,215 
 114,171 

 108,332 
 104,215 

 105,909 
 106,535 
 106,317 
 106,113 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
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44.1.13

44.2

44.2.1

Size of the fund - total assets
Fair value of investments
Cost of investments
Percentage of investments

5,256
6,000
5,155

98.08%

Rupees
in '000

    625 
 5,375 
 6,000 

Bank deposits
Mutual funds

Rupees
in '000

      419 
 13,348 
 13,767

%

3 
97 

%

10 
90 

 

13,629   
13,767   
13,544   
99.38%

2022 2021

2022 2021

--- (Rupees in '000) --- 

The amount of the defined benefit obligation after changes in the weighted principal 
assumptions is as follows:  

The above sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all 
other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of 
the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined 
benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value 
of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the 
end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the liability recognised 
within the statement of financial position.  

The following information is based upon the latest audited financial statements of the 
provident fund as at June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021:  

Investments out of the Staff Provident Fund have been made in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this 
purpose.  
  
  

 Provident Fund

The break-up of fair value of investments is as follows: 
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45 

45.1

45.2

2022 2021

The related parties include the former holding company, subsidiary company, staff 
retirement benefit / contribution plans, associated companies, other related parties, 
Directors and other Key Management Personnel. All major transactions with related parties 
are entered into at agreed terms duly approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. 
  

Details of transactions during the year and balances at the reporting date with related 
parties, other than those which have been disclosed elsewhere in these unconsolidated 
financial statements, are as follows:  

Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited Gratuity Fund
Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited Management 
Staff Pension Fund
Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited Provident Fund

Burshane Petroleum (Private) Limited
[Formerly Darian International (Private)
Limited]

Short term Loan - received *
Short term Loan - paid *
Interest expense on short term loan
Interest paid on short term loan
Received against expenses 

AAK Commodities (Private) Limited
[Formerly ALSAA & AAK Commodities 
(Private) Limited]

Expense paid on behalf of 
associated company
Amount received against expenses

  Amount received against expenses

Interest received on short term advances Roots International Brands (Private) 

A&S Corporation (Private) Limited 

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES 

Transactions with related parties 

Nature of relationship   

Staff retirement benefit / contribution plans 

Associated Companies 

Subsidiary Company 
Burshane Auto Gas (Private) Expense paid on behalf 

of subsidiary company
Amount received against expenses 

 
405 
189 

 
 

Benefits paid
Benefits paid

Contribution paid

 4,146 
 

8,584  
2,749 

 397,000 
 352,000 

 7,433 
 6,395 

 -   

 90,000 
 90,000 

 452 
 452 
 500 

 -   

 8,660 
 2,765 

 
246  

-   

 -   

 -   

34   
34   

 250   

 -
 75
 

834
 

Nature of transactions  ---(Rupees in '000)--- 

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS      
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*

2022 2021

The related parties include the former holding company, subsidiary company, staff 
retirement benefit / contribution plans, associated companies, other related parties, 
Directors and other Key Management Personnel. All major transactions with related parties 
are entered into at agreed terms duly approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. 
  

Details of transactions during the year and balances at the reporting date with related 
parties, other than those which have been disclosed elsewhere in these unconsolidated 
financial statements, are as follows:  

During the year, the Company obtained a loan amounting to Rs. 397 million at a markup of 
KIBOR plus 2% from Burshane Petroleum (Private) Limited, an associate company, with no 
agreed purpose and other terms. The loan amounting to Rs. 352 million was also repaid by 
cheque during the year.  

Interest received on short term advances 

 Nature of relationship   

Balances with related parties 

Former Holding Company 

Subsidiary 

Staff retirement benefit / contribution plans 

Associated Companies 

Key management personnel 

H.A.K.S. Trading (Private) Limited 

Burshane Auto Gas (Private) Limited 

Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited Management
Staff Pension Fund
Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited Gratuity Fund
Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited Provident Fund 

Burshane Petroleum (Private) Limited
(Formerly Darian International (Private) Limited)

Key management personnel 

Receivable / (payable) to 
staff pension fund
Receivable from staff gratuity fund
Receivable from staff provident fund

Receivable against use of name Burshane
Short-term loan
Markup payable 

Long-term loan
Short-term loan

Dividend payable 

Investment held insubsidiary
Loan payable to subsidiary
Receivable against expenses

 353 
 434 

 
 

 9,000 
 -   
 -   

 

 
(14,483)

 1,098 
 -   

 50,000 
 50,000 

 11 

 79,971 

Nature of
transactions  

Key management 

Expense paid on behalf 
of subsidiary company
Amount received against expenses 

 
405 
189 

 
 

Loan disbursed
Amount received against loan
Managerial remuneration
Bonus
Retirement benefits
Utilities
Advance against salary
Travelling and conveyance
Medical 

 79,971 

 50,000 
 50,000 

 227 

 
3,133 

 -   
 511 

 9,000 
 45,000 

 1,038 
 

 -   
 368 

 
 

 2,875 
 3,294 

 61,575 
 4,897 

 1,921 
 30 

 -   
 1,226 
 1,427 

 1,060 
 1,127 

 63,228 
 5,303 
 1,855 

 30 
 760 
 137 

 1,620 

Nature of transactions  ---(Rupees in '000)--- 

---(Rupees in '000)--- 
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45.3 Following are the related parties with whom the Company had entered in to transactions or 
has arrangement / agreement in place.  

No share capital has been issued since incorporation and no transactions were undertaken 
by Burshane Trading (Private) Limited during the year 

H.A.K.S Trading (Private) Limited
Burshane Auto Gas (Private) Limited
Burshane Trading (Private) Limited *
AAK Commodities (Private) Limited
(Formerly ALSAA & AAK Commodities
(Private) Limited)
A&S Corporation (Private) Limited
Norinco International Thatta Power
(Private) Limited
Burshane Petroleum (Private) Limited
(Formerly Darian International 
(Private) Limited)
AN Developers (Private) Limited
AN Energy (Private) Limited
Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited
Gratuity Fund
Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited 
Management Staff Pension Fund
Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited
Provident Fund 
 

Former Holding Company 
Subsidiary Company
Subsidiary Company

Common directorship
Common directorship

Common directorship

Common directorship
Common directorship
Common directorship

Staff Retirement Benefit Plan

Staff Retirement Contribution Plan

Staff Retirement Contribution Plan 
 
 
 

Nil
99.99

Nil

Nil
Nil

Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
 

Nil 
           

            
 

 
 
 

Name Basis of Relation  % of shareholding 
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*
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2022 2021Following are the related parties with whom the Company had entered in to transactions or 
has arrangement / agreement in place.  

Profit / (loss) before taxation
Adjustment for non-cash and other items:
Gain on disposal of property, plant
and equipment
Financial charges
Depreciation
Amortisation
Provision for retirement and other service
 benefits
Restructuring of loan to short-term borrowings 
Gain on loan restructuring
(Reversal) / allowance for the year
Liability for cylinder deposits written back

Loss before working capital changes 
Working capital changes  

 26,653 
 

 (1,907)
 13,658 

 44,864 
 10,118 

 4,775 
 (154,000)

 (37,756)
 (613)

 (19,245)
 (140,106)
 (113,456)

 27,153
(86,300)

  

 (164,128)

 (5,500)
 26,989 
 44,020 
 49,168 

 4,642 
 -   
 -   

 1,542 
 (16,029)
 104,832 

 (59,296)
 (196,769)

 (256,065)

Former Holding Company 
Subsidiary Company
Subsidiary Company

Common directorship
Common directorship

Common directorship

Common directorship
Common directorship
Common directorship

Staff Retirement Benefit Plan

Staff Retirement Contribution Plan

Staff Retirement Contribution Plan 
 
 
 

Nil
99.99

Nil

Nil
Nil

Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
 

Nil 
           

            
 

 
 
 

38
40

8.1.3
9.5

14.1
38

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 

Note
Basis of Relation  

Working capital changes 

---(Rupees in '000)--- 

46.1

Decrease / (increase) in current assets:
Stores and spares
Stock-in-trade
Trade debts
Loans and advances
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities:
Trade and other payables 19,284 (15,257)

27,153 (196,769)

(800)
(25,791)

531
15,498
18,431
7,869

(1,658)
24,767

(64,431)
(18,943)
(121,247)
(181,512)
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46.1



            

           
 

 368 
 3,174 

 87,747 
 368 

 104,818 
 96,272 

 292,747 

 840 
 3,174 

 87,665 
 487 

 122,814 
 92,622 

 307,602 

2022 2021

---(Rupees in '000)--- 47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Financial liabilities as per statement of financial position
Amortized cost

Financial assets as per statement of financial position
Amortized cost

Long-term loans including current portion
Long-term deposits
Trade debts
Loans and advances
Deposits and other receivables
Bank balances

 

138,115
94,257
50,000

466,197
3,205

751,774

254,439
91,018

50,000
438,262
 119,392

953,111

Trade and other payables
Loan from a subsidiary company
Cylinder and regulator deposits
Accrued mark-up

Long-term loan including current maturity
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49.1 Financial risk factors

CHANGE IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES48

49

As at July 
01, 2021

Restructuring of 
loan from NBP Additions Disposals Others Cashflows As at June 

30, 2022

Long-term loan -              161,671                 -               -               (21,883)       (25,443)       114,345        
Current portion of 
long-term loan 254,439     (220,382)               -               -               (10,287)       -               23,770          
Lease liabilities 9,942          -                         27,000        -               (18,071)       -               18,871          
Current portion of 
lease liabilities 6,349          -                         -                   (3,018)         20,289        (14,316)       9,304            
Short-term loan -              -                         397,000      -               -               (352,000)     45,000          
Short-term borrowings -              154,000                 -               -               -               (2,939)         151,061        
Accrued mark-up 119,392     (95,289)                 3,205           -               (5,586)         (18,517)       3,205            

2022 390,122     -                              427,205      (3,018)         (35,538)       (413,215)     365,556        

As at July 
01, 2020

Restructuring of 
loan from NBP Additions Disposals Others Cashflows As at June 

30, 2021

Current portion of 
long-term loan 254,439     -                         -               -               -               -               254,439        
Lease liabilities 17,511        -                         -               -               (7,569)         -               9,942            
Current portion of 
lease liabilities 5,114          -                         -               -               8,950           (7,715)         6,349            
Accrued mark-up 97,029        -                         22,363        -               -               -               119,392        

2021 374,093     -                         22,363        -               1,381           (7,715)         390,122        

Description
----------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) -----------------------------------------------------

Description
----------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) -----------------------------------------------------

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(a) Market risk

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk 
(including currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity 
risk. The Company’s overall risk management programme focuses on having cost 
effective funding as well as to manage financial risk to minimize earnings volatility 
and provide maximum return to shareholders. Risk management is carried out by 
the Company’s finance and treasury department under policies approved by the 
Board of Directors.          

Market risk is the risk that changes in market price, such as foreign exchange rates, 
interest rates and other prices will effect the Company's income or the value of its 
holdings of financial instruments.        
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i) Currency risk

ii) Interest rate risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial 
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those 
arising from currency risk or interest rate risk), whether those changes are caused by 
factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting 
all similar financial instruments traded in the market. The Company is not materially 
exposed to other price risk at the reporting date.       

The management of the Company estimates that 1% increase in the market interest 
rate, with all other factors remaining constant, would decrease the Company's profit 
before tax by Rs. 3.34 million (2021: 2.54 million) and a 1% decrease would result in 
increase in the Company's profit before tax by the same amount. However, in practice, 
the actual result may differ from the sensitivity analysis.      

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial 
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The 
Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates 
primarily to the Company's operating activities. It mainly arises when receivables 
and payables exist due to transactions in foreign currency.
          
As majority of the Company's financial assets and liabilities are denominated in 
Pakistani Rupees, therefore, the Company, at present, is not exposed to foreign 
currency  risk.          

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial 
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company 
is primarily exposed to interest rate risk arising from long-term loan from bank and 
bank deposits. Borrowing at variable rate exposes the Company to cash flow interest 
rate risk. The Company manages its interest rate risk by availing at fixed rate and 
borrowings by placing its excess funds in saving accounts in banks.   

2022 2021 2022 2021
Effective rate

-------- (In percent) --------
Financial liabilities

Variable rate instruments

16.83% 9.50% 138,115              254,439              
Short-term loan 15.83% - 45,000                -                       
Short-term borrowings 16.58% - 151,061              -                       

334,176              254,439              

Carrying amount
--------- (Rupees in '000) ---------

Long-term loan including 
current maturity

iii) Other price risk
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---(Rupees in '000)--- 

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial 
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those 
arising from currency risk or interest rate risk), whether those changes are caused by 
factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting 
all similar financial instruments traded in the market. The Company is not materially 
exposed to other price risk at the reporting date.       

The management of the Company estimates that 1% increase in the market interest 
rate, with all other factors remaining constant, would decrease the Company's profit 
before tax by Rs. 3.34 million (2021: 2.54 million) and a 1% decrease would result in 
increase in the Company's profit before tax by the same amount. However, in practice, 
the actual result may differ from the sensitivity analysis.      

For trade debts, the credit risk exposure is net of allowance for expected credit losses 
as disclosed in note 14.1.          
          

Long-term loans represent loans given to employees which are secured against the 
letter of guarantee and promissory notes or their respective provident fund balances 
as disclosed in note 11.2 and therefore, management expects no credit losses. Due to 
the nature of bank balances and deposits and high credit ratings of banks and 
counter parties involved, the expected credit losses in relation to these assets are low 
and are therefore, not recognised.         

Credit risk represents the risk of financial loss being caused if counter party fails to 
discharge an obligation. The Company attempts to control credit risk by monitoring 
credit exposures, limiting transactions with specific counter parties and continually 
assessing the creditworthiness of counter parties.

Credit risk of the Company arises from trade debts, loans, deposits and other 
receivables, deposits with banks and financial institutions. The Company monitors 
the credit quality of its financial assets with reference to historical performance of 
such assets and available external credit ratings. The carrying amount of financial 
assets expose to credit risk is as follows:       

(b) Credit risk

2022 2021

Long-term loans including current portion

 

Long-term deposits  

 

Trade debts  

 

Deposits and other receivables               

 

Bank balances  

 

368
3,174

87,747
104,818
96,272

292,379              

840
3,174

87,665
122,814
92,622
307,115
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The credit quality of Company’s bank balances can be assessed with reference to 
external credit ratings as follows:        

Liquidity risk is that the risk the Company will not be able to meet its financial 
obligations as they fall due. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity risk is to 
ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its 
liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring 
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. Following are 
the contractual maturities of the Company’s financial liabilities:    

Name Rating agency

2022 2021 2022 2021

Bank Alfalah Limited PACRA A1+ A1+ AA+ AA+
Habib Bank Limited VIS A1+ A1+ AAA AAA
MCB Bank Limited PACRA A1+ A1 AAA A
National Bank of Pakistan PACRA A1+ A1+ AAA AAA
Standard Chartered Bank
(Pakistan) Limited PACRA A1+ A1+ AAA AAA
Faysal Bank Limited PACRA A1+ A1+ AA AA
United Bank Limited VIS A1+ A1+ AAA AAA
Sindh Bank Limited VIS A1+ A1 A+ A+
JS Bank Limited PACRA A1+ A1+ AA- AA-
Meezan Bank Limited VIS A1+ A1+ AAA AAA
Summit Bank Limited VIS Not rated Not rated Not rated Not rated

Rating
Short term Long term

c) Liquidity risk

Financial liabilities
Long-term loan including current 

maturity 23,770              114,345            138,115           254,439           -              254,439       
Lease Liability 9,304                18,871              28,175             6,349               9,942           16,291         
Cylinder and regulator deposits -                   466,197            466,197           -                   438,262       438,262       
Trade and other payables 94,257              -                    94,257             91,018             -              91,018         
Short-term loan 45,000              -                    45,000             -                   -              -              
Short-term borrowings 151,061            -                    151,061           -                   -              -              
Accrued mark-up 3,205                -                    3,205               119,392           -              119,392       
Loan from a subsidiary company 50,000              -                    50,000             50,000             -              50,000         

376,597            599,413            976,010           521,198           448,204       969,402       

Total
Maturity 
upto one 

year

Maturity 
after 

one year
Total

Maturity 
upto one 

year

Maturity 
after 

one year
-------- Rupees in '000 -------

2022 2021
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Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability can be 
settled, between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction. As of 
the reporting date, Company's all assets and liabilities are carried at amortised cost 
except for those mentioned below:
          
The Company's freehold land and leasehold land are stated at revalued amounts, 
being the fair value at the date of revaluation, less any subsequent impairment 
losses, if any. The fair value measurement of the Company's freehold land at 
February 15, 2022 and leasehold land as at June 14, 2022 was carried out by M/s. K. G. 
Traders (Private) Limited and M/s. Luckyhiya Associate (Private) Limited (refer note 
8.1.6).          
     
The valuation techniques and inputs used to develop fair value measurement of 
aforementioned assets are as follows:
  
Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 
          
Level 2: Those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are 
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived 
from prices); and          

Level 3: Those whose inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable 
market date (unobservable inputs).
          
There were no transfers between level 1, 2 or 3 of the fair value hierarchy during the 
year. 
          
Details of fair value hierarchy and information relating to fair value of the Company's 
freehold land and leasehold land are as follows:      
    

49.2 Fair value of hierarchy

Assets measured at fair value
Property, plant and equipment
Freehold land -                   16,800              -                   16,800             
Leasehold land -                   569,288            -                   569,288           

2022 -                   586,088            -                   586,088           

Assets measured at fair value
Property, plant and equipment
Freehold land -                   16,500              -                   16,500             
Leasehold land -                   569,288            -                   569,288           

2021 -                   585,788            -                   585,788           

Significant 
observable 

inputs (level 2)

Significant 
unobservable 

inputs (level 3)
Total

----------------------------------- Rupees in '000 ------------------------------

Fair value measurement using

Quoted price in 
active markets

(level 1)
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS      
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2022

The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management 
of working capital with a view of maintaining an appropriate mix between various 
sources of finance to minimize risk. The primary objective of the Company’s capital 
management is to ensure that it maintains healthy capital ratios in order to support 
its business sustain future development of the business and maximize shareholders 
value. The Company monitors capital using a debt equity ratio as follows:   
       
          

50 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

2022 2021

Lease liability
Cylinder and regulator deposits
Loan from a subsidiary company
Short-term loan
Short-term borrowings

Cash and bank balances
Total debt

   Trade and other payables
   Long-term loan including current maturity

   Unclaimed dividends
   Accrued mark-up

   Capital reserves
   Revenue reserves
   Actuarial loss on remeasurement of 
   retirement and other service benefits

Total equity
Capital
Gearing ratio

   Revaluation surplus on property

   Share capital

 Net debt   
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

        

                28,175 
              466,197 
                50,000 
                45,000 

              151,061 
138,115
112,827
83,050

3,205
1,077,630

 981,334
(96,296)

224,888
153,458
(75,132)

(30,477)
336,715

 609,452
 1,590,786

61.69%

                16,291
              438,262
                50,000

                        -
                        -

254,439
108,026

83,198
119,392

  976,786
 

1,069,608
(92,822)

224,888
153,458
(101,971)

(36,223)
336,415
576,567

1,553,353
62.88%

---(Rupees in '000)--- 
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The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management 
of working capital with a view of maintaining an appropriate mix between various 
sources of finance to minimize risk. The primary objective of the Company’s capital 
management is to ensure that it maintains healthy capital ratios in order to support 
its business sustain future development of the business and maximize shareholders 
value. The Company monitors capital using a debt equity ratio as follows:   
       
          

---(Rupees in '000)--- 

Certain corresponding figures have been reclassified for better presentation, 
however, there are no material reclassifications to disclose.    

This include storage and filling capacity of hospitality locations utilization. The 
variations are due to change in market demand.      

These unconsolidated financial statements have been rounded to the nearest 
thousand rupee, unless stated otherwise.       

2022 2021

2022 2021

51

52.1

CORRESPONDING FIGURES

52 CAPACITY

52.1

53 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Installed annual filling capacity
Actual utilization

(Quantity in metric ton)

               37,500 
               30,960 

               37,500 
                32,924 

Average number of employees during the year
As at the reporting date 76

77
85 
82

54 GENERAL

These unconsolidated financial statements were authorized for issue on 
September 26, 2022 by the Board of Directors of the Company.    

55 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICERDIRECTOR
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13,629   
13,767   
13,544   
99.38%

2021

    Property, plant and equipment  
    Intangible assets  
    Long-term loans  
    Long-term deposits  
    
  CURRENT ASSETS   
    Stores and spares  
    Stock-in-trade  
    Trade debts  
    Loans and advances   
    Deposits, prepayments and other receivables  
    Taxation - net  
    Cash and bank balances  
    
TOTAL ASSETS    
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    
  SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES   
    Authorized share capital  
    Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital  
    Capital reserves  
       Revaluation surplus of property  
       Other reserves  
    Revenue reserve  
    
  NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES   
    Long-term loan  
    Lease liabilities  
    Deferred taxation - net  
    Cylinder and regulator deposits  
    
  CURRENT LIABILITIES   
    Trade and other payables  
    Short-term loan  
    Short-term borrowings  
    Unclaimed dividends  
    Accrued mark-up  
    Current portion of long-term loan  
    Current portion of lease liabilities  
    
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS    
    
The annexed notes from 1 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16

17
18

19
19
20

21
22
23
24

25
26
27
28
29
21
22

30
 
 
 

 834,143 
 269,375 

 -   
 3,174 

 1,106,692 

 4,673 
 44,925 
 87,747 
 56,529 

 124,687 
 124,696 
 96,932 

 540,190 
 1,646,882 

 900,000 
 224,888 

 336,715 
 122,987 

 (74,895)
 609,692 

 114,345 
 18,871 
 9,345 

 466,197 
 608,758 

 113,039 
 45,000 
 151,061 
 83,050 

 3,205 
 23,770 
 9,304 

 428,429 
 1,646,882 

   
 
   

  807,389 
 279,493 

 353 
 3,174 

 1,090,409 

 3,873 
 19,134 

 87,665 
 72,027 

 141,646 
 106,990 
 93,623 

 524,958 
 1,615,367 

 900,000 
 224,888 

 336,415 
 117,241 

 (101,508)
 577,036 

 -   
 9,942 
 18,367 

 438,262 
 466,571 

 108,382 
 -   
 -   

 83,198 
 119,392 

 254,439 
 6,349 

 571,760 
 1,615,367 

   
 
   

ASSETS    
  NON-CURRENT ASSETS   

Note

2022

--- (Rupees in '000) ---

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICERDIRECTOR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30,2022



  2,591,297 
 (2,557,808)

 33,489 
 (124,744)
 (66,446)

 29,513 
 (9,076)

 (170,753)
 (137,264)
 (26,989)

 (164,253)
 44,374 

 (119,879)

 (5.33)

   
 
   

2022 2021

Sales - net    
Cost of sales    
Gross profit    
Administrative expenses    
Distribution and marketing expenses    
Other income    
Other expenses    
    
Operating profit / (loss)    
Financial costs    
Profit / (loss) before taxation    
Taxation    
Profit / (loss) for the year    
    
    
    
Earnings / (loss) per share - basic and diluted    
    
    
The annexed notes from 1 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
   
.    
   

31
32

33
34
35
36

37

38

39
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 4,494,627 
 (4,328,477)

 166,150 
 (115,938)
 (68,977)

 67,157 
 (8,307)

 (126,065)
 40,085 

 (13,658)
 26,427

 186 
 26,613 

 1.18 
   

.   
 
   

Note --- (Rupees in '000) ---

--- (In Rupees) ---

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICERDIRECTOR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2022



Profit / (loss) for the year    
    
Other comprehensive income    
      Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to statement of 
      profit or loss:
  
      Surplus on revaluation of property   
      Actuarial gain on remeasurement of retirement and other 
      service benefits    
      Less: deferred taxation thereon   
    
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year    
    
The annexed notes from 1 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

26,613 

 
300

 
 8,215 

 (2,469)
 6,046 

 32,659 
  
  

  
  

.  
  

  
 

 (119,879)

 
-

   
 10,092 

 (2,927)
 7,165 

 (112,714)
  

  
  

.  
  

  
 

2022 2021

--- (Rupees in '000) ---

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICERDIRECTOR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2022
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16
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 (86,454)
 (12,730)
 (29,012)
 (26,752)

 353 
 -   

 47,180 
 (107,415)

 (74,717)
 28,878 

 (45,839)

 (25,443)
 397,000 

 (352,000)
 (148)

 (13,907)
 5,502 

 (147,752)
 93,623 

 (54,129)

 96,932 
 (151,061)
 (54,129)

 (256,005)
 (8,660)

 (38,549)
 (1,613)

 135 
 119,587 
 40,031 

 (145,074)

 (25,724)
 5,500 

 (20,224)

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 (7,715)
 (7,715)

 (173,013)
 266,636 

 93,623 

 93,623 
 -   

 93,623 

2022 2021

--- (Rupees in '000) ---
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES    
    Cash used in operations   
    Retirement and other service benefits paid   
    Taxes paid   
    Finance costs paid   
    Long-term loans - net   
    Long-term deposits - net   
    Cylinder and regulator deposits - net    
Net cash flows used in operating activities    
    
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES    
    Purchases of property, plant and equipment   
    Proceeds from property, plant and equipment   
Net cash used in investing activities    
    
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES    
    Long-term loan repaid   
    Short-term loan received   
    Short-term loan paid   
    Dividends paid   
    Repayment of lease liabilities   
Net cash flows generated from / (used in) financing activities   
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents    
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year    
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year    
    
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year comprise of:    
   Cash and bank balances    
   Short-term borrowings    
    
    
The annexed notes from 1 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
   

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICERDIRECTOR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2022



1 

1.1 

1.2

1.2.1

1.2.2

LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS OF THE GROUP      
      
The Group consists of Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited (note 1.1) and its subsidiary companies 
i.e. Burhsane Auto Gas (Private) Limited (note 1.2.1) and Burshane Trading (Private) Limited 
(note 1.2.2).      
   
The Holding Company      
      
Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited (the Holding Company) is a limited liability Company 
incorporated in Pakistan and is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange. The registered office of 
the Company is situated at Suite 101, 1st Floor, Horizon Vista, Commercial Plot No. 10, Block - 4, 
Scheme No. 5, Clifton, Karachi.
      
The principal activity of the Holding Company is storing, trading and marketing of Liquefied 
Petroleum Gas (LPG) throughout Pakistan and trading of Low Pressure Regulators (LPR).  
    
   
The Holding Company was a subsidiary of H.A.K.S. Trading (Private) Limited (HTPL). The major 
shareholder of HTPL was Mr. Asad Alam Niazi, Chief executive of the Holding Company, with 
74.19% shareholding of the ordinary shares while various other shareholders held 25.81% 
shares. However, consequent to the approval of the scheme of arrangement for 
amalgamation of HTPL and the Holding Company by the High Court of Sindh (the Court), HTPL 
was amalgamated with the Holding Company on February 20, 2015, as more fully explained in 
note 6. 
      
Subsidiary Companies      
      
Burshane Auto Gas (Private) Limited (the Subsidiary Company) was incorporated on 
September 26, 2014 under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, now Companies Act , 
2017.  The Subsidiary Company will mainly be engaged in opening and managing petrol 
pumps and Liquefied Petroleum Gas (LPG) outlets. The registered office of the Subsidiary 
Company is situated at Suit No.101, 1st Floor, Horizon Vista, Commercial - 10, Block 04, Clifton, 
Karachi. The Subsidiary Company has not commenced its operations and is in the start-up 
phase. the Holding Company holds 99.99% voting rights and is committed to provide financial 
support to the Subsidiary Company as and when required.       
    
Burshane Trading (Private) Limited (BTPL) was incorporated on October 13, 2014 under the 
repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, now Companies Act , 2017, for setting up trading 
operations particularly in coal and other energy related products. The registered office of BTPL 
is situated at Suite 101, 1st Floor, Horizon Vista, Plot No. Commercial Block-4, Scheme No. 5, 
Clifton, Karachi. No share capital has been issued and no transactions were undertaken by 
BTPL during the year.       
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Geographical location and addresses of major business units of the Holding Company are as 
under:      
     
Location:          Purpose:
      
Plot No. 70, Sector 7-D, Korangi Filling Plant-1, Adjacent 
to Pakistan Refinery Limited, Korangi Creek, Karachi              LPG Storage & filling plant
          
Square No. 94, Killa no. 1,2,3,4,5,6 & 7, tehsil 
Faisalabad, Near Abbaspur railway station.    LPG Storage & filling plant
         
BASIS OF PREPARATION      
      
Statement of compliance      
      
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 
approved accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The approved 
accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:     
   
 - International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International 
       Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and  
    
 - Provisions of and directives issued under the Act.     
      
Where provisions of and directives issued under the Act differ from the IFRS Standards, the 
provisions of and directives issued under the Act have been followed.     
   
Basis of measurement      
      
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost 
convention, unless otherwise specifically stated.      
         
Basis of consolidation      
      
These consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Holding 
Company and the Subsidiary Company as at the reporting date, here-in-after referred to as 
'the Group'.      
          
Subsidiaries      
      
Subsidiaries are those entities over which the Group has control. Control is achieved when the 
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and 
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the 
Group controls an investee if, and only if, the Group has:      
      
      
      
     
    

1.3

2 

2.1 

2.2 

2.3 

2.3.1
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- power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the 
 relevant activities of the investee).     
    
-  exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee.    
    
- the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.     
  
The Holding Company meets all the above conditions and hence has power over the 
subsidiary.      
      
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue 
to be consolidated until the date when such control ceases. Assets, liabilities, income and 
expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed off during the year are included in the 
consolidated profit and loss account from the date the Group gains control until the date the 
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.      
  
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business 
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of 
the extent of any non-controlling interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition is recorded as 
goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary 
acquired, the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss.      
   
After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if 
any. For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, 
on the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash generating units that are 
expected to benefit from the combination. Goodwill is tested annually or whenever there is an 
indication of impairment exists. Impairment loss in respect of goodwill is recognised in profit or 
loss and is not reversed in future periods.      
  
The assets, liabilities, income and expenses of subsidiary companies are consolidated on a 
line by line basis and the carrying value of investments held by the Holding Company is 
eliminated against the subsidiaries’ shareholders’ equity in the consolidated financial 
statements.
    
All intra-group transactions, balances, income, expenses and unrealised gains and losses on 
transactions between Group companies are eliminated in full.      
  
Burshane Auto Gas (Private) Limited (the Subsidiary Company) has same reporting period as 
that of the Holding Company. The accounting policies of the subsidiary are consistent with the 
accounting policies of the Group.      
 
Functional and presentation currency      
      
These consolidated financial statements have been presented in Pakistani ('Rupees) or 'Rs', 
which is the Group's functional and presentation currency.      
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APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS TO 
PUBLISHED ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING STANDARDS      

    
New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are 
effective for the year ended June 30, 2022      
  
The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended 
June 30, 2022. These standards, amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to 
the Holding Company's operations or are not expected to have material impact on the 
financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.      

           Effective date  
                   (annual periods
               beginning on or after)
Interest Rate Benchmarch Reform - Phase 2
(Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16)           January 01, 2021
      
Amendments to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Extended practical relief 
regarding Covid - 19 related rent consessions     April 01, 2021
      
New accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet 
effective      
      
The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting 
periods, beginning on or after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards, 
amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the Holding Company's operations 
or are not expected to have material impact on the Holding Company's financial statements 
other than certain additional  disclosures.      
 
Amendments to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations' - 
Reference to the conceptual framework              January 01, 2022
      
Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' 
- Classification of liabilities as current or non-current            January 01, 2023
      
Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' 
- Disclosure of Accounting Policies               January 01, 2023
      
Amendments to IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors' - Definition of Accounting Estimates    January 01, 2023
      
Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes' - Deferred Tax related 
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a single transaction             January 01, 2023
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                Effective date  
                   (annual periods 
                                 beginning on or after)
    
Amendments to IAS 16 'Property, Plant and Equipment' - 
Proceeds before intended use           January 01, 2022
      
Amendments to IAS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets' - Onerous Contracts - Cost of fulfilling a 
contract                 January 01, 2022
      
Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRSs.    
   
The following new standards and interpretations have been issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board (IASB), which have not been adopted locally by the Securities 
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP):      

IFRS 1   First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards; and  

IFRS 17   Insurance Contracts.  
      
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES      
      
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial 
statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all years 
presented, unless otherwise stated.      
   
Property, plant and equipment       
      
Owned      
      
These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses 
if any, except for freehold land and leasehold land, which are stated at revalued amount.  
   
Depreciation is charged to profit or loss using straight-line method whereby the cost of an 
asset is allocated over its estimated useful life at the rates given in note 7.1. Depreciation on 
additions is charged from the month in which the asset is available for use, while no 
depreciation is charged in the month in which the asset is disposed off. The residual values, 
useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each 
reporting date.       
    
Subsequent costs are included in the assets’ carrying amount or recognised as a separate 
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with 
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying 
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to 
profit or loss as and when incurred.      
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The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference between 
the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised as an income or 
expense in the profit or loss in the period of disposal.      
    
A revaluation surplus is recorded in consolidated statement of other comprehensive income 
(OCI) and credited to the asset revaluation surplus in equity. However, the increase is 
recorded in profit or loss to the extent it reverses a revaluation deficit of the same asset 
previously. A decrease as a result of revaluation is recognised in profit or loss however, a 
decrease is recorded in consolidated statement of other comprehensive income to the extent 
of any credit balance entry in revaluation surplus in respect of same asset.    
   
Right of use assets      
      
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at the amount of lease liability adjusted for any 
lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct cost 
incurred and an estimate of cost to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore 
the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.  
   
The right of use asset is subsequently depreciated using straight line method from the date of 
commencement date to the earlier of the end of useful life of the right of use asset or the end 
of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of the right of use assets are determined on the 
same basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the right of use asset is 
periodically reduced by the impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain 
remeasurement of the lease liability.      
  
Capital work-in-progress      
      
Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. It 
consists of expenditure incurred in respect of tangible assets in the course of their 
construction and installation, including financial charges on borrowings, if any, for financing 
the project until such projects are completed or become operational. Transfers are made to 
relevant asset category as and when assets are available for use.     
    
Intangible assets      
      
An intangible asset is recognised if it is probable that the future economic benefits 
attributable to the asset will flow to the Group and that the cost of such asset can also be 
measured reliably.       
   
Intangible assets, where applicable, are amortised from the month when such assets are 
available for use on straight line method whereby the cost of an intangible asset is allocated 
over its estimated useful life, at the rates given in note 8.      
   
The useful lives of intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether 
events and circumstances continue to support an indefinite useful life assessment for the 
asset.      
      

      
      
      
      
     

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2022



a)
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c)
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The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference between 
the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised as an income or 
expense in the profit or loss in the period of disposal.      
    
A revaluation surplus is recorded in consolidated statement of other comprehensive income 
(OCI) and credited to the asset revaluation surplus in equity. However, the increase is 
recorded in profit or loss to the extent it reverses a revaluation deficit of the same asset 
previously. A decrease as a result of revaluation is recognised in profit or loss however, a 
decrease is recorded in consolidated statement of other comprehensive income to the extent 
of any credit balance entry in revaluation surplus in respect of same asset.    
   
Right of use assets      
      
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at the amount of lease liability adjusted for any 
lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct cost 
incurred and an estimate of cost to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore 
the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.  
   
The right of use asset is subsequently depreciated using straight line method from the date of 
commencement date to the earlier of the end of useful life of the right of use asset or the end 
of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of the right of use assets are determined on the 
same basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the right of use asset is 
periodically reduced by the impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain 
remeasurement of the lease liability.      
  
Capital work-in-progress      
      
Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. It 
consists of expenditure incurred in respect of tangible assets in the course of their 
construction and installation, including financial charges on borrowings, if any, for financing 
the project until such projects are completed or become operational. Transfers are made to 
relevant asset category as and when assets are available for use.     
    
Intangible assets      
      
An intangible asset is recognised if it is probable that the future economic benefits 
attributable to the asset will flow to the Group and that the cost of such asset can also be 
measured reliably.       
   
Intangible assets, where applicable, are amortised from the month when such assets are 
available for use on straight line method whereby the cost of an intangible asset is allocated 
over its estimated useful life, at the rates given in note 8.      
   
The useful lives of intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether 
events and circumstances continue to support an indefinite useful life assessment for the 
asset.      
      

      
      
      
      
     

Software      
      
Costs that are directly associated with identifiable computer software and have probable 
economic benefits exceeding one year, are recognised as an intangible asset. Costs include 
the purchase cost of software, implementation cost and related overhead cost. Intangible 
assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial 
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any 
accumulated impairment losses thereon.      
   
Expenditure which enhances or extends the performance of computer software beyond its 
original specification and useful life is recognised as a capital improvement and added to the 
original cost of the software.      
     
Goodwill      
      
This represents excess of cost of acquisition over fair value of the identifiable assets and 
liabilities of the Group at the time of acquisition by HTPL.      
    
Goodwill on acquisition is not amortised but tested annually for impairment and carried at 
cost less accumulated impairment losses, if  any.      
    
Trademarks      
      
This represents separately acquired trade marks with indefinite useful life. These are stated at 
cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Carrying amounts of trademarks are subject 
to impairment review at each reporting date.      
   
Stores and spares      
      
Stores and spares to be consumed in the ordinary course of business are valued at First in First 
Out (FIFO) basis and net realizable value (NRV) except for those in transit, if any, which are 
stated at cost. Cost comprises of invoice value plus other direct costs incurred thereon. 
Provision is made for slow moving and obsolete items wherever necessary and is recognised 
in profit or loss.      
    
Stock-in-trade      
      
Stock-in-trade is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value (NRV). Cost is determined 
using the weighted average method for both Liquefied Petroleum Gas (LPG) and Low Pressure 
Regulators (LPR). Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other 
charges incurred thereon.      

Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business 
less estimated cost necessary to be incurred to make the sale.      
      

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2022



4.5 

4.6 

4.7 

4.7.1

 
 

  
  
 
  
  

Trade debts and other receivables      
      
Trade debts and other receivables are stated initially at fair value and subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less provision for 
expected credit losses, if any. Allowance for expected credit losses is based on lifetime ECLs 
that result from all possible default events over the expected life of the trade debts and other 
receivables. Trade debts and other receivables are written-off when considered 
irrecoverable.      
   
Cash and cash equivalents      
      
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, cash with banks on current, collection, 
deposit and saving accounts and short-term running finance. Running finances under 
mark-up arrangements are shown with short term borrowings in current liabilities on the 
statement of financial position.      
  
Retirement and other service benefits      
      
Defined benefit plan      
      
The Group Company operates:      
      
an approved defined benefit gratuity scheme for all permanent employees and non 
management employees. The scheme provides for a graduated scale of benefits dependent 
on the length of service of the employee on terminal date, subject to the completion of 
minimum qualifying period of service. Gratuity is based on employee’s last drawn salary; and 
an approved defined benefit pension scheme for management staff. The scheme provides 
pension based on the employees’ last drawn salary subject to the completion of minimum 
qualifying period of service. Pensions are payable for life and thereafter to surviving spouses 
and / or dependent children.      
   
Both the above schemes are funded and contributions to them are made monthly on the 
basis of actuarial valuation and in line with the provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.  
   
The gratuity and pension funds are governed under the Trust Act, 1882, Trust Deed and Rules 
of Fund, repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and the 
Income Tax Rules, 2002. Responsibility for governance of plan, including investment decisions 
and contribution schedule lies with the Board of Trustees of the Funds. Further, monthly 
contributions are made by employees in the defined benefit pension fund at the rate of 1.4% 
and 1.72% according to their job grades. Actuarial valuations of these schemes are carried out 
at appropriate regular intervals.       

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2022



4.7.2

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

 

Trade debts and other receivables      
      
Trade debts and other receivables are stated initially at fair value and subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less provision for 
expected credit losses, if any. Allowance for expected credit losses is based on lifetime ECLs 
that result from all possible default events over the expected life of the trade debts and other 
receivables. Trade debts and other receivables are written-off when considered 
irrecoverable.      
   
Cash and cash equivalents      
      
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, cash with banks on current, collection, 
deposit and saving accounts and short-term running finance. Running finances under 
mark-up arrangements are shown with short term borrowings in current liabilities on the 
statement of financial position.      
  
Retirement and other service benefits      
      
Defined benefit plan      
      
The Group Company operates:      
      
an approved defined benefit gratuity scheme for all permanent employees and non 
management employees. The scheme provides for a graduated scale of benefits dependent 
on the length of service of the employee on terminal date, subject to the completion of 
minimum qualifying period of service. Gratuity is based on employee’s last drawn salary; and 
an approved defined benefit pension scheme for management staff. The scheme provides 
pension based on the employees’ last drawn salary subject to the completion of minimum 
qualifying period of service. Pensions are payable for life and thereafter to surviving spouses 
and / or dependent children.      
   
Both the above schemes are funded and contributions to them are made monthly on the 
basis of actuarial valuation and in line with the provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.  
   
The gratuity and pension funds are governed under the Trust Act, 1882, Trust Deed and Rules 
of Fund, repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and the 
Income Tax Rules, 2002. Responsibility for governance of plan, including investment decisions 
and contribution schedule lies with the Board of Trustees of the Funds. Further, monthly 
contributions are made by employees in the defined benefit pension fund at the rate of 1.4% 
and 1.72% according to their job grades. Actuarial valuations of these schemes are carried out 
at appropriate regular intervals.       

Defined contribution plan      
      
The Group operates a recognised contributory provident fund for all permanent employees. 
Equal monthly contributions are made, both by the Group and the employees at the rate of 
4.25% per annum of the basic salary and 10% per annum of the basic salary for management 
and non-management employees, respectively.       
  
Lease liabilities      
      
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments over 
the lease term, discounted using the specific incremental borrowing rate. Subsequently lease 
liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.    
   
It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in the 
rate, if there is a change in the Group's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under 
a residual value guarantee, or if the Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a 
purchase, extension or termination option.      
   
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the 
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount 
of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.       
   
Loans and borrowings      
      
Loans and borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. 
Loan and borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost using the effective interest 
rate method.      
   
Loans and borrowings are classified as current liabilities, unless the Group has an 
unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the 
reporting date.
   
Trade and other payables      
      
These are stated initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using 
the effective interest rate method. Exchange gains and losses arising in respect of liabilities in 
foreign currency are added to the carrying amount of the respective liabilit    

Provisions      
      
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a 
result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle 
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions 
are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate.
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Taxation      
      
Current      
      
Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation 
after taking into account tax credits and rebates available, if any, or Minimum Tax on 
Turnover or Alternate Corporate Tax, whichever is higher in accordance with the provisions 
of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.      
     
Deferred      
      
Deferred tax is recognized using the liability approach, on all temporary differences arising 
at the reporting date between the tax base of asset and liabilities and their carrying 
amounts for financial reporting purposes.      
    
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax 
asset are recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable 
that the future taxable profits will be available against which the asset may be utilised. 
Deferred tax asset are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax 
benefit will be realised.      
    
The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced 
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to 
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recognised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets 
are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become 
probable that future taxable profit will allow deferred tax asset to be recovered.  
     
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply 
to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates (and 
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.  
     
Foreign currencies       
      
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into functional currency (Pakistani Rupees) 
using exchange rates approximating those ruling at the dates of the transactions. Monetary 
assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani Rupees at the rates of 
exchange prevailing at the reporting date. Exchange gains and losses resulting from the 
settlement of foreign currency transactions and translation of monetary assets and 
liabilities at the rates prevailing at the reporting date are included in profit or loss. 
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of a historical cost in  foreign currency are 
not re-translated.
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Borrowing costs       
      
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which these are incurred except 
where such costs are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a 
qualifying asset, in which case such costs are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.  
    
Dividend and appropriation to reserves      
      
Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognised in the financial statements in the 
period in which these are approved.
  
Earnings per share      
      
The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. 
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the 
Group by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. 
Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders 
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive 
potential ordinary shares, if any.      
   
 Financial instruments       
      
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a 
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.      
    
Financial assets       
      
Initial recognition and measurement 

Under IFRS 9, on initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised 
cost; Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) or Fair Value through Profit or 
Loss (FVTPL). 
     
The classification of financial assets under IFRS 9 is generally based on the business model in 
which a financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flow characteristics.   
     
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and 
is not designated as at FVTPL:      
     
-  it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual 
 cash flows; and     
      
      
-  its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
 of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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A debt instrument is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 
designated as at FVTPL:      
   
- it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting 
 contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and     

    
- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
 payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.  
      
On initial recognition of a equity instrument that is not held for trading, the Group may 
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI. This 
election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.      
    
All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described 
above are measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial 
recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the 
requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so 
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise. 
  
A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component 
that is initially measured at the transaction price, determined under IFRS 15) is initially 
measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to its acquisition.      
  
Subsequent measurement
  
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: 
   
-  Financial assets at FVTPL - The Group has not designated any financial asset as fair 
 value through profit or loss;     
      
-  Financial assets at amortised cost - The Group subsequently measures financial
 assets at amortised cost using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method and are subject to
 impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
  derecognised, modified or impaired;     
  
-  Debt instruments at FVOCI - The Group has not designated any financial asset at fair
 value through OCI with  / without recycling of cumulative gains and losses; and upon
 derecognition.     
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Derecognition 
     
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Group of similar 
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated 
statement of financial position) when: 
     
- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or      

- The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed 
 an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party 
 under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
 substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the  Group has neither
 transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,  but has
 transferred control of the asset.

When the  Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered 
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks 
and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the 
risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the  Group continues to 
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the 
Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability 
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained. 
    
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is 
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount 
of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.      
 
Impairment / expected credit losses on financial assets      
   
The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses ("ECL") for all debt instruments 
not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the 
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the 
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to the asset’s 
original effective interest rate.      
 
The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 180 days past 
due. However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default 
when internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the 
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements 
held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of 
recovering the contractual cash flows.

The Group uses the IFRS 9’s simplified approach and calculates ECL based on life-time ECL on 
its trade debts and contractual assets, where as for other financial assets loss allowance is 
measured at 12 months ECL under general approach of measuring ECL. The Group has  
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 established a provision matrix that is based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, 
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the financial assets and the economic 
environment. The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, 
forecast economic conditions and ECL is a significant estimate. The amount of ECL is sensitive 
to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. For trade debts, the 
Group's historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be 
representative of customer’s actual default in the future. The expected credit losses are 
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities      
      
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging 
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.
      
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and 
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.     
 
The Group financial liabilities include long-term loan, accrued mark-up on long-term loan, 
liabilities under finance lease, cylinder and regulator deposits,  trade and other payables and 
loan from subsidiary Holding Company

Loans and borrowings 
    
This is the category most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans 
and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains 
and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as 
through the EIR amortisation process.      
  
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition 
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance 
costs in profit or loss. This category generally applies to interest-bearing loans and borrowings 
and trade and other payables.

Derecognition 
   
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same 
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially 
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts 
is recognised in profit or loss.       
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4.18

Offsetting of financial instruments       
      
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the 
consolidated statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to 
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the 
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.      

Revenue from contracts with customers
    
The Holding Company is in the business of storing, marketing and trading of Liquefied 
Petroleum Gas (LPG) throughout Pakistan and trading of Low Pressure Regulators (LPR). 
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods is transferred 
to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be 
entitled in exchange for those goods. The Group has generally concluded that it is the principal 
in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the goods or services before 
transferring them to the customer.      
  
The Holding Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are 
separate performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be 
allocated. In determining the transaction price for the sale of goods, the Holding Company 
considers the effects of variable consideration, the existence of significant financing 
components, non-cash consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any).  
  
Performance obligations 
  
Information about the Holding Company performance obligations are summarised below:  
   
Sale of LPG and LPR      
      
The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of LPG and LPR at LPG pump stations. 
Payment is generally due at the time of delivery. The revenue from sale of these products is 
recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer i.e. on 
delivery of products.      
    
Others      
      
- Return on saving account is recorded using effective interest rate method.   
  
      
- Other revenues including recovery of storage and handling charges and rental income
 from storage tank are accounted for on accrual basis.     
      
      
- Income from dividend, if any, is recognised when right to receive dividend is established.
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The Group recognises an account receivable when the performance obligations have been 
met, recognising the corresponding revenue. Moreover, the consideration received before 
satisfying the performance obligations are recognised as advances from customer.   
  
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS      
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting and 
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan requires the use of certain critical accounting 
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying 
the Group’s accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are 
based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that 
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods 
affected. In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made 
the following estimates and judgments which are significant to the consolidated financial 
statements:      
    
Property, plant and equipment      
      
The Group reviews appropriateness of the rates of depreciation, useful lives and residual 
values used in the calculation of depreciation. Further, where applicable, an estimate of 
recoverable amount of assets is made for possible impairment on an annual basis.   

Intangible assets      
      
The Group reviews appropriateness of the rate of amortisation and useful life used in the 
calculation for amortisation. Further, where applicable, an estimate of recoverable amount 
of assets is made for possible impairment on an annual basis.      
   
Taxation      
      
In making the estimates for current income taxes payable by the Group, the management 
considers the applicable laws and the decisions / judgements of appellate authorities on 
certain issues in the past. Accordingly, the recognition of deferred tax is also made, taking 
into account these judgements and the best estimates of future results of operations of the 
Group.

Provision for retirement and other service benefits      
      
The present value of these obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined 
on actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. Any changes in these assumptions will 
impact the carrying amount  of these obligations. The present values of these obligations 
and the underlying assumptions are disclosed in note 41.      
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The Group recognises an account receivable when the performance obligations have been 
met, recognising the corresponding revenue. Moreover, the consideration received before 
satisfying the performance obligations are recognised as advances from customer.   
  
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS      
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting and 
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan requires the use of certain critical accounting 
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying 
the Group’s accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are 
based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that 
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods 
affected. In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made 
the following estimates and judgments which are significant to the consolidated financial 
statements:      
    
Property, plant and equipment      
      
The Group reviews appropriateness of the rates of depreciation, useful lives and residual 
values used in the calculation of depreciation. Further, where applicable, an estimate of 
recoverable amount of assets is made for possible impairment on an annual basis.   

Intangible assets      
      
The Group reviews appropriateness of the rate of amortisation and useful life used in the 
calculation for amortisation. Further, where applicable, an estimate of recoverable amount 
of assets is made for possible impairment on an annual basis.      
   
Taxation      
      
In making the estimates for current income taxes payable by the Group, the management 
considers the applicable laws and the decisions / judgements of appellate authorities on 
certain issues in the past. Accordingly, the recognition of deferred tax is also made, taking 
into account these judgements and the best estimates of future results of operations of the 
Group.

Provision for retirement and other service benefits      
      
The present value of these obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined 
on actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. Any changes in these assumptions will 
impact the carrying amount  of these obligations. The present values of these obligations 
and the underlying assumptions are disclosed in note 41.      
      
      

AMALGAMATION WITH HOLDING COMPANY       
Effective February 20, 2015, the Holding Company went through the scheme of 
amalgamation (the Scheme) with HTPL consequent to the approval of the Scheme by the 
High Court of Sindh.  
According to the Scheme, 0.31 ordinary shares of the Holding Company, with a face value of 
Rs. 10 each, were offered to the shareholders of HTPL for every one share held of HTPL, with a 
face value of Rs. 10 each. As per the Scheme, the Holding Company is required to allot new 
shares to the shareholders of HTPL. Upon allotment of new shares, old shares of the Holding 
Company, held by HTPL, shall stand cancelled and simultaneously HTPL shall stand dissolved 
without being wound up. Further, the cancellation of old shares and issuance of new shares, 
as per the swap ratio, will result in reduction of 151,154 shares of the Holding Company. The 
Holding Company is in the process of completing the legal formalities for issuance of new 
share certificates (refer note 18).         

As a result of the Scheme, the assets and liabilities of HTPL were amalgamated with the 
assets and liabilities of the Holding Company based on the fair values as of February 19, 2015. 
The summary of assets and liabilities of HTPL amalgamated as above, is as under:   

Assets    
   Goodwill    
   Property, plant and equipment    
   Cash and bank balances    
   
Liabilities    
   Long-term loan - secured    
   Deferred taxation    
   Trade and other payables    
   Short-term loans    
   Accrued mark-up on long-term loan    
    
Net assets     
Represented by:    
   Unappropriated loss    
   Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment  
   Reserve on amalgamation    
      

 253,091 
 559,529 

 51 
 812,671 

 400,000 
 14,863 
 2,247 

 30,646 
 17,508 

 465,264 
 347,407 

 (73,677)
 269,138 
 151,946 

 347,407 
 
   
   

Fair value as of 
February 19, 2015
(Rupees in '000)
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Operating fixed assets
Capital work-in-progress

Note

834,143
 -   

834,143

 807,389 
 -   

 807,389 

--- (Rupees in '000) ---7

2022
Rupees

2021
Rupees
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The depreciation charge for the year has been  allocated as follows:  

   Cost of sales     
   Administrative expenses     
   Distribution and marketing expenses     
     
      

Class of asset  
  
   Freehold land  
   Leasehold land 

Particulars of immovable assets of the Holding Company are as follows:   
      

(Rupees in '000)

 16,800 
 569,288 

These are in custody of distributors / customers owing to the nature of business of the Holding 
Company. The particulars of these assets have not been disclosed due to a large number of 
customers.         
        
The Holding Company possess leasehold lands of measuring  5.875 acres in Karachi. 
However, the legal title is on the name of H.A.K.S Trading (Private) Limited (HTPL), the former 
Holding Company.
       
The Holding Company’s freehold land and leasehold land was revalued on February 15, 2022 
by M/s. K. G. Traders (Private) Limited and on June 14, 2022 by M/s. Luckyhiya Associates 
(Private) Limited, an independent valuer, on the basis of their professional assessment of 
present market value for similar sized plots in the near vicinity of land. The revaluation has 
resulted in surplus for freehold and leasehold land amounting to Rs. 0.30 million and Rs. Nil 
respectively.         
     
Had the revaluation not been carried out, the related figures of freehold land and leasehold 
land would have been Rs. 5.62 million (2021: Rs. 5.62 million) and Rs. 243.75 million (2021: Rs. 
243.75 million), respectively.         
      
The forced sales value as per the revaluation report as of February 15, 2022 and June 14, 2022 
is as follows:         

35
36
37

 8,666 
 8,123 

 28,075 
 44,864 

  
  
 
  
  
  

  
  
  

 10,718 
 9,092 
 24,210 

 44,020 
 

  
  
 
  
  
  

  
  
  

Note

2022

2022

2021

--- (Rupees in '000) ---

7.1.3

7.1.4

7.1.5

7.1.6

7.1.7

7.1.8
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Particulars    
   
Freehold land   

 
Leasehold land   

 

Leasehold land   

 

Building on 
leasehold land
  

Leasehold land   

CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS    
 
   Balance as at July 01    
   Additions (at cost)    
   Transfer to property, plant and equipment  
   Balance as at June 30    

 -   
 100,722 

 (100,722)
 -   

   
 

 -   
 100,722 

 (100,722)
 -   

   
 

Usage of property

For future 
business expansion

For future 
business expansion

For future 
business expansion

Plant site 

Plant site 
   

Chak No. 245, Near Railway 
Station, Abbaspur, Faisalabad

Commercial - cum- Residential 
Land Deh Okewari, Shahrah - e - 
Faisal Survey # 47 

Commercial - cum- Residential 
Land Deh Okewari, Shahrah - e - 
Faisal Survey # 74 

Plot No. 70, Sector 7-D,Korangi 
Filling Plant-1, Adjacent to Pakistan 
Refinery Limited, Korangi Creek, 
Karachi 

LPG Storage & Filling Plant, Near 
Railway Station, Abbaspur, 
Faisalabad 
 
 

 
104,544 

  
107,811 

 
 

 40,293 
   

 9,710 

 6,380 

2022 2021
--- (Rupees in '000) ---

Covered Area 
 (Square feet) 

Goodwill (note 9.2) 253,091    -             -             253,091    -            -                     -                     -              253,091     Nil
Computer software 4,272        -             -             4,272        4,024        88                      -                     4,112          160            20%
Rights under 
Supply contracts (notes 9.3) 50,150      -            -             50,150      32,596      10,030               -                     42,626        7,524         20%
Trademarks (note 9.2 & 9.4) 8,600        -            -             8,600        -            -                     -                     -             8,600         Nil
2022 316,113    -            -             316,113    36,620      10,118               -                     46,738        269,375     

Goodwill (note 9.2) 253,091    -             -             253,091    -            -                    -                     -              253,091     Nil
Computer software 5,007        -             (735)           4,272        4,671        88                      735                    4,024          248            20%
Rights under 

Supply contracts (notes 9.3) 394,856    -             (344,706)    50,150      328,222    49,080               344,706             32,596        17,554       20% - 33%
Trademarks (note 9.2 & 9.4) 8,600        -             -             8,600        -            -                     -                     -              8,600         Nil

2021 661,554    -             (345,441)    316,113    332,893    49,168               345,441             36,620        279,493     

Rate of 
amortisation

As at July 
01, 2020

Charge for the 
year (note 9.6)

As at June 
30, 2021

As at June 
30, 2021

----------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) -------------------------------------

Cost Accumulated Amortisation
Net Book 

Value
As at July 
01, 2020 Additions As at June 

30, 2021Disposals Reversal

Rate of 
amortisation

----------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ---------------------

Cost Accumulated Amortisation
Net Book 

Value
As at July 
01, 2021 Additions Disposals As at June 

30, 2022
As at July 
01, 2021

Charge for the 
year (note 9.6) Reversal As at June 

30, 2022
As at June 

30, 2022

INTANGIBLE ASSETS    

7.2

8
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At June 30, 2022, intangible assets having cost of Rs. 3.84 million (2021: Rs. 3.84 million) are fully 
amortised.         
        
This represents excess of cost of acquisition over fair value of the identifiable assets and 
liabilities of the Company at the time of acquisition by HTPL (refer note 6).    
       
Impairment review of goodwill and trademarks:       
       
The carrying amount of goodwill has been allocated to Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited, 
which is the cash generating unit (CGU) and also the only operating and reportable segment 
for impairment review.         
         

The Holding Company performed its annual impairment review in June 2022 and June 2021. 
The Holding Company considers the relationship between its recoverable amount and its 
book value, among other factors, when reviewing for indicators of impairment. At June 30, 
2022, the recoverable amount of the CGU was above the book value of its net assets, 
indicating no potential impairment of goodwill and impairment of the assets of the operating 
segment. The result of this impairment test depends to a large extent on Management’s 
assessment of future cash inflows and the discount rate used, and is therefore subject to 
considerable uncertainty. The recoverable amount is the higher of the 'fair value less cost to 
sell' and the 'value‐in‐use'. The assumptions are assessed at each reporting date and 
adjusted when appropriate.         
     
         
The Holding Company uses a Discounted Cash Flow model (DCF) to determine the value in 
use. Cash flow projections for the first five years are based on budgeting and forecasting 
models endorsed by the Holding Company’s Management. After five years a terminal value 
calculation is applied. Within the DCF techniques the terminal value is determined by 
applying a perpetual growth rate to the perpetual free cash flows. With respect to the 
appropriateness of the future cash inflows used in the calculation management used 
budgets of five-year plan adopted by Management and approved by the Board of Directors, 
as well as by comparison with general and sector-specific market expectations.   
      
    
The Holding Company applied a discount rate of 16.78% to the forecasted free cash flow 
based on a WACC of the Company. The WACC is an average cost of capital consisting of two 
parts - cost of debt and cost of equity.          

Carrying amount of goodwill    
Carrying amount of trademarks    

 253,091 
 8,600 

  253,091 
 8,600 

2022 2021

--- (Rupees in '000) ---

8.1

8.2

8.2.1
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As the Holding Company’s capital consists of 32.18% debt and 67.82% equity. Calculating the 
cost of equity was done by applying the capital asset pricing model (“CAPM”). The 
assumptions applied in the CAPM included the following: a risk-free rate of 10% a beta of 0.84 
for the Holding Company and an equity risk premium of 10.67%. The risk-free rate was based 
on the yield of ten-year Pakistan Investment Bonds on the Date of Valuation as per the State 
Bank of Pakistan. Combining these assumptions yielded a cost of equity of 18.96%. The cost of 
debt net of tax is an average of 12.18%.         
   
The recoverable amount of CGU amounting to Rs. 1,586.01 million as at June 30, 2022 has been 
determined based on a value-in-use. The Value in Use of the Holding Company indicated by 
the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) method approximates to Rs. 1,586.01 million. The carrying 
value of net assets (including goodwill) as of the valuation date is Rs. 609.70 million. As the 
Value in Use exceeds the carrying value of net assets (including goodwill), no impairment in 
goodwill has been identified as a result of this review.       
   
The Holding Company tested its trademark "Burshane" as at June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021 
for impairment. Value-in-use of Rs. 779.70 million as at June 30, 2022 of the trademarks has 
been calculated using Relief from Royalty Method. This method considers the royalties saved 
by owning the intellectual property rather than licensing it. It is commonly used in the 
valuation of similar assets and, from a valuation perspective, appears reasonable in this 
case.
     
Key assumptions used in value in use calculations:       
      
The calculation of value-in-use for both CGU and trademarks, is most sensitive to the 
following assumptions:         
              
   Sales volume growth         
   Discount rates         
   Market share during the forecast period         
   Royalty rate used for the forecast period        
   Growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the forecast period    
       
Sales volume growth         
         
Value in use is sensitive to sales volume growth. Sales volume growth has been assumed to 
increase in line with management's expectations of market share.     
       
Discount rates         
         
Discount rates represent the current market assessment of the risks specific to each CGU, 
taking into consideration the time value of money and individual risks of the underlying 
assets that have not been incorporated in the cash flow estimates.      
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The discount rate calculation is based on the specific circumstances of the Holding Company 
and its operating segments and is derived from its weighted average cost of capital (WACC). 
The WACC takes into account both debt and equity. The cost of equity is derived from the 
expected return on investment by the Holding Company's investors. The cost of debt is based 
on the interest-bearing borrowings the Holding Company is obliged to service.    
   
Market share during the forecast period         
      
When using industry data for growth rates (as described below), these assumptions are 
important because management assesses how the unit’s position, relative to its competitors, 
might change over the forecast period. Management expects the Holding Company's market 
share in the LPG industry to be stable over the forecast period.      
      
Royalty rate used for the forecast period         
       
The cash flows have been estimated using a royalty rate of 1.5% and have been discounted at 
the WACC. The royalty rate is based on that used by similar businesses.  Cash flows beyond 
the five-year period are extrapolated using a 6% growth rate. It was concluded that the 
carrying amount did not exceed the value-in-use. As a result of this analysis, no impairment 
has been identified by the Company against the trademark with a carrying amount of Rs. 8.60 
million as at June 30, 2022.
         
The implications of the key assumptions for the recoverable amount are discussed below:  
      
Sales volume growth         
         
Value in use is sensitive to price and cost per ton of local and imported LPG and cost 
pass-through. The value in use was tested at various sales volume growth levels. A decline of 
27.50% or more in sales volume growth would result in impairment of the CGU.    
     
Discount rate assumptions         
         
A rise in pre-tax discount rate by 16.20% would result in the impairment of the CGU.   
     
Market share during the forecast period assumptions      
       
Management expects the Group to maintain its market share based on the expected 
demand of the product and the ready supply base it has to service the demand.   
       
         
.         
         

As the Holding Company’s capital consists of 32.18% debt and 67.82% equity. Calculating the 
cost of equity was done by applying the capital asset pricing model (“CAPM”). The 
assumptions applied in the CAPM included the following: a risk-free rate of 10% a beta of 0.84 
for the Holding Company and an equity risk premium of 10.67%. The risk-free rate was based 
on the yield of ten-year Pakistan Investment Bonds on the Date of Valuation as per the State 
Bank of Pakistan. Combining these assumptions yielded a cost of equity of 18.96%. The cost of 
debt net of tax is an average of 12.18%.         
   
The recoverable amount of CGU amounting to Rs. 1,586.01 million as at June 30, 2022 has been 
determined based on a value-in-use. The Value in Use of the Holding Company indicated by 
the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) method approximates to Rs. 1,586.01 million. The carrying 
value of net assets (including goodwill) as of the valuation date is Rs. 609.70 million. As the 
Value in Use exceeds the carrying value of net assets (including goodwill), no impairment in 
goodwill has been identified as a result of this review.       
   
The Holding Company tested its trademark "Burshane" as at June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021 
for impairment. Value-in-use of Rs. 779.70 million as at June 30, 2022 of the trademarks has 
been calculated using Relief from Royalty Method. This method considers the royalties saved 
by owning the intellectual property rather than licensing it. It is commonly used in the 
valuation of similar assets and, from a valuation perspective, appears reasonable in this 
case.
     
Key assumptions used in value in use calculations:       
      
The calculation of value-in-use for both CGU and trademarks, is most sensitive to the 
following assumptions:         
              
   Sales volume growth         
   Discount rates         
   Market share during the forecast period         
   Royalty rate used for the forecast period        
   Growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the forecast period    
       
Sales volume growth         
         
Value in use is sensitive to sales volume growth. Sales volume growth has been assumed to 
increase in line with management's expectations of market share.     
       
Discount rates         
         
Discount rates represent the current market assessment of the risks specific to each CGU, 
taking into consideration the time value of money and individual risks of the underlying 
assets that have not been incorporated in the cash flow estimates.      
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Royalty rate assumptions         
         
The cash flows have been estimated using a royalty rate of 1.5%, and have been discounted at 
the WACC. The royalty rate is based on that used by similar businesses.  Cash flows beyond the 
five-year period are extrapolated using a 6% growth rate in line with that used by the 
management. It was concluded that the carrying value did not exceed the value in use. As a 
result of this analysis, no impairment has been identified by the Holding Company against 
trademark with a carrying amount of Rs. 8.60 million as at 30 June 2022.     
     
Growth rate assumptions         
         
Cashflow beyond the forecast period have been extrapolated using 4% growth based on that 
used by the management and long term real GDP growth forecast.     
      
During 2018, the Holding Company participated in a tender offer by Oil & Gas Development 
Company  Limited (OGDCL) in respect of purchase of LPG from Kunnar Pasaki Deep - Tando 
Allahyar Gas Field District Hyderabad. On successful submission of the highest signature 
bonus bid of Rs. 50.15 million, the Holding Company has been allotted one lot of LPG of five 
metric tons per day for five years from the Kunnar Pasaki Deep - Tando Allahyar.   
     
This represents consideration paid to OPI Gas (Private) Limited in 2011 for acquisition of rights 
and title to "Burshane" trademarks. These trade marks are considered to have an indefinite 
useful life, and therefore have not been amortised. Further, no impairment has been identified 
in this regard (note 8.2).          

8.3

8.4

8.5

9

2022 2021

--- (Rupees in '000) ---Note

The amortisation for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales  
Administrative expenses  

LONG-TERM LOANS    
   
   Secured - considered good    
       Executives    
       Other employees    
    
   Current portion shown under current assets    
       Executives    
       Other employees    
  

9.2 & 9.3

9.4

13

 368 
 -   

 368 

 (368)
 -   

 (368)
 -   

 787 
 53 

 840 

 (434)
 (53)

 (487)
 353 

32
33

  49,080 
 88 

 49,168 

 10,030 
 88 

 10,118 
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Reconciliation of carrying amount of loans:     

These loans are granted to employees under the Holding Company’s policies. Car and motor 
cycle loans are repayable over a maximum period of five years and two and a half years, 
respectively. Housing loans are repayable in maximum 50 equal monthly installments and 
salary loans are repayable over a maximum period of three years. Car loans and housing 
loans are interest free. Housing loans granted to employees are secured against the letter of 
guarantee and promissory notes and other loans are secured against their provident fund 
balances.     

The maximum aggregate amount of loan due from executives at the end of any month during 
the year was Rs. 3.36 million (2021: Rs. 1.35 million).        
  
The carrying amount of these financial assets is neither past due nor impaired. Further, 
interest free loans are not discounted to present value, since the impact is considered to be 
immaterial in the overall context of these consolidated financial statements.    

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

10

2022 2021

--- (Rupees in '000) ---Note

STORES AND SPARES    
    
    Stores    
    Spares parts    
    
    Provision for obsolete items    
    
  

 5,094 
 899 

 5,993 
 (1,320)
 4,673 

 4,414 
 779 

 5,193 
 (1,320)
 3,873 

Total
2022

Total
2021

Balance as at July 01                                        
Disbursements                                                               
Repayment                                                 
Balance as at June 30

787
2,875

(3,294)
368                  

53
109

(162)
-                   

840
2,984

(3,456)
368                  

965
1,422

(1,547)
840 

--- (Rupees in '000) ---
Description

Other 
employeesExecutives
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11.1

11.2

12

2022 2021

--- (Rupees in '000) ---Note

STOCK-IN-TRADE    
    
    Liquefied Petroleum Gas (LPG)
    Low Pressure Regulators (LPR)

OPI Jamber Plant    
Ravi Sahiwal    
Sadiq Gas Company    
Sindh Gas (Private) Limited    
Blessing Gas (Private) Limited    
Lite Gas Plant    
Tez Gas (Private) Limited    
Terra Energy (Private) Limited    
Baba Fareed Gas    
Bashir Gas    
Faiq Gas    
MNA    
ZA Energy Plant    
Hi Tech Plant    
         
         

TRADE DEBTS    
    
   Unsecured - considered good    
       Trade debtors    
       Allowance for expected credit losses    
   
         
         

 36 
 15 

 2,634 
 856 

 1,729 
 850 
 525 

 78 
 327 

 11 
 2,802 

 -   
 1,598 

 71 
 11,532 

  22 
 1,357 
 403 

 -   
 163 
 -   

 570 
 13 
 -   
 8 

 15 
 101 
 -   
 -   

 2,652 

11.1

12.1

 44,370 
 555 

 44,925 

  18,429 
 705 

 19,134 

 92,364
 (4,617)
 87,747

  92,895
 (5,230)
 87,665

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT JUNE 30,2022

At June 30, 2022, stock of LPG held on behalf of third parties amounted to Rs. Nil (2021: Rs. 2.57 
million). 

This includes stock amounting to Rs. 11.53 million (2021: Rs. 2.65 million) held with the following 
parties under hospitality arrangements:



12.1

12.2

13

13.1

14

14.1

 

 

2022 2021

--- (Rupees in '000) ---Note

Allowance for expected credit losses    
    
    Balance as at July 01    
    (Reversal) / allowance for the year    
    Balance as at June 30    

Ageing analysis of these trade debts as at the reporting date is as follows:

The maximum aggregate amount due from Chief executive officer against advance from 
travelling at the end of any month was Rs. Nil (2021: Rs. 3.86 million)

This represents short term deposits in the normal course of business and does not carry 
any interest or mark-up.         
         

    Upto 1 month  
    1 to 6 months  
    More than 6 months  

LOANS AND ADVANCES     
    
  Loans - Secured - considered good    
     Current portion of long-term loans    
  Advances to (Unsecured - considered good)    
     Chief executives officer    
     Contractors and suppliers    
  

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

    Deposits   
    Prepayments   
    Other receivables    
  

 55,199
 26,326
 10,839
 92,364

 368

 -   
 56,161
 56,161

 56,529

  76,630
 20,090
 27,967

 124,687

 13,024 
 77,661 

 2,210 
 92,895 

  487 

 4 
 71,536 
 71,540 
 72,027 

   82,180 
 17,740 
 41,726 

 141,646 

36

9

13.1

14.1

14.2

  5,230
 (613)
 4,617

   3,688
 1,542

 5,230

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT JUNE 30,2022



14.6

14.5

14.4

14.3

14.2

2022 2021

--- (Rupees in '000) ---Note

Other receivables    
    
   OPI Gas (Private) Limited    
   Burshane LPG (Pakistan) 
   Limited - Provident Fund    
   Burshane LPG (Pakistan) 
   Limited - Pension Fund    
   Burshane LPG (Pakistan) 
   Limited - Gratuity Fund    
   Burshane Petroleum (Private) Limited    
   Accrued interest    
   Sales tax receivable    
   Others 

   Allowance for expected credit losses     
   
    

This includes receivable against cylinder deposits of Rs. 7.63 million (2021: Rs. 9.17 million).           
         
         
         
         

14.3

41
14.4

14.5

 6
 3,740

 13,040
 33,072

 (5,105)
 27,967

  3,642 

 511 

 3,133 

 -   
 9,000 

   3 
 17,706 
 15,382 
 46,831 
 (5,105)
 41,726 

   3,642 

 -   

 -   

 1,098 
 9,000 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT JUNE 30,2022

This represents receivable against reimbursement of expenses incurred for debranding 
activities, which has not been acknowledged by the counter party, thus fully provided.

This represents amount receivable from Burshane Petroleum (Private) Limited (formerly  
Darian International (Private) Limited) amounting to Rs. 9 million (2021: Rs. 9 million),  a 
related party, as consideration against use of the Holding Company's name under an  
arrangement entered in the year 2021. 

The maximum aggregate amount outstanding from associated companies and other  
related parties at any time of the year by reference to month end balances is as follows: 



14.7

15

16

16.1

 

 

2022 2021

--- (Rupees in '000) ---Note

Other related parties      
   Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited Provident Fund      
   Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited Gratuity Fund      
   Associated Companies      
   Burshane Petroleum (Private) Limited      
   AAK Commodities (Private) Limited      
   A&S Corporation (Private) Limited      
    

More than 6 months    
More than 12 months    
      
    

TAXATION - NET    
    
   Advance tax    
   Provision for taxation    
    
   Income tax refundable

CASH AND BANK BALANCES    
    
   Cash in hand    
   Cash at banks    
        saving accounts    
        current accounts    

 29,012
 (11,306)

 17,706
 106,990
 124,696

  24

 20,407
 76,501

 96,908
 96,932

   200

 60,370
 33,053
 93,423
 93,623

  37,881
 (6,547)

 31,334
 75,656

 106,990

 -   
 9,000
 9,000

 -   
 9,011
 9,011

This includes receivable against cylinder deposits of Rs. 7.63 million (2021: Rs. 9.17 million).           
         
         
         
         

16.1

  962 
 7,166 

 9,000 
 -   
 34 

 17,162 

   2,480 
 4,565 

 9,500 
 250 

 75 
 16,870 

The ageing analysis of receivable balances due from related parties / associate 
companies is as follows:         
         

The profit rates on these saving accounts range from 2.80% to 12.25% per annum (2021: 
2.76% to 5.50% per annum). These balances are held in accounts maintained under 
conventional banking.         
         

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT JUNE 30,2022
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18

18.1

18.2

18.3

As a result of the Scheme referred to in note 6, the authorised share capital of the Holding 
Company enhanced to Rs. 900 million divided into 90 million ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each. 
Further, pursuant to the effects of amalgamation, the paid-up share capital of the Holding 
Company reduced by 151,154 shares.          
     
As further explained in note 6, the Holding Company is in the process of completing legal 
formalities for cancellation of 151,154 shares and for issuance of new share certificates, which 
are appearing in the name of HTPL for the year ended June 30, 2022 (2021: same status) to the 
shareholders of HTPL (former Holding Company) in accordance with the Scheme. Post 
completion of legal formalities, Chief Executive, will hold 12,326,629 [2022: 54.81% (2021: 
54.81%)] ordinary shares of the Holding Company of Rs. 10 each and other directors will held 
4,358,000 [2022: 19.38% (2021: 19.38%)] ordinary shares of the Holding Company of Rs. 10 each. 
        
      
At June 30, 2022 the former Holding Company held 74.19% (2021: 74.19%), institutions held 
14.06% (2021: 14.06%) and individuals and others held the balance of 11.75% (2021: 11.75%) voting 
rights, board selection, right of first refusal and block voting are in proportion to their 
shareholding.         
         

AUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL

 900,000  900,000 

 ---(Number of shares)---  
2022 2021

 ---(Number of shares)---  
2022 2021

 90,000,000    90,000,000   Ordinary shares of  
                 Rs. 10/- each 

 Number of ordinary  
 shares of Rs. 10/- each   

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL  

2022 2021

 19,881,766   

 2,530,304     2,530,304 
 76,820    76,820  

  22,488,890  
 

  22,488,890  

 19,881,766 

 224,888 

  198,817 

 25,303 
   768 

 224,888 

  198,817 

 25,303 
   768 

Fully paid in cash (note 20.1) 

Fully paid bonus shares 

Fully paid for consideration 
other than cash  

      

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT JUNE 30,2022
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19.1

19.1.1

19.1

20

 

 

2022 2021

--- (Rupees in '000) ---Note

CAPITAL RESERVES    
    
   Revaluation surplus of property    
   Other reserves    
     Reserve on amalgamation    
     Actuarial loss on remeasurement of    
        retirement and other service benefits    
      
    

Revaluation surplus of property 
     
    Balance as at July 01
    Surplus recognised during the year
    Balance as at June 30
    
      
    

REVENUE RESERVE    
    
    General reserve    
    Accumulated loss    

    
      
    

    Leasehold land   
    Freehold land

Surplus recognised during the year

The revaluation surplus on property is a capital reserve, and is not available for distribution to 
the shareholders in accordance with section 241 of the Companies Act, 2017.   

19.1

19.1.1

 336,715

 153,458

 (30,471)
 122,987

 459,702

  336,415
 300

 336,715

   -   
 300
 300

   90,000
 (164,898)
 (74,898)

    90,000 
 (191,508)
 (101,508)

   -   
 300
 300

   336,415
 -   

 336,415

  336,415

 153,458

 (36,217)
 117,241

 453,656

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT JUNE 30,2022



2022 2021

--- (Rupees in '000) ---Note

LONG-TERM LOAN
     
    Secured     
       National Bank of Pakistan (NBP)
       Current maturity of long-term loan
    
      
    
During 2015, long-term finance obtained, under conventional banking terms, by HTPL had 
been transferred to the Holding Company at the time of amalgamation (the scheme). This 
loan was obtained as a demand finance facility under the agreement dated April 08, 2013 
from NBP and was repayable in 9 semi-annual installments of Rs. 44.44 million latest by April 
01, 2018 with a grace period of six months. The loan carried mark-up at rate of 6 months KIBOR 
plus 2.5% to 6% per annum. This loan was secured by way of mortgage on leasehold land and 
charge on the  Holding Company’s present and future current and fixed assets as well as 
personal guarantee of Chief Executive of the Holding Company. In previous years, the Holding 
Company negotiated several offer letters from NBP.

On September 20, 2021, the Holding Company received a proposal via offer letter No. 
NBP/ARG/ARW(S)/BLPL/2021/770 supplemented by offer letter for the restructuring / 
rehabilitation scheme No. NBP/ARG/ARW(S)/BLPL/2022/08 dated January 06, 2022 and 
addendum to offer letter for the restructuring / rehabilitation scheme dated June 03, 2022 for 
the restructuring of loan from NBP which has since been accepted on June 08, 2022 by the 
Holding Company's management.

However, the competent authority of NBP approved the acceptance of this offer by the 
Holding Company and executed restructuring of long-term loan amounting to Rs. 254.44 
million and its related accrued mark-up amounting to Rs. 119.39 million into three different 
facilities with effect from June 09, 2022, as mentioned below:

In respect Demand Finance-I (DF-I) facility:         

- The part of long-term loan amounted to Rs. 100.44 million restructured as DF-I.   
     
- Upfront payment of Rs. 25.44 million to be made immediately.     
   
- Remaining balance of Rs. 75 million to be re-paid in 20 quarterly installments starting 
 from September 30, 2022 with a grace period of 1 year.      
         
- The facility carries mark-up at the rate of 3 month KIBOR + 2%, which will also be  
 payable during the grace period.        
         
         
         

21.1

21

21.1

    138,115
 (23,770)

 114,345

    254,439
 (254,439)

 -   

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Rupees in '000)NoteCarrying amount of long term loan  
before restructuring
    Long-term loan
    Accrued mark-up

Loan restructured:       
    Long-term loan      
    Short-term borrowings (running finance)      

Less: Upfront payment on account of long-term loan and frozen mark-up      
Gain on loan restructuring      
      

In respect Demand Finance-II (DF-II) facility:

- Frozen accrued mark-up amounted to Rs. 119.39 million on long-term loan restructured 
 as DF-II.        
        
- The Holding Company to pay an amount of Rs. 113.82 million towards frozen mark-up.  
      
- Upfront payment of Rs. 18.52  million (including accrued mark-up amounting to Rs. 7.90

  million for the period from January 01, 2022 to June 09, 2022) to be made immediately. 
       
- Remaining amount of Rs. 95.29 million to be re-paid in 20 quarterly installments 
 starting from September 30, 2022.        
         
- The facility carries no mark-up.

In respect Running Finance facility:

- Another part of long term loan amounted to Rs. 154 million restructured as running
 finance.
        
- The facility carries mark-up of 3 month KIBOR + 1.75%.

The restructuring / rehabilitation scheme of Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited has resulted in 
a loan restructuring gain, on original long tem loan and accrued mark-up thereon, of Rs. 
37.76 million on effective date of loan restructuring i.e. June 09, 2022 as described below:  

21
27

21
29

35

 138,115 
 154,000 
 292,115 

 81,716 
 43,960 
 37,756 

 254,439 
 119,392 
 373,831 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT JUNE 30,2022

1st charge on present and future current and fixed assets of the Holding Company of Rs 
750 million already registered at SECP;
        
1% registered mortgage of land and building of both project locations i.e. Karachi and 
Faisalabad mentioned in latest balance sheet, to be created as per the original offer 
letter by NBP for the restructuring / rehabilitation scheme No. 
NBP/ARG/ARW-S/BLPL/2021/770 dated September 20, 2021. However, as per the revised 
offer letter by NBP for the restructuring / rehabilitation scheme No. 
NBP/ARG/ARW-S/BLPL/2022/08 dated January 06, 2022, the existing collateral is 
replaced by 1% Registered mortgage and 99% equitable mortgage of Freehold Land (i.e 
Chak no. 245 Near Railway Station, Abbaspur, Faisalabad, forced sales value of the said 
location is Rs. 50 million dated December 02, 2021);

1% registered mortgage and balance by way of equitable mortgage on Holding 
Company's owned following properties situated in Karachi by Rs. 660 million registered 
at SECP;

residential / commercial land bearing No. 74 measuring 37 Ghuntas situated at Deh 
Okewari, Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi valuation conducted by Luckyhiya Associates (Pvt). 
Ltd having market value of Rs. 89.63 million and forced sales value amounting to Rs. 
71.71 million dated June 30, 2020;

residential / commercial land bearing No. 47 measuring 2 Acre and 19 Ghuntas 
situated at Deh Okewari, Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi valuation conducted by Luckyhiya 
Associates (Pvt). Ltd having market value of Rs. 239.83 million and forced sales value 
amounting to Rs. 191.86 million dated June 30, 2020;       
 
personal guarantee of CEO of the Holding Company;     

undertaking for routing all sales through Holding Company's account with NBP 
cashmanagement system;        

assignment of long term deposits lying with various refineries (on best efforts); 

replacement of 16,834,434 shares of HAKS Trading (Pvt). Ltd (held by NBP) with shares 
of Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited to be completed in three months under the 
supervision / guidance of NBP legal division as a result of name change of the 
organization. Further, after the conversion of said shares, shares of Burshane LPG 
(Pakistan) Limited to be held with NBP.

        
In addition, this restructuring arrangements are secured by way of the following;



 

 

        
There are certain other terms and conditions attached in the aforementioned letter dated 
September 20, 2021 in respect of restructuring / rehabilitation of loan which the Holding 
Company have to comply with, some of which are mentioned below:     
    
         
      - Debt to EBITDA not to exceed 3 times.        
      - Debt Service Coverage Ratio not to fall below 1.5.      
      - No new dividend to be paid / announced during rescheduling period or prior approval 
 from NBP to be obtained.        
      - NBP’s prior approval to be obtained for the payment of unclaimed dividend amount to 
 the sponsoring directors of the Holding Company.       
 

For determining lease liabilities, the Holding Company discounted lease payments using its 
incremental borrowing rate 17.01% per annum (2021: 17.01% per annum).     

Represents finance lease entered into with a leasing company for vehicles. Total lease 
rentals due under lease agreement aggregated to Rs. 31.90 million (2021: Rs. 1.67 million) and 
are payable in equal monthly installments latest by May 2027. Taxes, charges, demands and 
levies, repair and maintenance are to be borne by the Holding Company.     

      
 
LEASE LIABILITIES    

    
      Balance as at July 01 
      Impact of lease modification
      Addition   
      Disposal   
      Interest expense    

      
Payments made during the year 
   
Current portion shown under current liabilities 
Balance as at June 30     

 16,291 
 -   

 27,000 
 (3,018)

 2,218 
 42,491 

 (14,316)
 28,175 

 (9,304)
 18,871 

 22,625 
 (1,632)

 -   

 3,013 
 24,006 
 (7,715)
 16,291 

 (6,349)
 9,942 

--- (Rupees in '000) ---  Note

22.1

2022 2021

22

22.1

22.2
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Maturity analysis-contractual cash flow  
 
    Less than one year    
    One to five year     
    More than five year    
    Total lease liability     
        
     
DEFERRED TAXATION - NET    
     
Taxable temporary differences  
     Accelerated tax depreciation and
     Post employment benefits  
     Surplus on revaluation of property    
  
     

             
CYLINDER AND REGULATOR DEPOSITS        
 
This represents non-interest bearing deposits which are refundable on termination 
of distributorship agreements and / or return of cylinders and ancillary equipment as 
per the Holding Company policy.         

         
         
     

       
      
Deductible temporary differences  
    Lease liabilities    
    Minimum turnover tax   
    Provisions     
    

 9,304 
 18,871 

 -   
 28,175 

 29,549 
 2,382 

 87 
 32,018 

  

  (8,171)
 (11,300)
 (3,202)

 (22,673)
 9,345 

 (4,724)
 (6,547)
 (3,380)
 (14,651)

 18,367 

  30,091 
 2,927 

 -   
 33,018 

 6,349 
 9,942 

 -   
 16,291 

Note --- (Rupees in '000) ---  

2022 2021

22.3

23

24
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TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES     
 
     Creditors      
     Accrued liabilities      
     Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited - Pension Fund  
     Advances from distributors / customers - unsecured
     Workers' Profits Participation Fund   
     Workers' Welfare Fund     
     Withholding tax payable     
     Others      

SHORT-TERM LOAN   
     
    Related party - unsecured   
      Burshane petroleum (Private) Limited  
   

The loan was obtained from Burshane petroleum (Private) Limited amounting to Rs. 397 
million for purchase of LPG. During the period loan amounting to Rs. 352 million was repaid. It 
carries rate of return of KIBOR + 2% (2021: Nil).         

SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS         

   
70,979 
 5,324 

 -   
 12,888 

 1,403 
 3,017
 1,262 

 18,166 
 113,039

   
45,000    _ 

 

   
 52,451 

 6,471 
 14,483 
 13,773 

 -   
 3,017 

 218 
 17,969 

 108,382 

26.1 

--- (Rupees in '000) ---  
Note --- (Rupees in '000) ---  

2022 2021

25

26

26.1

27

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT JUNE 30,2022

The Holding Company has arrangement for running finance facility under mark-up 
arrangement from NBP amounting to Rs. 154 million along with an import LC sight.

The rate of mark-up on running finance facility is 3 months KIBOR + 1.75% per annum. The 
arrangements are secured by way of mortgage on leasehold land and charge on the 
Holding Company’s present and future current and fixed assets as well as personal  
guarantees of Directors of the Holding Company. 



  
  

 83,198 
 -   

 83,198 

UNCLAIMED DIVIDENDS   
 
    Opening balance  
    Dividend paid tduring the year 
    Closing balance    

ACCRUED MARK-UP

   Mark-up accrued on
      Short-term loan
      Long-term loan  
      Short-term borrowings  
  

These includes an amount of Rs. 79.97 million (2021: Rs. 79.97 million) payable to the beneficial 
owners of HTPL. As explained in note 7, HTPL was merged with the Holding Company on 
February 20, 2015, however, shares held by HTPL in the Holding Company are in the process of 
being cancelled and new shares shall be issued by the Holding Company in the name of 
beneficial owners of HTPL. The beneficial owners of HTPL have requested the Holding 
Company to hold their dividend till such time that shares held by HTPL are cancelled and new 
shares are issued by the Holding Company in their name.       
  
         

This represents accrued mark-up payable to Burshane Petroleum (Private) Limited. 

Claims not acknowledged as debt by the Holding Company as at June 30, 2022 amounted to 
Rs. 31.90 million (2021: Rs. 1.68 million).         

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS      

Contingencies  

  
  

 83,198 
 (148)

 83,050 

29.1

Note

2022

--- (Rupees in '000) ---  

2021

  
 1,038 

 726 
 1,441 

 3,205 

  
 -   

 119,392 
 -   

 119,392 

28

28.1

29

29.1

30

30.1

30.1.1
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An inspection order dated August 04, 2020 under Section 221 of Companies Act, 2017 was 
issued by SECP against complaint received by the Commission wherein it was alleged that 
the CEO and Director Finance of the Holding Company are involved in financial irregularities 
of the Companies Act, 2017, which include advance made to Roots International Brands 
Private Limited (RIBS), an associate company, and  that the  bank account was being used 
for illegal activities by CEO and Holding Company’s Director Finance who appears to have 
concealed the existence of such financial transactions.      
             
On the conclusion of inspection, a report was issued on October 23, 2020 mentioning 
cognizance of offences under sections 204, 199(1), 199(2), 183(2), CEO and Director Finance 
of the Holding Company, during the period July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2020 and suggested that 
they are liable with regard to all the above non-compliances as the Board of Directors did 
not discuss or approve transactions with RIBS until June 26, 2020 and the predecessor 
auditors  are liable for proceedings to be initiated under section 249 read with section 253 
of the Act as they failed to highlight lack of disclosure of transactions with RIBS in notes to 
the financial statements for year ended June 30, 2019 especially in related parties note as 
required under IAS 24. The Auditor also failed to highlight the unsecured interest free loans 
extended without any agreement to a related party i.e., RIBS before June 03, 2019.  
          
The Holding Company has provided the comments on findings to SECP, that the 
non-compliance was not intentional but was omission by mistake.  The Holding Company 
had advanced certain amount to RIBS, However, the Holding Company has received all the 
monies back with mark up and therefore there is no financial loss to the Holding Company. 
The Board has subsequently ratified all these transactions with RIBS, and therefore to an 
extent the non-compliance has been addressed. It was merely an oversight of SECP 
compliance regulations. It has further been resolved in the Board that extra care shall be 
taken in future to ensure that non-compliance should not takes place.     

 No action has been taken up by SECP to date and management asserts, based on advise 
of Legal counsel that there would not be any material impact on the financial statements of 
any action taken up by SECP.         
         
The Special Sales Tax Reference Application (STRA) has been filed by the Commissioner 
Inland Revenue, Zone-IV, Large Taxpayers Unit Karachi in the High Court of Sindh at Karachi 
on December 18, 2019. During the year ended June 30, 2018, tax authorities issued Order 
dated May 25, 2018 and charged sales tax under section 8B of Sales Tax Act, 1990, raising 
sales tax demand and imposing penalties aggregating to Rs. 133.11 million and also default 
surcharge for tax periods from July 2014 to March 2018.  Against the said Order, the Holding 
Company filed appeal before Commissioner (Appeals–I), Karachi who vide Order dated 
July 03, 2018 vacated the whole principal amount of sales tax of Rs. 65.57 million and 
reduced the imposition of penalties from Rs. 67.54 million to Rs. 0.50 million only. However, 
the liability on account of default surcharge was maintained.     

30.1.2

30.1.3
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30.1.5

30.1.4

The Order of the Commissioner (Appeal) was challenged before the Hon’ble Appellate 
Tribunal Inland Revenue, Karachi who vide Order dated  August 28, 2019 reduced the 
substantial amount of default surcharge to Rs. 1.34 million and maintained the amount of 
penalty Rs. 0.50 million. The Company has paid the reduced amount of default surcharge 
and penalty without pursuing the matter before the High Court.      

The captioned Special Sales Tax Reference Application (STRA) is filed by the Commissioner 
Inland Revenue, Zone-IV, Large Taxpayers Unit Karachi in the High Court of Sindh at Karachi. 
On 28 September 2018, tax authorities levied sales tax under section 8B of Sales Tax Act, 1990, 
raising sales tax demand along with the levy of penalty aggregating to Rs. 7.90 million for tax 
periods from April 2018 to May 2018.          

Against the Order, the Holding Company filed appeal before Commissioner (Appeals–I), 
Karachi, who vide Order dated 31 October 2018 vacated the whole principal amount of sales 
tax of Rs. 7.69 million. However, the liability on account of default surcharge and penalty was 
maintained.         

The Order of the Commissioner (Appeal) was challenged before the Hon’ble Appellate 
Tribunal Inland Revenue, Karachi who vide Order dated August 28, 2019 reduced the 
substantial amount of default surcharge to Rs. 0.16 million and maintained the amount of 
penalty Rs. 0.23 million The Holding Company has paid the reduced amount of default 
surcharge and penalty without pursuing the matter further.      
   

The Holding Company has filed Special Federal Excise Duty (FED) Ref. Application before the 
Hon’ble High Court of Sindh against the Appellate order dated April 02, 2012 of the Appellate 
Tribunal IR. The tax authorities at Large Taxpayers Office established a demand towards FED 
on the payment of license fee paid/payable by the Holding Company in relation with the 
software / IT services acquired from the non-resident parent company under the tariff 
heading “franchise service” as per First Schedule to Federal Excise Act, 2005.  At that time, 
Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited was a subsidiary of Shell Group, operating under the name 
of Shell LPG Pakistan Limited.  The scope of services under the head ‘franchise services’ was 
not clear when the Federal Excise Act was promulgated in the year 2005 and then the 
jurisdictional issues also made the matter more complicated when the franchise services 
were subjected to Provincial sales tax by promulgation of Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011 
effective July 01, 2011.         
         
         

Software licensing does not fall under the service classification “franchise services” and this 
aspect has been settled at the Appellate Tribunal level in reported judgments, also. Hence, 
the Holding Company has a strong arguable case to defend its position that the impugned 
demand of FED may not be warranted.          

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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30.1.6The Order of the Commissioner (Appeal) was challenged before the Hon’ble Appellate 
Tribunal Inland Revenue, Karachi who vide Order dated  August 28, 2019 reduced the 
substantial amount of default surcharge to Rs. 1.34 million and maintained the amount of 
penalty Rs. 0.50 million. The Company has paid the reduced amount of default surcharge 
and penalty without pursuing the matter before the High Court.      

The Order of the Commissioner (Appeal) was challenged before the Hon’ble Appellate 
Tribunal Inland Revenue, Karachi who vide Order dated August 28, 2019 reduced the 
substantial amount of default surcharge to Rs. 0.16 million and maintained the amount of 
penalty Rs. 0.23 million The Holding Company has paid the reduced amount of default 
surcharge and penalty without pursuing the matter further.      
   

A complaint was filed by the Directorate of Investigation and Intelligence (Inland Revenue) (I 
& I - IR) on August 31, 2020, against the Holding Company for alleged Tax evasion of 
approximately Rs. 1.78 billion, with Special Court for Customs, Taxation and (Anti-Smuggling). 
Based on this complaint the court passed 2 orders against the Holding Company and some 
of its directors. The orders were pertaining to freezing of the Holding Company’s 9 bank 
accounts for 90 days and issuance of non bailable arrest warrants of its certain Directors. The 
Holding Company immediately obtained Protective Bail from the High Court and 
subsequently from the Special Court which was later confirmed.      
   
         
The Holding Company also filed a Constitutional Petition with High Court against the order of 
the Special Court for freezing of 9 bank accounts. All banks have removed the freeze on the 
Holding Company’s accounts on expiry of 90 days.        

Another Constitutional Petition challenging the Complaint filed by I & I - IR with the special 
Court under the Anti Money Laundering Act 2010, has also been filed with High Court. The 
Holding Company has lost the case upon the dismissal of Constitutional Petition No. D-5162 
of 2020 by Hon'ble Court on June 20, 2022 and directed to defend the case in the court of 
Special Judge (Custom, Taxation and Anti-Smuggling) Karachi.      

The Holding Company had received notices under section 177(1) of Income Tax Ordinance, 
2001 regarding audit for tax years 2018 and 2019. The Holding Company has replied and 
submitted relevant details and documents timely through various letters to FBR. The Holding 
Company has received further notices for same tax years on August 16, 2022, in which the 
additions made by the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue in the assessments made 
under section 122 through order dated June 14, 2022 has not been accepted by the learned 
Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals-II), Karachi who has been pleased to remand the 
matter back for both the years, as such no demand subsists for tax year 2018 and 2019.  
       
         
         The Director of Intelligence & Investigation, Inland Revenue had appeared on TV in Kamran 
Khan’s News show on September 23, 2020, and there he discussed the case in a manner 
whereby the Holding Company's reputation was damaged. He tried to conduct a media trial 
of the Holding Company and its Directors. Additionally, the Director of Intelligence and 
Investigation, Inland Revenue also disclosed our tax and assets details, hence breached 
privacy and confidentiality laws. The Holding Company has filed a law suit for damages 
against the Director General, the Director of South Region and the Deputy Director, (the 
Complainant) of the Directorate of I&I, Inland Revenue for a sum of Rs. 1 billion.    
     
         

30.1.7 On July 31, 2015, the Holding Company received a show cause notice under Punjab Rented 
Premises Act, 2009, by the landlords of the property measuring 51-Kanals-03-Marlas, or 
thereabouts bearing Square No. 94, Killa no. 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 & 7, tehsil Faisalabad, Near Abbaspur 
railway station. The Holding Company uses this land for LPG storage and filing plant of 
Faisalabad. The landlords filed an ejectment petition against the Holding Company and the 
Holding Company has filed defending argument in the rent tribunal Faisalabad and case is 
under hearing stage.         
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30.1.8 For the tax year 2016, a notice dated June 25, 2018 was issued to the Holding Company to 
provide certain information / details for audit proceedings. The notice was duly complied.  
       

Show cause notice dated June 13, 2019 was issued to amend assessment u/s 122(9) read with 
section 214C of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 which was duly responded on all the points. 
Subsequently, order dated August 29, 2019 passed by the DCIR raising null tax demand due to 
applicability of minimum tax.         

The Holding Company filed appeal to the Commissioner (Appeals) against the aforesaid 
order dated  August 29, 2019. The said appeal was heard and order passed wherein the 
Commissioner (Appeals) has confirmed the certain additions made by the DCIR, whereas, he 
has annulled / deleted certain additions i.e. (rent, advertising expenses and financial charges 
- profit on debt) as such. Further, the Commissioner (Appeals) has also directed the Officer 
to allow credit of actual taxes paid of Rs. 23.45 million subject to due verification. Appeal 
effect under section 124 to be filed.         
         

Monitoring of WHT was conducted by the DCIR by issuing a notice under section 176 dated 
March 28, 2018 which was duly responded. Thereafter, a show-cause notice dated February 
13, 2019 was issued under section 161(1A) confronting on non-withholding of taxes on certain 
payments. Response was duly filed and accordingly order dated March 15, 2019 was passed 
under section 161 / 205 by the ACIR wherein the total tax demand of Rs. 2.05 million was raised 
which comprised the defaulted amount of Rs. 1.552 million; default surcharge of Rs. 0.49 
million.         

Against the Order, the Holding Company filed an appeal before the Commissioner 
(Appeals-I) which was heard and appellate order passed dated May 15, 2019 wherein 
Commissioner (Appeals-I) remanded back the Order of DCIR with the directions to verify 
supporting documentary evidences in respect of expenses claimed to be furnished by 
appellant company within seven days time. Following the underlying directions of 
Commissioner (Appeals-I) the Holding Company has filed the details of expenses / 
payments in question vide our letter no. KT-AA-3707 dated May 22, 2019 to the DCIR for 
onward proceedings.         
         

The Holding Company filed application dated March 25, 2021 for approval for revision of 
return under clause (ba) of subsection 6 of section 114 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, for 
charging minimum tax u/s 113 at the rate 0.2% instead of 1%. The commissioner audit vide his 
letter dated May 07, 2021 rejected the request of the Holding Company for granting 
permission for revision of return. The Holding Company has filed a petition in the Hon'ble High 
Court of Sindh with prayer to direct the Commissioner Inland Revenue to allow revision of 
return of income for the tax year 2016 and no adverse order has been passed.   
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For the tax year 2016, a notice dated June 25, 2018 was issued to the Holding Company to 
provide certain information / details for audit proceedings. The notice was duly complied.  
       

Note

2022

--- (Rupees in '000) ---  

2021

30.2 Commitments

post-dated cheques           31,900                  1,677 

31 SALES-NET

Gross sales
Liquefied petroleum gas (LPG)
Low pressure regulators (LPR)

           
                  

           
 

             

5,189,987
968

5,190,955
(4,202)

(692,126)
4,494,627 

3,049,414
1,102

3,050,516
(407)

(458,812)
2,591,297          

Sales return
Sales tax

31.1 Revenue recognised from amounts included in advance from customers at the beginning of 
the year amounted to Rs. 13.14 million (2021: Rs. 10.54 million).  
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32

Note

2022

--- (Rupees in '000) ---  

2021

COST OF SALES

  
                     
                  
                  
                     
                
                
                
                     
                     
                     
                  

Salaries, wages and other employees benefits
Cost of low pressure regulators sold
Stores and spares consumed
Repairs and maintenance
Travelling, conveyance and vehicle maintenance
Depreciation
Amortisation
Rent, rates and utilities
Communication charges
Printing and stationery
Legal and professional charges
Insurance
Signature bonus

Opening stock

Security
Sundry expenses
Manufacturing cost

Purchases 
Closing stock

32.1

32.3

7.1.3
8.5

32.2
11

                            
                            

  
                        
              
                      
              

29,191        
2,192          

789             
7,777          

911             
8,666          

10,030        
39,026        

980             
502             
488             

2,784          

3,786
51,672

2,782
161,576
18,429

4,192,842
(44,370)
4,166,901

4,328,477
    

681

713

936
188

408

29,643

1,863
7,074

10,718
49,080

12,613

2,440
 37,360 

2,791
4,337

160,845
42,516

2,372,876
(18,429)

2,396,963
2,557,808

          

32.1 Salaries and other benefits include Rs. 0.60 million (2021: Rs. 0.69 million) in respect of retirement and 
other service benefits.  

32.2 This include amount of Rs. 176.42 million (2021: 206.34 million) related to purchases of LPG from Byco 
Petroleum Pakistan Limited (BPPL) and amount of Rs. 5.72 million (2021: 13.75 million) paid to ADEPT 
(Private) Limited (APL) for purchasing rights of LPG quota. On May 13, 2019, the Holding Company 
entered in to agreement with Byco Petroleum Pakistan Limited (BPPL) for purchase of LPG through an 
arrangement. On June 06, 2019, the Holding Company entered into a joint venture agreement (the 
Agreement) with APL being engaged in oil and gas related business with a quota of 35 MT per day by 
BPPL. As per the Agreement, APL consented and assigned LPG quota to the Holding Company for mar-
keting and distribution of LPG including management of operations, maintaining of books of 
accounts and records under the Agreement. The Board discussed these arrangements and the 
Agreement and on September 19, 2019, the Board approved the Agreement.  
  

As per the revised Agreement effective from August 16, 2020, APL is entitled to a fixed profit amounting 
to Rs. 4,500 (2021: Rs. 4,500) for each MT net of all taxes of LPG procured through BPPL while any other 
profit or loss from marketing and distribution of that LPG is accrued to the Holding Company. 
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32.3

Salaries and other benefits include Rs. 0.60 million (2021: Rs. 0.69 million) in respect of retirement and 
other service benefits.  

This include amount of Rs. 176.42 million (2021: 206.34 million) related to purchases of LPG from Byco 
Petroleum Pakistan Limited (BPPL) and amount of Rs. 5.72 million (2021: 13.75 million) paid to ADEPT 
(Private) Limited (APL) for purchasing rights of LPG quota. On May 13, 2019, the Holding Company 
entered in to agreement with Byco Petroleum Pakistan Limited (BPPL) for purchase of LPG through an 
arrangement. On June 06, 2019, the Holding Company entered into a joint venture agreement (the 
Agreement) with APL being engaged in oil and gas related business with a quota of 35 MT per day by 
BPPL. As per the Agreement, APL consented and assigned LPG quota to the Holding Company for mar-
keting and distribution of LPG including management of operations, maintaining of books of 
accounts and records under the Agreement. The Board discussed these arrangements and the 
Agreement and on September 19, 2019, the Board approved the Agreement.  
  

As per the revised Agreement effective from August 16, 2020, APL is entitled to a fixed profit amounting 
to Rs. 4,500 (2021: Rs. 4,500) for each MT net of all taxes of LPG procured through BPPL while any other 
profit or loss from marketing and distribution of that LPG is accrued to the Holding Company. 
  

Note

2022

--- (Rupees in '000) ---  

2021

Stores and spares consumed

 
                  

 

Opening stock
Purchases 

Closing stock                 
789 

2,215
3,520
5,735

(3,873)
1,863

            3,873 
1,589

5,462
(4,673)

 

33

33.1

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

10

33.1
7.1.3
8.5

Depreciation
Amortisation
Repairs and maintenance
Travelling, conveyance and vehicle maintenance
Rent, rates and utilities
Communication charges
Printing and stationery
Legal and professional charges
Insurance 
Advertisement and publicity 
Security
Sundry

Salaries, wages and other employees benefits                 
                  
                       
                  
                  
                  
                  
                  
                
                  
                     
                  

                     

69,939
8,123          

88               
1,013          

7,794          
1,646          
2,692          
1,058          

20,014
775             

26               
1,949          

821             
115,938 

69,968
9,092

88
1,013

7,766
1,852
2,615
1,103

25,863
2,376

571
1,631
806

124,744 

Salaries and other benefits include Rs. 6.57 million (2021: Rs. 6.70 million) in respect of retirement 
and other service benefits.  
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34.1

DISTRIBUTION AND MARKETING EXPENSES

34.1
7.1.3Depreciation

Repairs and maintenance
Travelling, conveyance and vehicle maintenance
Rent, rates and taxes
Communication charges
Printing and stationery
Insurance
Hospitality charges
Freight and octroi
Advertisement and publicity 
Security
Sundry expenses

Salaries, wages and other employees benefits 15,241 
 24,210 
 200 
 635 
 577 
 807

 164 
 155 
 19,181 
 4,107 
 148 
 655 
 366 

13,405
28,075

251
524
947
655
136
227

15,690
7,731

157
744
435

68,977 66,446              

Salaries and other benefits include Rs. 6.57 million (2021: Rs. 0.35 million) in respect of retire-
ment and other service benefits.  

Note

2022

--- (Rupees in '000) --- 
2021

35 OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets
Profit on saving accounts

Income from non-financial assets
Rental income from storage tanks-cylinders
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Old liabilities written back
Reversal of expected credit losses
Recoveries against cylinder replacement
Hospitality income
Gain on restructuring of loan

35.1

35.2

12.1

21.1

Liability for cylinder deposits and regulator 
deposits written back

 
2,327

 

 
1,116

 

 
5,500

 

 
16,029

 

 
2,167

 

 
-

                    

 
1,919

 

 
455

 

37,756 -
 

1,076

1,196

1,907

19,245
3,231

613
1,944

188

67,157
 

29,513
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Salaries and other benefits include Rs. 6.57 million (2021: Rs. 0.35 million) in respect of retire-
ment and other service benefits.  

37

35.1

35.2

36.1

Represents profit on bank accounts under conventional banking relationship. 

During the year, the Holding Company carried out a exercise to identify cylinder and 
regulator deposits pertaining to cylinders issued for 10 years and above, which relates to 
inactive distributors / customers who are not in business with the Holding Company. 

36 OTHER EXPENSES

36.1

Workers' Profits Participation Fund
Directors' fees
Auditors' remuneration
Allowance for expected credit losses 12.1

 - 
  
 

4,800
 2,734
 1,542 

1,403
4,400
2,504

-
8,307

 
9,076

Auditors' remuneration

Statutory audit
Half yearly review
Other certification
Out of pocket expenses and others

 1,378 
500 
290 
566 

1,445
500
290
269

2,504 2,734 

FINANCIAL COSTS

Mark-up / interest on:
Short-term loan
Short-term borrowings
Long-term loan
Lease liabilities

Bank charges and commission

  
 
  
  

  
  

7,433
1,441

726
2,218
11,818
1,840

13,658 

-
-

22,363
3,013

25,376
1,613

26,989 
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Note

2022

--- (Rupees in '000) ---  

2021
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39

40

38.1

TAXATION

Current 15          6,547 
Prior year  (66,361) 
Deferred         15,440 

11,300
6

(11,492)
(186) (44,374) 

EARNINGS / (LOSS) PER SHARE - 
BASIC AND DILUTED

Profit / (loss) for the year 26,613         (119,879) 

22,489         22,489 

Earnings / (loss) per share - basic and diluted 1.18 (5.33) 

--- (Rupees) ---

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding

--- (Number in '000) ---

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amounts charged in the financial statements for remunerations, including 
all benefits to Chief Executive, Directors and Executives of the Holding Company were as 
follows:  

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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The numerical reconciliation between average tax rate and the applicable tax rate has not 
been presented during the year in these financial statements as the total tax liability of the 
Holding Company during the year is covered under section 113 Minimum Tax of Income Tax 
Ordinance, 2001 as it is a higher of Corporate rate tax and Alternate Corporate Tax.  
       
         
         

Note

2022

--- (Rupees in '000) ---  

2021



41

40.1

40.2

41.1

The aggregate amounts charged in the financial statements for remunerations, including 
all benefits to Chief Executive, Directors and Executives of the Holding Company were as 
follows:  

In addition, the Chief Executive, the Directors and certain Executives were also provided with 
free use of the Holding Company's maintained cars.  

Fee amounting to Rs. 1.30 million (2021: Rs. 2.40 million) was paid to five (2021: four) 
non-executive directors for attending Board meetings during the year.  

RETIREMENT AND OTHER SERVICE BENEFITS

Pension fund and gratuity fund - valuation results:

The latest actuarial valuations of the defined benefit plans were carried out as at June 30, 
2022, using the “Projected Unit Credit Method”. The Group has terminated the gratuity and the 
purpose of the valuation is to fulfil the regulatory requirements. The assumptions and 
methodology used in the valuation are based on the provisions of International Accounting 
Standard 19 (IAS 19). The details of defined benefit plans are as follows:  

--------------- (Rupees in '000) --------------
2022 20212022 2021

Pension Fund Gratuity Fund

41.1.1 Statement of financial
position reconciliation:

            (17,807) 

              19,586

(108,807)

106,214

(2,592)               

(102,407)

117,082

14,675 

-

-

- 1,779 

Fair value of plan assets       
Present value of defined  benefit 
obligations                             
Net liability / (asset) at end
of the year                             
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Managerial remuneration 27,324      12,027      22,224      61,575      27,324      15,222      20,682      63,228      
Meeting fees 300           650           850           1,800        350           950           950           2,250        
Bonus 2,277        880           1,740        4,897        2,277        1,268        1,758        5,303        
Retirement benefits 1,161        -            760           1,921        1,161        -            694           1,855        
Travelling and conveyance 1,001        122           103           1,226        -            67             70             137           
Medical allowance -            413           1,014        1,427        -            792           828           1,620        
Mobile allowance -            30             -            30             -            30             -            30             

Total 32,063      14,122      26,691      72,876      31,112      18,329      24,982      74,423      
Number of persons 1               2               10             13             1               2               10             13             

(Rupees in '000)

Chief 
Executive

(Rupees in '000)
Directors Executives Total

2022 2021
Chief 

Executive Directors Executives Total



41.1.2

41.1.3

41.1.4

41.1.5

41.1.6

Movement in net (asset) / liability 
recognised:

Balance as at July 01  (1,350) 
 1,146                          

  - 

  1,983                          
Balance as at June 30

14,676
2,562

(8,584)

(11,246)
(2,592) 

31,915
3,496

(8,660)

(12,075)
14,676 

1,779
2,213

(7,023)

3,031
- 1,779                          

Charge for the year

Remeasurements of 
obligation                              

Contribution

2022 2021 2022 2021
Pension Fund Gratuity Fund

--------------- (Rupees in '000) --------------

Movement in defined benefit obligations:

  19,586 18,270 
  1,515 1,261 
  1,959 1,396 
  -  
  (25,382) (3,694) 

- 520 -

-

              1,802 2,353 

117,082
1,537
11,201

253
(10,139)

 

(13,720)
106,214             

119,338
1,188

9,679
442

(10,496)
-

(3,069)
117,082  - 19,586 

Balance as at July 01

Curtailment / settlement gain

Balance as at June 30

Remeasurements of 
obligation                              

Interest cost
Employee contributions
Benefits paid

Current service cost

Movement in fair value of plan assets:

Balance as at July 01   19,620 
  1,511 
  -
  - 

(10,139)   (3,694) 
9,005 370 

Balance as at June 30

102,407
10,176
8,584

253
            

(2,474)
108,807 

87,424
7,372

8,660
442

(10,496)
                 

102,407 

17,807
1,781

7,023
-

(25,382)
(1,229)

- 17,807 

Expected return on plan assets

Benefits paid
Remeasurements of plan assets

Contribution
Employees contributions

Charge for the year: 
   1,261 
   (115) 

-                              
  1,146 

Curtailment / settlement gain

Current service cost
Net Interest cost

Actual return on plan assets

1,537
1,025

-
2,562

7,702                 

1,188
2,307

-
3,495

16,377                

1,515
178

520
2,213

552 1,881 
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41.1.7

41.1.8

Remeasurement recognised in 
Other Comprehensive Income:

Remeasurement of obligation

Experience loss / (gain) (13,720)             (3,069)                 1,802                  2,353 

Remeasurement of plan assets

2,474 (9,005)                 1,229 (370) 
(11,246) (12,074) 3,031 1,983 

Experience loss / (gain)

Principal actuarial assumptions used in  the actuarial valuation:

Financial assumptions

Discount rate 13.25% 10.00% 13.25% 10.00%
Expected per annum rate of return
on plan assets 13.25% 10.00% 13.25% 10.00%
Expected per annum rate of increase 
in salaries - long term 13.25% 8.00% 13.25% 8.00%

Demographic assumptions

Expected mortality rate SLIC Adjusted SLIC SLIC
2001-2005 2001-2005 2001-2005

Expected withdrawal rate High High High

Adjusted SLIC
2001-2005

High
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2022 2021 2022 2021

Pension Fund Gratuity Fund

--------------- (Rupees in '000) --------------

 106,215 

41.1.9

AS AT JUNE 30, 2022

Pension Fund Gratuity Fund

--- (Rupees in '000) ---

-
-

-



Plan assets comprise of the following:

Historical information of staff retirement benefits:

Investments
Mutual funds 74,064       68 55,458       54 -              84
Musharka Certificate -             0 44,255       43 -              31

74,064       68 99,713       97 -              115
Advances and other receivable 760            1 738            1 -               0
Liabilities (793)           (1) (193)           (0) -                     (16)
Cash and cash equivalents 34,524       32 2,149         2 - 

0
0
0
0
0
0             1

108,555     102,407     - 

14,964
5,466

20,430
49

(2,877)
204

17,806       

2022 2021 2022 2021
Rupees in 

'000 % Rupees in 
'000 % Rupees in 

'000 % Rupees in 
'000 %

Pension Fund Gratuity Fund

        
      

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Gratuity Fund
Present value of defined
benefit obligation -                                                
Fair value of plan assets -                                           
Deficit / (surplus) -             

19,586
(17,807)

1,779         

18,270
(19,620)

(1,350)        

13,311
(17,431)
(4,120)       

15,800
(25,236)
(9,436)        

15,754
(12,554)

3,200         

Pension Fund
Present value of defined
benefit obligation           
Fair value of plan assets                                 
Deficit / (surplus)

106,214
(108,807)

(2,593)       

117,083
(102,407)

14,676       

119,337
(87,424)

31,913       

77,031
(93,399)
(16,368)      

108,913
(75,828)

33,085       

102,914
(96,825)

6,089         

                           ---------------(Rupees in '000)--------------

41.1.10

41.1.11

The amount of the defined benefit obligation after changes in the weighted
principal assumptions is as follows:

41.1.12

- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

Discount rate + 1%
Discount rate - 1%
Long term salaries increase +1%
Long term salaries increase -1%
Withdrawal rates +10%
Withdrawal rates -10%
1 Year Mortality age set back 
1 Year Mortality age set forward 

99,215       
114,171     

108,332     
104,215     

105,909     
106,535     
106,317     
106,113     -

-------- (Rupees in '000) --------

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT JUNE 30,2022

Pension Fund Gratuity Fund
As at June 30, 2022
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2022 2021Transactions with related parties 

Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited Gratuity Fund
Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited Management 
Staff Pension Fund
Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited Provident Fund

Burshane Petroleum (Private) Limited
[Formerly Darian International (Private)
Limited]

Short term Loan - received *
Short term Loan - paid *
Interest expense on short term loan
Interest paid on short term loan
Received against expenses 

AAK Commodities (Private) Limited
[Formerly ALSAA & AAK Commodities 
(Private) Limited]

Expense paid on behalf of 
associated company
Amount received against expenses

  Amount received against expenses

Interest received on short term advances 
Roots International Brands (Private) 
Limited 

A&S Corporation (Private) Limited 

Staff retirement benefit / contribution plans 

Associated Companies 

Benefits paid

Benefits paid
Contribution paid

 4,146
 

 8,584  
2,749 

 397,000 
 352,000 

 7,433 
 6,395 

 -   

 90,000 
 90,000 

 452 
 452 
 500 

 -
   

 8,660 
 2,765 

 -   

 -   

34   
34   

 250   

 -
 75
 

834
 

Key management Loan disbursed
Amount received against loan
Managerial remuneration
Bonus
Retirement benefits
Utilities
Advance against salary
Travelling and conveyance
Medical 
 

 2,875 
 3,294 

 61,575 
 4,897 

 1,921 
 30 

 -   
 1,226 
 1,427 

 

 1,060 
 1,127 

 63,228 
 5,303 
 1,855 

 30 
 760 
 137 

 1,620 

* During the year, the Holding Company obtained a loan amounting to Rs. 397 million at a 
markup of KIBOR plus 2% from Burshane Petroleum (Private) Limited, an associate company, 
with no agreed purpose and other terms. The loan amounting to Rs. 352 million was also 
repaid by cheque during the year.  

---(Rupees in '000)--- 
Nature of relationship Nature of transaction

 
 

 

Balances with related parties 

Former Holding Company 

Staff retirement benefit / contribution plans 

Associated Companies 

Key management personnel 

H.A.K.S. Trading (Private) Limited 

Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited Management
Staff Pension Fund
Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited Gratuity Fund
Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited Provident Fund 

Burshane Petroleum (Private) Limited
(Formerly Darian International (Private) Limited)

Key management personnel 

Receivable / (payable) to 
staff pension fund
Receivable from staff gratuity fund
Receivable from staff provident fund

Receivable against use of name Burshane
Short-term loan
Markup payable 

Long-term loan
Short-term loan

Dividend payable 

 353 
 434 

 
 

 9,000 
 -   
 -   

 

 (14,483)

 1,098 
 -   

 79,971  79,971 

 3,133
 

 -   
 511 

 9,000 
 45,000 

 1,038 
 

 -   
 368 

 
 

2022 2021
---(Rupees in '000)--- 

42.3 Following are the related parties with whom the Company had entered in to transactions or 
has arrangement / agreement in place.  

H.A.K.S Trading (Private) Limited
AAK Commodities (Private) Limited
(Formerly ALSAA & AAK Commodities
(Private) Limited)
A&S Corporation (Private) Limited
Norinco International Thatta Power
(Private) Limited
Burshane Petroleum (Private) Limited
(Formerly Darian International 
(Private) Limited)
AN Developers (Private) Limited
AN Energy (Private) Limited
Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited
Gratuity Fund
Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited 
Management Staff Pension Fund
Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited
Provident Fund 
 
 
 

Former Holding Company 

Common directorship
Common directorship

Common directorship

Common directorship
Common directorship
Common directorship
 
Staff Retirement Benefit Plan

Staff Retirement Contribution Plan

Staff Retirement Contribution Plan 
 
 
 

 

Nil

Nil
Nil

Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
 

Nil 
           

            
 

 
 
 
  

Name Basis of Relation  % of shareholding 
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Nature of relationship Nature of transaction

 Nil

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES 42

42.1

42.2

41.1.13

41.2 Provident Fund

Size of the fund - total assets
Fair value of investments
Cost of investments
Percentage of investments

41.2.1 The break-up of fair value of investments is as follows:

Rupees
in '000

Rupees
in '000

Bank deposits  10 3
Mutual funds          90        97

625
5,375
6,000         

419
13,348
13,767

2022 2021

% %

6,000                                 13,767
5,155 13,544

98.08% 99.38%

2022 2021

--- (Rupees in '000) ---

5,256                                 13,629

The following information is based upon the latest audited financial statements of the 
provident fund as at June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021:

      

               

 

The related parties include the former holding company, subsidiary company, staff 
retirement benefit / contribution plans, associated companies, other related parties, 
Directors and other Key Management Personnel. All major transactions with related parties 
are entered into at agreed terms duly approved by the Board of Directors of the Holding 
Company.

Details of transactions during the year and balances at the reporting date with related 
parties, other than those which have been disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated 
financial statements, are as follows:         

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT JUNE 30,2022

The above sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding 
all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in 
some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the 
defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method 
(present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit 
credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when 
calculating the liability recognised within the consolidated statement of financial 
position.

Investments out of Staff Provident Fund have been made in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this 
purpose. 
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43 

2022 2021

Profit / (loss) before taxation
Adjustment for non-cash and other items:
Gain on disposal of property, plant
and equipment
Financial charges
Depreciation
Amortisation
Provision for retirement and other service
benefits
Restructuring of loan to short-term borrowings 
Gain on loan restructuring
(Reversal) / allowance for the year
Liability for cylinder deposits written back

Loss before working capital changes 
Working capital changes  

 26,427 
 

 (1,907)
 13,658 

 44,864 
 10,118 

 4,775 
 (154,000)

 (37,756)
 (613)

 (19,245)
 (140,106)
 (113,679)

 27,225
(86,454)

  

 (164,253)

 (5,500)
 26,989 
 44,020 
 49,168 

 4,642 
 -   
 -   

 1,542 
 (16,029)
 104,832 

 (59,421)
 (196,584)
 (256,005)

35
37

7.1.3
8.5

12.1
43

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 

Note ---(Rupees in '000)--- 

Working capital changes 43.1

Decrease / (increase) in current assets:
    Stores and spares
    Stock-in-trade
    Trade debts
     Loans and advances
    Deposits, prepayments and other receivables

(800)
(25,791)

531
15,498
18,647
8,085

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities:
    Trade and other payables 19,140

27,225
(15,080)

(196,584)

(1,658)
24,767

(64,431)
(18,943)
(121,239)
(181,504)

43.1
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Profit / (loss) before taxation
Adjustment for non-cash and other items:
Gain on disposal of property, plant
and equipment
Financial charges
Depreciation
Amortisation
Provision for retirement and other service
benefits
Restructuring of loan to short-term borrowings 
Gain on loan restructuring
(Reversal) / allowance for the year
Liability for cylinder deposits written back

Loss before working capital changes 
Working capital changes  

 26,427 
 

 (1,907)
 13,658 

 44,864 
 10,118 

 4,775 
 (154,000)

 (37,756)
 (613)

 (19,245)
 (140,106)
 (113,679)

 27,225
(86,454)

  

---(Rupees in '000)--- 

 368 
 3,174 

 87,747 
 368 

 104,597 
 96,908
 293,163 

 840 
 3,174 

 87,665 
 487 

 122,808 
 93,423

 308,397

2022 2021

---(Rupees in '000)--- 
44 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Financial assets as per statement of financial position
Amortized cost

Long-term loans including current portion
Long-term deposits
Trade debts
Loans and advances
Deposits and other receivables
Bank balances

            
           

 

Financial liabilities as per statement of financial position
Amortized cost

 

138,115
94,469

466,197
3,205

701,986

254,439
91,374

438,262
 119,392

903,467

Trade and other payables
Cylinder and regulator deposits
Accrued mark-up

Long-term loan including current maturity
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CHANGE IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES45

As at July 
01, 2021

Restructuring of 
loan from NBP Additions Disposals Others Cashflows As at June 

30, 2022

Long-term loan -              161,671                 -               -               (21,883)       (25,443)       114,345        
Current portion of 
long-term loan 254,439     (220,382)               -               -               (10,287)       -               23,770          
Lease liabilities 9,942          -                         27,000        -               (18,071)       -               18,871          
Current portion of 
lease liabilities 6,349          -                         -                   (3,018)         20,289        (14,316)       9,304            
Short-term loan -              -                         397,000      -               -               (352,000)     45,000          
Short-term borrowings -              154,000                 -               -               -               (2,939)         151,061        
Accrued mark-up 119,392     (95,289)                 3,205           -               (5,586)         (18,517)       3,205            

2022 390,122     -                              427,205      (3,018)         (35,538)       (413,215)     365,556        

As at July 
01, 2020

Restructuring of 
loan from NBP Additions Disposals Others Cashflows As at June 

30, 2021

Current portion of 
long-term loan 254,439     -                         -               -               -               -               254,439        
Lease liabilities 17,511        -                         -               -               (7,569)         -               9,942            
Current portion of 
lease liabilities 5,114          -                         -               -               8,950           (7,715)         6,349            
Accrued mark-up 97,029        -                         22,363        -               -               -               119,392        

2021 374,093     -                         22,363        -               1,381           (7,715)         390,122        

Description
----------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) -----------------------------------------------------

Description
----------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) -----------------------------------------------------

46.1 Financial risk factors

46 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(a) Market risk

The Holding Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk 
(including currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity 
risk. The Holding Company’s overall risk management programme focuses on having 
cost effective funding as well as to manage financial risk to minimize earnings 
volatility and provide maximum return to shareholders. Risk management is carried 
out by the Holding Company’s finance and treasury department under policies 
approved by the Board of Directors.         

Market risk is the risk that changes in market price, such as foreign exchange rates, 
interest rates and other prices will effect the Holding Company's income or the value 
of its holdings of financial instruments.         
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The Holding Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk 
(including currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity 
risk. The Holding Company’s overall risk management programme focuses on having 
cost effective funding as well as to manage financial risk to minimize earnings 
volatility and provide maximum return to shareholders. Risk management is carried 
out by the Holding Company’s finance and treasury department under policies 
approved by the Board of Directors.         

Market risk is the risk that changes in market price, such as foreign exchange rates, 
interest rates and other prices will effect the Holding Company's income or the value 
of its holdings of financial instruments.         

i) Currency risk

ii) Interest rate risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial 
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those 
arising from currency risk or interest rate risk), whether those changes are caused by 
factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting 
all similar financial instruments traded in the market. The Group is not materially 
exposed to other price risk at the reporting date.      

The management of the Group estimates that 1% increase in the market interest rate, 
with all other factors remaining constant, would decrease the Group's profit before 
tax by Rs. 3.34 million (2021: 2.54 million) and a 1% decrease would result in increase in 
the Group's profit before tax by the same amount. However, in practice, the actual 
result may differ from the sensitivity analysis.       

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument 
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group's exposure to 
the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Group's 
operating activities. It mainly arises when receivables and payables exist due to 
transactions in foreign currency. 

As majority of the Group's financial assets and liabilities are denominated in Pakistani 
Rupees, therefore, the Group, at present, is not materially exposed to foreign currency  
risk.          

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial 
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group is 
primarily exposed to interest rate risk arising from long-term loan from bank and 
bank deposits. Borrowing at variable rate exposes the Group to cash flow interest rate 
risk. The Group's manages its interest rate risk by placing its excess funds in saving 
accounts in banks.          

2022 2021 2022 2021
Effective rate

-------- (In percent) --------
Financial liabilities

Variable rate instruments

16.83% 9.50% 138,115              254,439              
Short-term loan 15.83% - 45,000                -                       
Short-term borrowings 16.58% - 151,061              -                       

334,176              254,439              

Carrying amount
--------- (Rupees in '000) ---------

Long-term loan including 
current maturity

iii) Other price risk



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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---(Rupees in '000)--- 

For trade debts, the credit risk exposure is net of allowance for expected credit losses 
as disclosed in note 12.1.          
          

Long-term loans represent loans given to employees which are secured against the 
letter of guarantee and promissory notes or their respective provident fund balances as 
disclosed in note 9.2 and therefore, management expects no credit losses.

Due to the nature of bank balances and deposits and high credit ratings of banks and 
counter parties involved, the expected credit losses in relation to these assets are low 
and are therefore, not recognised.         
 
          

Credit risk represents the risk of financial loss being caused if counter party fails to 
discharge an obligation. The Group attempts to control credit risk by monitoring 
credit exposures, limiting transactions with specific counter parties and continually 
assessing the creditworthiness of counter parties.

Credit risk of the Group arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, 
trade debts, loans, deposits and other receivables. The credit risk on liquid funds is 
limited because the counter parties are banks with reasonably high credit ratings. The 
maximum exposure to credit risk is presented in the below table.     
     

(b) Credit risk

2022 2021

Long-term loans including current portion
Long-term deposits  

Trade debts  

Deposits and other receivables               
Bank balances  

368
3,174

87,747
104,597
96,908

292,795              

840
3,174

87,665
122,808
93,423

307,910
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Long-term loans represent loans given to employees which are secured against the 
letter of guarantee and promissory notes or their respective provident fund balances as 
disclosed in note 9.2 and therefore, management expects no credit losses.

Due to the nature of bank balances and deposits and high credit ratings of banks and 
counter parties involved, the expected credit losses in relation to these assets are low 
and are therefore, not recognised.         
 
          

Credit risk represents the risk of financial loss being caused if counter party fails to 
discharge an obligation. The Group attempts to control credit risk by monitoring 
credit exposures, limiting transactions with specific counter parties and continually 
assessing the creditworthiness of counter parties.

Credit risk of the Group arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, 
trade debts, loans, deposits and other receivables. The credit risk on liquid funds is 
limited because the counter parties are banks with reasonably high credit ratings. The 
maximum exposure to credit risk is presented in the below table.     
     

    

    

      
    

The credit quality of Group's bank balances can be assessed with reference to 
external credit ratings as follows:        

Liquidity risk is that the risk the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations 
as they fall due. The Groups’s approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure, as far 
as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, 
under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses 
or risking damage to the Group’s reputation. Following are the contractual maturities 
of the Group’s financial liabilities:        

Name Rating agency

2022 2021 2022 2021

Bank Alfalah Limited PACRA A1+ A1+ AA+ AA+
Habib Bank Limited VIS A1+ A1+ AAA AAA
MCB Bank Limited PACRA A1+ A1 AAA A
National Bank of Pakistan PACRA A1+ A1+ AAA AAA
Standard Chartered Bank
(Pakistan) Limited PACRA A1+ A1+ AAA AAA
Faysal Bank Limited PACRA A1+ A1+ AA AA
United Bank Limited VIS A1+ A1+ AAA AAA
Sindh Bank Limited VIS A1+ A1 A+ A+
JS Bank Limited PACRA A1+ A1+ AA- AA-
Meezan Bank Limited VIS A1+ A1+ AAA AAA
Summit Bank Limited VIS Not rated Not rated Not rated Not rated

Rating
Short term Long term

c) Liquidity risk

Financial liabilities
Long-term loan including current 

maturity 23,770              138,115            161,885           254,439           -              254,439       
Lease Liability 9,304                18,871              28,175             6,349               9,942           16,291         
Cylinder and regulator deposits -                   466,197            466,197           -                   438,262       438,262       
Trade and other payables 94,469              -                    94,469             91,374             -              91,374         
Short-term loan 45,000              -                    45,000             -                   -              -              
Short-term borrowings 151,061            -                    151,061           -                   -              -              
Accrued mark-up 3,205                -                    3,205               119,392           -              119,392       

326,809            623,183            949,992           471,554           448,204       919,758       

Total
Maturity 
upto one 

year

Maturity 
after 

one year
Total

Maturity 
upto one 

year

Maturity 
after 

one year
-------- Rupees in '000 -------

2022 2021
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Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability can be 
settled, between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction. As of 
the reporting date, Group's all assets and liabilities are carried at amortised cost 
except for those mentioned below:

The Group's freehold land and leasehold land are stated at revalued amounts, being 
the fair value at the date of revaluation, less any subsequent impairment losses, if 
any. The fair value measurement of the Group's freehold land at February 15, 2022 
and leasehold land as at June 14, 2022 was carried out by M/s. K. G. Traders (Private) 
Limited and M/s. Luckyhiya Associate (Private) Limited (refer note 7.1.6).   
       
The valuation techniques and inputs used to develop fair value measurement of 
aforementioned assets are as follows: 

Level 2: Those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are 
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived 
from prices); and          
          

Level 3: Those whose inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on 
observable market date (unobservable inputs).   
          
There were no transfers between level 1, 2 or 3 of the fair value hierarchy during the 
year. 
          
Details of fair value hierarchy and information relating to fair value of the 
Company's freehold land and leasehold land are as follows:    
      

46.2 Fair value of hierarchy

Assets measured at fair value
Property, plant and equipment
Freehold land -                   16,800              -                   16,800             
Leasehold land -                   569,288            -                   569,288           

2022 -                   586,088            -                   586,088           

Assets measured at fair value
Property, plant and equipment
Freehold land -                   16,500              -                   16,500             
Leasehold land -                   569,288            -                   569,288           

2021 -                   585,788            -                   585,788           

Significant 
observable 

inputs (level 2)

Significant 
unobservable 

inputs (level 3)
Total

----------------------------------- Rupees in '000 ------------------------------

Fair value measurement using

Quoted price in 
active markets

(level 1)

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities:



---(Rupees in '000)--- 

2022 2021

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT JUNE 30,2022

The Group finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of 
working capital with a view of maintaining an appropriate mix between various 
sources of finance to minimize risk. The primary objective of the Group's capital 
management is to ensure that it maintains healthy capital ratios in order to support 
its business sustain future development of the business and maximize shareholders 
value. The Group monitors capital using a debt equity ratio as follows:    
      
          

47 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

   Lease liability 
   Cylinder and regulator deposits 
   Long-term loan including current maturity 
   Short-term loan 
   Short-term borrowings 
   Trade and other payables 
   Unclaimed dividends 
   Accrued mark-up 
Total debt 
Cash and bank balances 
Net debt 

 28,175 
 466,197 

 138,115 
 45,000 
 151,061 
 113,039 
 83,050 

 3,205 
 1,027,842 
 (96,932)

 930,910 
  
  

  224,888 
 153,458 

 (74,895)

 (30,471)
 336,715 

 609,695 
 1,540,605 

60.42%
  
 

   224,888 
 153,458 

 (101,508)

 (36,217)
 336,415 
 577,036 

 1,503,377 
61.62%

   Share capital 
   Capital reserves 
   Revenue reserves 
   Actuarial loss on remeasurement of  
   retirement    and other service benefits 
   Revaluation surplus on property 
Total equity 
Capital 
Gearing ratio 
 
 
 

 
 

 16,291 
 438,262 
 254,439 

 -   
 -   

 108,382 
 83,198 
 119,392 

 1,019,964 
 (93,623)

 926,341 
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Certain corresponding figures have been reclassified for better presentation, 
however, there are no material reclassifications to disclose.    

This include storage and filling capacity of hospitality locations utilization. The 
variations are due to change in market demand.      

These consolidated financial statements have been rounded to the nearest 
thousand rupee, unless stated otherwise.       

2022 2021

2022 2021

49.1

CORRESPONDING FIGURES

49

48

CAPACITY

49.1

50 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Installed annual filling capacity
Actual utilization

(Quantity in metric ton)

               37,500 
               30,960 

               37,500 
                32,924 

Average number of employees during the year
As at the reporting date 76

77
85 
82

51 GENERAL

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue on September 
26, 2022 by the Board of Directors of the Group.      

52 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICERDIRECTOR
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

CDC - TRUSTEE NATIONAL INVESTMENT (UNIT) TRUST

           

NO. OF SHAREHOLDERS From To PERCENTAGE

497
227
141
233
34
12
4
3
5
2
1
1
1
1
1
1
2
1
1
1
1
1
1

1
101

501
1001

5001
10001
15001
20001
25001
30001
35001
40001
45001
50001
55001
70001
80001
85001

140001
380001
1335001
1815001

16830001

100
500

1000
5000

10000
15000
20000
25000
30000
35000
40000
45000
50000
55000
70000
80000
85000

140000
380000
1335000
1815000

16830000
16835000

1172

0.0458
0.3839
0.5688
2.6044

1.1990
0.6665
0.3150
0.2719
0.6104
0.2849
0.1568
0.1877
0.2151

0.2329
0.2451
0.3158
0.7357
0.3799
0.6195
1.6810
5.9012
8.0222

74.3565
100

Categories of Shareholding Number of folio Balance share Percentage

ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
H.A.K.S TRADING (PVT.) LIMITED   
NIT & ICP
NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN, TRUSTEE DEPARTMENT  
BANKS, DFI & NBFI
NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN            
MODARABAS & MUTUAL FUNDS
CDC - TRUSTEE NATIONAL INVESTMENT (UNIT) TRUST             
GENERAL PUBLIC
LOCAL            
FOREIGN              
OTHERS              
Company Total        

Shareholders holding five percent or more voting rights

H.A.K.S. TRADING (PVT.) LIMITED
          NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN
 1,336,033

16,684,629

9,489

1,850,599

1,336,033

2,314,112
146,120

147,908
22,488,890

16,684,629
1,860,088

           5.9409%

74.19%

0.04%

8.23%

5.94%

10.29%
0.65%
0.66%
100%

74.1905%
8.2711%

                      

                
 

                        

1

3

                        

                   
 

                        
 

2

 

 

1

1,126
31
8

1,172

1

2
4

SHARES HELD

1336033

140248

1816238
16834343

380569

86000

55500
52736

71500

48702

10367
86907
128772

271453
150900

589644

64500
35500

166558

71322
61552

42500

138200





E-DIVIDEND MANDATE LETTER
To:                                                                                                                             Date: ____________________

Subject:     Bank account details for payment of Dividend through electronic mode

Dear Sir,

I/We/Messrs.,________________________________________________________________________,
being a/the shareholder(s) of Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited [the “Company”], hereby, authorize the Company, to directly credit cash 
dividends declared by it, in my bank account as detailed below:

It is stated that the above particulars given by me are correct and I shall keep the Company, informed in case of any changes in the said 
particulars in future.

Yours truly,

______________________
Signature of Shareholder
(Please affix�company stamp in case of corporate entity)

Notes:

1. Please  provide complete IBAN, after checking with your concerned branch to enable electronic credit directly into your bank account.

2. This letter must be sent to shareholder’s participant/CDC Investor Account Services which maintains his/her CDC account for 
incorporation of bank account details for direct credit of cash dividend declared by the Company from time to time.

(i) Shareholder’s details:

Name of the Shareholder

CDC Participant ID & Sub-Account No. /CDC IAS

CNIC/NICOP/Passport/NTN No. (please attach copy)

Contact Number (Landline & Cell Nos.)

Shareholder’s Address

(ii) Shareholder’s Bank account details:

Title of Bank Account

IBAN (See Note 1 below)

Bank’s Name

Branch Name & Code No

Branch Address



 

FORM OF PROXY
 
The Company Secretary 
Burshane LPG (Pakistan) Limited 
Suite No. 101, First Floor Horizon Vista 
Plot# Commercial -10, 
Block -04, Scheme # 05 
Clifton, Karachi. 75600 
 
 
I / We ______________________ of ________________ being a member of Burshane LPG (Pakistan) 
Limited and holder of ordinary shares as per Share Register Folio No._______________ and  / or CDC 
Participant I.D. No _____________ and Sub Account No. ___________________ hereby appoint

 Mr./Mrs./Miss ____________________________of_____________________________or falling him 
________________________ of _________________  as my  proxy  to attend  and act for me, and on 
my behalf, at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held  at our Korangi Plant (KP1) 

 
 
 
Dated this ______ day of ____________ 2022.                           
 
 
 
 
       _____________________________ 

(Specimen Signature of Proxy)  
 

Folio No. __________ 
Participant I.D. No. _____________ 
Sub Account No. _______________ 
C.N.I.C./ Passport Number: 
 _____________________________ 

 
 
 
  ___________________________________  ___________________________________ 
(Signature of Share Holder)    (Specimen Signature of Alternate Proxy) 
 
Folio No. ___________________________ Folio No. __________________________  
Participant I.D. No. ___________________ Participant I.D. No. __________________ 
Sub Account No. _____________________ Sub Account No. ____________________ 
C.N.I.C./ Passport Number:    C.N.I.C./ Passport Number: 
_____________________________    _____________________________ 
 

 _____________________   _____________________ 
(Signature of Witness 1)   (Signature of Witness 2) 
Name: ___________________   Name: ____________________ 
C.N.I.C./ Passport Number:   C.N.I.C./ Passport Number: 
 _____________________________      _____________________________ 
Address: __________________________ Address: __________________________ 
 _________________________________   _________________________________ 
 _________________________________    _________________________________ 
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Suite 101, 1st Floor, Horizon Vista, 
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Scheme No. 5, Clifton, Karachi - 75600
Tel : + 92 21 35878356, 35309870 & 73

UAN : +92 21 111 111 BPL (275)
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www.burshane.co


